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CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD -LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forwardlimg statements within the meaning of the fedszalrities laws. These forward-
looking statements are intended to qualify forgae harbor from liability established by the Pitiw&ecurities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 .
All statements included or incorporated by refeirtthis Annual Repo, other than statements of historical fact, arexfard-looking
statements. You can identify forward-looking statets by the use of words such as “may,” “will,” “atd,” “anticipate,” “expect,” “intend,”
“believe,” “continue” or the negative of such termar other comparable terminology. Forward-lookisigtements also include the
assumptions underlying or relating to such stateimen

Our forward-looking s tatements are based on ounaggment’s current assumptions and expectationatdhture events and trends,
which affect or may affect our business, strateggrations or financial performance. Although wéide that these forward-looking
statements are based upon reasonable assumpti@sate subject to numerous known and unknown aiséisuncertainties and are made in
light of information currently available to us . ©actual results could differ materially from thoasticipated in these forward- looking
statements as a result of various factors, inclgdhose set forth below under the caption “RisktBe&’ in Part I, Item 1A and
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan@aindition and Results of Operations” in Part lleth 7 , and elsew here in this Annual
Report. You should read this Annual Report withuthéerstanding that our actual future results maynaterially different and worse fra
what we expect.

Moreover, we operate in an evolving environmentyKisk factors and uncertainties emerge from timérhe and it is not possible for
our management to predict all risk factors and uteiaties, nor can we assess the impact of alldecbn our business or the extent to which
any factor, or combination of factors, may causeiakresults to differ materially from those comtad in any forward-looking statements. We
qualify all of our forward-looking statements bys$e cautionary statements.

Forward-looking statements speak only as of the tiay were made, and, except to the extent retjbirdaw or the rules of the
NASDAQ Stock Markewe undertake no obligation to update or review forward-looking statement because of new infornmatioture
events or other factors. Readers are cautionedmptace undue reliance on forward-looking statetaen

TRADEMARKS

As of December 31, 2014 our trademark portfoliotaors eight pending U.S. trademark applicationssingbending foreign trademark
applications, as well as 14 trademark registratiorduding four U.S. trademark registrations afddreign trademark registrations.




PART |
Item 1. Business
Overview

We are a medical device company with an innovatjweroach to the design, development and commeaih of products for people
with insulin-dependent diabetes. The foundationwfproduct portfolio is our proprietary technolggatform and unique consumer-focused
approach, which allows us to focus on both conswuandrclinical needs to develop and commercialipelpets that address different segments
of the insulin-dependent diabetes market. We begammercial sales of our flagship product, themhdisulin Delivery System, or t:slim, in
August 2012. In January 2015, we received clearfmoe the U.S. Food and Drug Administration, or FD#& commercialize our next product,
the t:flex Insulin Delivery System, or t:flex, fpeople with greater insulin needs. We intend tarbegmmercial sales of t:flex in the United
States during the second quarter of 2015.

Our technology platform features our patented Midadivery Technology, a miniaturized pumping meckaniwhich draws insulin fro
a flexible bag within the pump’s cartridge rathean relying on a syringe and plunger mechanismaist features an easy-to-navigate software
architecture, a vivid color touchscreen and a mid&B connection that supports both a rechargeaditedy and t:connect, our data
management application. Our innovative approagiraduct design and development is also consumersatand based on our extensive
market research as we believe the user is the pridexision maker when purchasing an insulin pufis research consists of more than
7,000 responses obtained in interviews, focus graungl online surveys, to understand what people digtbetes, their caregivers and
healthcare providers are seeking in order to impidiabetes therapy management. We also apply ibececof human factors to our design
development process, which seeks to optimize ouces to the intended users, allowing users toessfally operate our devices in their
intended environment. Leveraging our technologyfpten and consumer-focused approach, we develogugts to address unmet needs of
people in the large and growing insulin-dependéaitetes market.

We developed our products to offer the specifituiess that people with insulin-dependent diabete& ¢ a next-generation insulin
pump. We designed our products to have the lookegldbf a modern consumer electronic device, sisch smartphone. t:slim, our first
commercial product, was the first insulin pumpéatfire a high resolution, color touchscreen. Oodgets also incorporate colors, language,
icons and feedback that consumers find intuitivade. t:slim is also the slimmest and smallesthdarasulin pump currently on the market,
and can easily and discreetly fit into a pocketilevétill carrying a cartridge with 300 units ofsinlin. t:flex was designed to provide the ben:
of t:slim while offering a cartridge with 480 unit§ insulin, giving it the largest capacity curdgrapproved in the United States and providing
enhanced flexibility to people with greater insutieeds. The touchscreen and intuitive softwareiteithire of our products make them easy to
use, learn and teach, and are designed to allosoftware updates without requiring any hardwarnges. We offer a broad range of
accessories allowing users to customize their ptantipeir individual lifestyle and sense of style.

According to the Centers for Disease Control are@&ntion, or CDC, in 2014 approximately 25 millipeople in the United States had
diagnosed diabetes. Close Concerns, Inc., an indepé consulting and publishing company that presidiabetes advisory services, or Close
Concerns, estimates that there are approximatélynillion people with type 1 diabetes in the Unitgtdtes and 1.7 million people with type 2
diabetes in the United States who require dailyiaghtnation of rapid-acting insulin. All people \Wwitype 1 diabetes require daily rapid acting
insulin, but only a subset of people with type &ldites require daily rapid acting insulin, as aomiigj manage their therapy through
improvements in diet and exercise, oral medicationgjectable therapies, such as long actinglims@ur target market consists of the
approximately 3.3 million people in the United &&twho require daily rapid acting insulin.

The FDA cleared t:slim in November 2011, makingrie of the first insulin pumps to be cleared uriderFDA'’s Infusion Pump
Improvement Initiative. This initiative is intendéal foster the development of safer, more effedtmesion pumps and support the safe use of
these devices. We commenced commercial salediof irethe United States in the third quarter oL20The FDA cleared t:flex in January
2015.

For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 art] 201 sales were $49.7 million, $29.0 million &®/5 million, respectively. For
the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 20d8ebloss was $79.5 million, $63.1 million andB¥Bmillion, respectively. Our
accumulated deficit as of December 31, 2014 was8 $24illion. Since the launch of t:slim, we havéppled approximately 18,300 pumps a
December 31, 2014. Based on customer surveysy#rage age of our existing customers that havehpigied t:slim is 31 years old, with
relatively equal distribution between men and women




We believe we have an opportunity to rapidly inseegales by developing and commercializing newymisdhat utilize our technology
platform and consumer-focused approach, suchlaes,tdfy continuing to provide strong customer suppand by further expanding our sales
and marketing infrastructure. We expanded our salgscal and marketing organization from approabely 100 people as of December 31,
2013 to approximately 160 people as of DecembeR@14. We believe this expansion will allow us bgage with more potential customers,
their caregivers and healthcare providers on a rinecgient basis to promote our products. In addjtiy leveraging our sales and marketing
infrastructure to demonstrate our product beneditsl the shortcomings of existing insulin therapies believe more people will choose t:slim
or t:flex for their insulin pump therapy needspaling us to further penetrate and expand the maflgbf December 31, 2014, approximately
half of our customers reported that they had cdeddirom multiple daily injection to t:slim for tirénsulin therapy. We also believe we are
positioned to address consumers’ needs in differeginents of the large and growing insulin-dependiaetes market with our products, and
products in development. In particular, we see dpdties in the following areas:

e increased insulin volume capacity targeted to pewgth greater insulin requirements, in particilarse with type 2 diabete
e integrated continuous glucose monitoring, or CGhfimating the need to carry an additional dev

e reduced size and mobile connectivity to appeaktapte who seek greater flexibility and discreti

e advancements in the automated delivery of insalir]

e multiple hormone delivery through a single syst

Our headquarters and our manufacturing facilitylacated in San Diego, California and we employ8d full-time employees as of
December 31, 2014.

The Market

Diabetes is a chronic, lifdireatening disease for which there is no knowe ctihe disease is caused when the pancreas dogsodate
enough insulin or the body cannot effectively dseihsulin it produces. Insulin is a life-sustagimormone that allows cells in the body to
absorb glucose from blood and convert it to enefgya result, a person with diabetes cannot utthizeglucose properly and it continues to
accumulate in the blood. If not closely monitored @roperly treated, diabetes can lead to seriadical complications, including damage to
various tissues and organs, seizures, coma anl. deat

The International Diabetes Federation, or IDF neates that in 2014 approximately 387 million pedpd diabetes worldwide and that
by 2035, this will increase to 592 million peoplendwide. According to the Centers for Disease @anbr CDC, in 2014 nearly 25 million
people in the United States had diagnosed diabetes.

There are two primary types of diabetes:

e Type 1 diabetes is caused by an autoimmune resgorwhich the body attacks and destroys theimgubducing cells of the
pancreas. As a result, the pancreas can no longeéuge insulin, requiring patients to administeifydisulin to survive. Accordin
to Close Concerns, approximately 1.6 million pedydge type 1 diabetes in the United Ste

e Type 2 diabetes occurs when the body does ndupmenough insulin to regulate the amount of gladno the blood, or cells
become resistant to insulin and are unable totwefeictively. Initially, many people with type 2athetes attempt to manage their
diabetes with improvements in diet, exercise arad medications. However, as their diabetes advasoese patients progress to
requiring injectable therapies, such as long adtisglin, and a subset of this population will requdaily rapid-acting insulin
therapy. According to Close Concerns, approximatefymillion people in the United States with typdiabetes require daily
rapic-acting insulin.

Our target market consists of approximately 3.3iomilpeople in the United States who require dadyninistration of insulin, which
includes approximately 1.6 million people with typeliabetes and the approximately 1.7 million peapith type 2 diabetes who require daily
rapid acting insulin. Throughout this Annual Reparé refer to people with type 1 diabetes and pewjith type 2 diabetes who require daily
rapid acting insulin as people with insulin-depeantdtiabetes.




People with insulin-dependent diabetes requirensite insulin therapy to manage their blood gludesels within a healthy range,
which is typically between 70-120 milligrams peciliger, or mg/dL. Blood glucose levels can be afézl by many factors, such as type or
guantity of food eaten, illness, stress and exert¢iypoglycemia, or low blood glucose levels, canse a variety of long-term effects or
complications, including damage to various tissars organs, seizures, coma or death. Hyperglycamlagh blood glucose levels, can also
cause a variety of long-term effects or compligagiancluding cardiovascular disease and damagartous tissues and organs. It can also
cause the emergency condition ketoacidosis, whachresult in vomiting, shortness of breath, comdeath.

There are two primary therapies practiced by pewtle insulin-dependent diabetes, insulin injeci@mnd insulin pumps, each of which
is designed to supplement or replace the insuliipecing function of the pancreas. Insulin injecti@me often referred to as multiple daily
injection, or MDI, and involve the use of syringgsinsulin pens to inject insulin into the persobody. Insulin pumps are used to perform \
is often referred to as continuous subcutaneouwdimimfusion, or insulin pump therapy, and typlgalse a programmable device and an
infusion set to administer insulin into the persobody.

MDI therapy involves the administration of a raicking insulin before meals, or bolus insulin, tmg blood glucose levels down into
the healthy range. MDI therapy may also requiremagate injection of a long-acting insulin, or Bassulin, to control glucose levels between
meals; this type of insulin is typically taken oraretwice per day. By comparison, insulin pump #épsruses only rapid-acting insulin to fulfill
both mealtime (bolus) and background (basal) requénts. Insulin pump therapy allows a person ttoouige their bolus and basal insulin
doses to meet their insulin needs throughout tlyeatad is intended to more closely resemble thesiplhggic function of a healthy pancreas.

According to the American Association of Diabet@kiEators, insulin pump therapy is considered tlodd‘gtandard” of care for people
with insulin-dependent diabetes. It has been showmovide people with insulidependent diabetes with numerous advantages etativDI
therapy. The following chart illustrates some &f Rey advantages and disadvantages of using Mdgkerersus insulin pump therapy:




Therapy

Advantages

Comparison of MDI Therapy vs. Insulin Pump Therapy

Disadvantages

Multiple Daily Injection or MDI

Insulin Pump

Less training and shorter time to educate o
Does not tether the user to a device °
Lower upfront and ongoing supply costs

Lower risk of technological malfunction

Eliminates individual insulin injections °

Delivers insulin more accurately and
precisely than injections °

Often improves HbAlc, a common measur®
of blood glucose levels over time
[ ]

Fewer large swings in blood glucose levels

Provides greater flexibility with meals,
exercise and daily schedules

Can improve quality of life
Reduces severe low blood glucose episodes

Eliminates unpredictable effects of
intermediate or long-acting insulin

Allows exercise without having to eat large
amounts of carbohydrates, as insulin delivery
can be adjuste

Requires injections up to seven times per da

Delivers insulin less accurately than insulin
pumps

Results in greater variability in blood glueos
levels or less accurate glycemic control

Requires more planning around and
restrictions regarding meals and exer:

Requires intensive education on insulin pt
therapy and management

Wearing a pump can be bothersome
Can be more costly

Risk of diabetic ketoacidosis if the catheter
comes out and insulin infusion is interrupted

According to Close Concerns, approximately 425 0686ple with type 1 diabetes in the United Statesamsinsulin pump, or
approximately 27% of the type 1 diabetes populatioraddition, approximately 125,000 people withey2 diabetes in the United States use &
insulin pump, or approximately 7% of the type 2baites population who are insulin-dependent. Clas®c€rns also estimates that in 2014, the
U.S. insulin pump market was approximately $1.4dwi| representing an 11% growth in sales.

We believe that the distinct advantages and ineckas/areness of insulin pump therapy as compareth& available insulin therapies
will continue to generate demand for insulin punepides and pumpelated supplies. We also believe that the adogmtfonsulin pump therap
would be even greater if not for the significantl dandamental perceived shortcomings of durablelimgumps currently available, which we

refer to as traditional pumps.




The Opportunity

The foundation of our consumer-focused approaahaiket research, through which we seek to bettéerstand the opportunity within
the insulin-dependent diabetes market, as wetll@sdasons why the adoption rate of insulin purepaty is not greater in light of its benefits
when compared to MDI therapy. We have conducteernskte research consisting of more than 7,000 ressgsoobtained from interviews, fot
groups and online surveys to understand what peuvitiediabetes, their caregivers and healthcargigess are seeking to improve diabetes
therapy management, as we believe the user igitinany decision maker when purchasing an insulimpuBased on our research and
statistical analysis, we believe that the limitedgtion of insulin pump therapy by people with ilnswlependent diabetes is largely due to the
shortcomings of traditional pumps currently avd#all hese shortcomings include:

Antiquated styleWhile consumer electronic devices have rapidly es@lin form and function over the past decade jtioachl pumps
have not achieved similar advances. Our marketarekénhas shown that consumers believe traditiomalgs resemble a pager, as they
generally still feature small, low contrast dispkyeens, push-button interfaces, plastic casesliapdsable batteries. Because an insulin pun
must be used multiple times throughout the dagmoiit social settings, its style and appearanc@vgertant to users. Our market research ha
shown that traditional insulin pump users frequergbort being embarrassed by the style of thadtitional pump. For current MDI users, the
style of traditional pumps is often cited as a ogaf®r not adopting pump therapy.

Bulky size.Our market research has shown that consumers w@itibnal pumps as large, bulky and inconveniergdrry or wear,
especially when compared to modern consumer etactdevices, such as smartphones. The size ofulmp further contributes to users being
embarrassed by the pump. This complaint, along eatiterns relating to how and where the pump cantilized due to its size and shape, is
frequently cited among users of traditional punis. current MDI users, the size of traditional punigoften communicated as a reason for
not adopting pump therapy.

Difficult to learn and teach.Traditional pumps often rely on complicated anddatgd technology and are not intuitive to operaiar.
research has shown that it can take several dayampetently learn how to use traditional pumpadieg to frustration, frequent mistakes and
additional training, each of which may discouradegion. We believe difficult-tarse traditional pumps result in a higher frequenfcgalls by
the user to the pump manufacturer or their healéthpeovider for support. We also believe that tbmplicated functionality of traditional
pumps significantly limits the willingness of hdadaire providers to recommend insulin pump therapyany patients, and limits the numbe
patients they consider as candidates for insulmpotherapy.

Complicated to useTraditional pumps are designed with linear softwaenus, which require the user to follow displasesas
sequentially, limiting their ability to access infimation within workflows or easily return to thesging point. Most traditional pumps require
users to scroll through numerous menus and inplifpfeucommands to make selections. This processeaime-consuming, and must be
performed multiple times per day. Our researchdhasvn that the complicated nature of the procesdezal to confusion, frustration and fear
of making mistakes with the pump, which in turn &iamit the user’s willingness to take advantagedfanced therapy features, or even
discourage use entirely.

Pump mechanism limitationsTraditional pumps utilize a syringe and plunger haagsm to deliver insulin. This design limits tHliy
to reduce the size of the pump due to the lengthdéameter of the syringe and plunger. The desigm gotentially exposes the user to the
unintended delivery of the full volume of insuliritkin the pump, which can cause hypoglycemia otldeghis effect is well documented and
can occur when traditional pumps are elevated abieveser’s infusion site, referred to as siphopargvhen the user experiences pressure
changes during air travel. Our research has shbaitrle fear of adverse health events due to teehmalfunctions related to traditional pump
mechanism limitations deters the adoption of imsplimp therapy.
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We believe that these shortcomings of traditionathps have limited the adoption of pump therapyaBgiressing these issues, there is
meaningful opportunity to not only respond to teacerns and unmet needs of traditional insulin pusers, but also to motivate eligible MDI
users to adopt pump therapy.

Our Solution

We developed our proprietary technology platforimgs consumer-focused approach by first utilizxgensive market research to
ascertain what consumers want, and then desigmouyupts to meet those specific consumer demandse &lieve the user is the primary
decision maker when purchasing an insulin pump.d@velopment process then applies the sciencerméhdactors, which optimizes a device
or system to the intended user through iteratiabilisy and design refinement. This multi-step aygwh has resulted in products that provide
users with the distinct product features they seekin a manner that makes the features usabldeliéae this approach is fundamentally
different from the approach applied to the tragiibmedical device development process, which aftees not involve seeking out specific
consumer feedback in advance or applying the seiehbuman factors to optimize the design of a pebd

Our products, technology platform and consumers$eduapproach are intended to address the unmet nétrdditional insulin pump
users and the concerns that have discouraged pligitdeesMDI users from adopting pump therapy. Sfieaily, our solution addresses the
shortcomings of traditional pumps identified througur market research. Our solution includes:

Contemporary styleOur approved products, t:slim and t:flex, as welb# of our products under development, havedbk hnd feel of
a modern consumer electronic device, such as agmage. Relying on significant consumer input aeelback during the development
process, we believe the aesthetically-pleasing,amodesign of our products addresses the embargaagpearance-related concerns of insulir
pump users. Key product features such as a higiutésn, color touchscreen with shatter-resistdasg, aluminum casing and rechargeable
battery, make our products unique in the insulimpumarket. In addition, we designed a broad rarfigecessories allowing users to custon
their pump to their individual lifestyle and serdestyle.

DS s

t:slim Insulin Delivery System (Actual Size)




Compact sizet:slim is the slimmest and smallest durable insplimp on the market while still offering a cartrédgith 300 units of
insulin. t:flex offers the same sleek pump formtda@s t:slim, while utilizing a cartridge with 48@its of insulin, providing enhanced
flexibility to people with greater insulin needsittWa narrow profile, similar to many smartphonas; products can easily and discreetly fit
into a pocket. The size and shape were designpbtade increased flexibility with respect to homdawhere a pump can be worn. Based on
extensive consumer input during development, wiebelour products addresses both the embarrassmeritinctionality concerns related to
the size and inconvenience of carrying a tradifigoanp.
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t:slim Insulin Delivery System (Actual Size)

Easy to learn and teactOur technology platform allows for the use of aigitouchscreen and easy-to-navigate software @icthite,
providing users simple access to the key functafribeir pump directly from the Home Screen. Insygdump users can quickly learn how to
efficiently navigate their pump’s software, theramabling healthcare providers to spend less teaehing a person how to use the pump and
more time improving management of their diabetes.BMlieve these features also allow healthcareiggo/to more efficiently train people to
use our pump and have a higher degree of confidbiate@isers can successfully operate our pumpyding its more advanced features. We
also believe the ease with which our pump can &bl and taught will help attract current inspliimmp users as well as people who may |
been frustrated or intimidated by traditional pumps

1020 AM

¥ Baplisber 1, B0

!‘ BOLUS

O

OPTIONS

AT 134 hrs

Easy-to -Navigate Pump Software Architecture

Intuitive to use.Similar to what is found in modern consumer elattaevices, the embedded software displayed owigig
touchscreen features intuitive and commonly inetgut colors, language, icons and feedback. Owvaodtalso features numerous shortcuts,
including a simple way to return to the Home Scraed view critical information for therapy managemd hese features were designed to
enable users to operate their pump with greatefidemce and expand the set of functions that tegylarly utilize. Users can also execute
most tasks in fewer steps than traditional pumps.Délieve these features allow users to more effii manage their diabetes without fear or
frustration.
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Quick Access to Pump History

Next generation technology platforn©ur Micro-Delivery Technology is unique comparedraditional pumps. Its miniaturized
pumping mechanism draws insulin from a flexible kathin the pump’s cartridge rather than relyingaomechanical syringe and plunger
mechanism. The pump is specifically designed tp pedvent the unintentional delivery of insulinfrdhe reservoir by limiting the volume of
insulin that can be delivered to a person at amytone and to reduce fear associated with usingnapp Our technology was tested under
typical and extreme operating conditions and isguesl to last for at least the anticipated fgaar life of the pump. Our technology also all
us to reduce the size of the device as compargddiional pumps and is capable of deliveringghmllest increment of insulin to users of any
pump currently available.

To Person |

|| Micro-Delivery

Gear Train
Chamber
Electrical 300w Insulin
Motor O—1— Storage
Encoder Chamber

Volume
Measurement
Sensor

t:slim pump Mechanism

Our technology platform also features a touch stega a micro-USB connection that supports rapitiagging and connectivity to
t:connect, both of which can be performed withdatdnnecting or interrupting insulin delivery.

We believe our technology platform will allow ouoglucts to further penetrate and expand the inguimp therapy market by
addressing the specific product and technologytéiticins that were raised by people with diabetesir taregivers and healthcare providers
throughout our market research and iterative hufaetors-based design process. We also believerodupt platform provides us with the
opportunity to address unmet needs in the inswdipeddent diabetes market, including integrated G@Mtions, further device
miniaturization, advancements in automated insddilivery and multiple hormone delivery capabilities

Our Strategy

Our goal is to significantly expand and further gteate the insulin-dependent diabetes market aocdnbe the leading provider of insulin
pump therapy by focusing on both consumer andagimeeds. We intend to pursue the following bissrerategies:

Advance our platform of innovative, consumer-focusproducts to address the unmet needs of peopkhéninsulin-dependent
diabetes marketWe believe that our proprietary technology platfatiows us to provide the most sophisticated atuitime insulin pump
therapy products on the market. We intend to leyeetais platform to expand our product offeringadilress different segments of the large
and growing insulin-dependent diabetes marketutfinly supporting advances in the automated delie&mysulin through our clinical research
partnerships, strategic agreements and commercidlupt development efforts.

Invest in our consumer-focused approactle believe that our consumer-focused approachadyst design, marketing and customer
care is a key differentiator. Our extensive marksearch involving people with diabetes, their gavers and healthcare providers has driven
the design and development of our current prodarmtscustomer care model. This approach allows addahe product features most
requested by people with insulin-dependent diabéteseby affording the consumer the opportunityntre efficiently manage their diabetes.
We will continue to apply the science of humandasthroughout the design, development and contimiraprovement of our products to
optimize our products for intended users. We wiltinue to invest in our consumer-focused appraacdughout our business.
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Promote awareness of our products to consumersirtharegivers and healthcare providerOur products were specifically designe:
address the shortcomings of currently availablbrietogies that have limited the adoption of insylirmp therapy. We intend to broaden our
direct-toconsumer marketing and promote the benefits opoanlucts through our redesigned website and usea#l media tools. We plan
leverage our sales force and clinical specialstauttivate relationships with diabetes clinicstitin-prescribing healthcare professionals and
other key opinion leaders. By promoting awarenéssipoproducts, we believe that we will attractngsef other pump therapies and MDI to
products.

Drive adoption of our products through our expandsdles and marketing infrastructure and multiple @duct offerings.We have
been able to achieve commercial success sincadinet of our first commercial product, t:slim. Gates and marketing infrastructure is
scalable, and we have invested and will continuevest in the expansion of this infrastructurénitrease our access to people with diabetes,
their caregivers and healthcare providers. In amditve have an opportunity to leverage this irtfiature by launching new product offerings,
such as t:flex, to primarily the same healthcamvigers, thereby increasing our efficiency. We dadi that further investment in our sales and
marketing infrastructure combined with the launéladditional product offerings utilizing the sanmdrastructure will drive continued adoption
of our products and significantly increase our rexes.

Broaden third-party payor coverage for our produdtsthe United StatesWe believe that third-party reimbursement is andngmt
determinant in driving consumer adoption. We alslielve that customer and healthcare provider istéreour products is an important factor
that enhances our prospect of contracting wittdtparty payors. As our sales and marketing ressurage been limited thus far, we have
generally located our sales representatives iretargetropolitan areas and have concentrated aubresement efforts on third-party payors
with large numbers of members residing in the sareas. We intend to intensify our efforts to enagerthird-party payors to establish
reimbursement for our products as we expand oessald marketing infrastructure.

Leverage our manufacturing operations to achievestand production efficiencieaVe manufacture our products at our headquarters
in San Diego, California. We utilize a seautomated manufacturing process for our pump prsduad disposable cartridges. With our exis
production lines, we have the capacity to signiftbaincrease our manufacturing output. We havectifgbility to replicate these production
lines within our current facility to further incre@ our manufacturing capacity and we currentlynidt® install additional equipment for the
automated manufacturing of our disposable cartedper the next six to eighteen months. Our pradoaystem is also adaptable to new
products due to shared product design featuresni®ed to reduce our product costs and drive ofmeralt efficiencies by leveraging our
scalable, flexible manufacturing infrastructure.

Our Technology Platform

Utilizing our unique consumer-focused approach,ciwhs based on our extensive market research asttbnce of human factors, we
have developed an innovative technology platforat it fundamental to the design of our existingdpigis and provides the foundation for
development of our future products. The key elesmehbur platform are:

Advanced core technolog@ur patented Micro-Delivery Technology is uniquengared to traditional pumps. Our miniaturized
pumping mechanism allows us to reduce the sizeeoptimp as compared to traditional pumps. Redubigize of the pumping mechanism
also allows us to support various insulin cartridgpacities. It was designed to provide preciséndass frequently as every five minutes an
increments as small as 0.001 u/hr, or units per,lasucompared to the smallest increment availabiaditional pumps, which is 0.025 u/hr.
This technology also helps prevent unintentionsiiiim delivery by limiting the volume of insulinahcan be delivered to a person at any one
time.

Easy-to-navigate embedded software architect@er technology platform was developed using araitee human factors design
process that results in the intuitive software aechure which features commonly interpreted cqltasguage, icons and feedback. This allows
the user to easily navigate the system and penf@eassary functions in fewer steps than traditipnatps, including a one-touch method to
return to the Home Screen that facilitates easeawhing, teaching and use. The flexible softwaichitecture may also allow for updates to the
software without requiring any hardware changes.

Vivid color touchscreenOur full color touchscreen allows users to accestseamlined, easy-to-use interface. The high-grsidatter-
resistant glass touchscreen provides the uselbiliy & enter numbers and access features dyre@ther than scrolling through numerous
screens and options. The touchscreen facilitafesysgatures that were designed to prevent unit@drmpump operations. The vivid color
touchscreen also supports enhanced visual antetiesdback.
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Lithium-polymer rechargeable battery technolo(©Our products are the first and only insulin punpsde a rechargeable battery, un
traditional pumps that rely on disposable batteiBssusing a built-in rechargeable battery, we @&late the risk of losing personal settings
associated with replacing batteries. Our lithiuntypter rechargeable battery charges rapidly witteadard micro-USB connection, and a full
charge lasts for up to seven days. Users repdrtiibg keep their battery powered by chargingiiféist 10 to 15 minutes each day, often while
showering or commuting with the use of the car gaawe provide with the pump. Our battery has bested to last for at least the four-year
life of the pump. Our battery also allows for pescand accessible monitoring of the current chignggd on the device’s Home Screen.

Compatibility and connectivityOur PC- and Mac-compatible, cloud-based data manageapplication, t:connect, provides our insulin
pump users a fast, easy and visual way to displesapy management data from t:slim, t:flex and supg blood glucose meters. Our platform
empowers people with diabetes, as well as the@giaers and healthcare providers, to easily andkiyuidentify meaningful insights and
trends, allowing them to fine-tune therapy andslijée choices for better control of their diabetdditionally, our platform enables rapid data
uploads through a micro-USB connection, withouginipting insulin delivery.

Our Products

We have introduced to the market our flagship petdie t:slim Insulin Delivery System, and t:coaonéts companion diabetes
management application. t:flex was submitted toRBé in November 2014 and was cleared for commezeigon by the FDA in January
2015. We expect to commence commercial saleslex i the second quarter of 2015. These produetgwleared by the FDA under its
Infusion Pump Improvement Initiative. We believa anique products address the significant and fomeddal shortcomings of traditional
pumps and will allow people to manage their diabetere efficiently.
Commercial Products

t:slim Insulin Delivery System

The t:slim Insulin Delivery System is comprisedioé t:slim pump, its 300-unit disposable insulintigdge and an infusion set. We
commercially introduced t:slim in the United Staiteshe third quarter of 2012.

Cartridge being Inserted into t:slim pump

Measuring 2.0 x 3.1 x 0.6 inches, t:slim is thengliest and smallest durable insulin pump on the atatislim has a black aluminum
case and chrome trim that give it the look and é¢el modern consumer electronic device, suchsmsatphone. t:slim is also watertight, with
an IPX7 rating, eliminating concerns about gettinget. The device also features a micro-USB cotioedhat supports rapid recharging and
connectivity to t:connect, both of which can befpened without disconnecting or interrupting insudielivery.

t:slim’s vivid, full color touchscreen is made agh-grade, shatter-resistant glass and provides tise ability to enter numbers and
access features directly, rather than scrollingubh a list of numbers and screens. We designestitb@mlined, user-friendly interface to
facilitate rapid access to the features peoplenss, such as delivering a bolus, viewing insulirbeard, viewing insulin cartridge volume &
monitoring current pump status and settings. Therfiace also includes an options menu that provigésk and intuitive navigation to key
insulin management features, pump settings, cgeridading and use history. t:slim also featureme Screen button that immediately
returns the user to the Home Screen where impaatamtnistrative features are displayed, includimg c¢urrent battery charge level, a time anc
date display and an LED indicator for alerts, akand reminders.
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t:slim enables the creation of six customizablespeal profiles, each supporting up to 16 timedlinsielivery settings. This feature
allows users to manage their day-to-day insulimapy with less effort and interruption. Users caickly and easily adjust insulin settings
based on a number of key factors, including basal correction factor, carbohydrates to insultrorand target blood glucose levels.

The other key components of the t:slim Insulin Bedy System are the disposable cartridge and stamofaision set. The cartridge
features our proprietary Micro-Delivery Technolagyd miniaturized pumping mechanism and has a dgpac800 units of insulin that is
typically replaced by a user every three days. \@&ghed t:slim with a standard Luer Lock connetdaaccommodate flexibility in a user’s
infusion set choice, thereby enabling a varietgmtfons in cannula materials, adhesive materiatgrtion angles and insertion techniques.

We also designed t:slim to support a broad rangeoéssories allowing users to customize theirodeta their individual lifestyle and
sense of style. We offer a full set of accessdndacrease user flexibility and willingness to @s® carry their insulin pump. These access:
include different color casings, belt clips, leatbases and convenient portable power adapters.

t:slim Accessories

t:flex Insulin Pump

The t:flex Insulin Delivery System is comprisedtioé t:flex pump, its 48@mit disposable insulin cartridge and an infusiet B/e intent
to begin commercial sales of t:flex in the Uniteet8s in the second quarter of 2015.

t:flex Insulin Delivery System
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People with insulin-dependent diabetes requireedsfit amounts of insulin based on their level stiiim sensitivity, which can vary
significantly from person to person. t:flex is dgsed for individuals who require more than 100 &nit U-100 insulin per day, such as
teenagers with type 1 diabetes and many peopletypth2 diabetes. t:flex incorporates the samengolgy platform as t:slim, but offers a 480-
unit insulin reservoir, the largest capacity cutieapproved in the United States. This providesrsishe benefits of pump therapy without the
frequent cartridge changes required by 200- andu@lcapacity pumps. The t:flex cartridge exteadsslightly on one side to accommodate
the extra volume while maintaining all of the otbhenefits of t:slim, including its slim and slegkpgarance. We have also developed
accessories for t:flex that are similar to oulimshccessories.

In our market research, two-thirds of endocrindtgcited limited volume capacity as the numberlmreier to pump adoption for their
patients with type 2 diabetes who use daily raptthg insulin. We believe that offering a 480-urdirtridge addresses the typical insulin need:
of a person with type 2 diabetes who is insulinedefent. Our research has also shown that the apmeaand bulky size of traditional pumps
is another deterrent to pump adoption for peopté gieater insulin needs. We believe the combinatfa:flex’s larger insulin reservoir,
combined with the other features and ben efitsreffdy our technology platform, provides us withogportunity to expand the current insulin
pump market to address the unmet needs of indilgduigh greater insulin requirements.

t:connect Diabetes Management Application

We commercially introduced our complementary pradiiconnect Diabetes Management Application, @srinect, in the first quarter
2013. t:connect is a PC- and Mac-compatible, cloasked data management application that is comeatiith t:slim and t:flex and provides
users, their caregivers and their healthcare pessid fast, easy and visual way to display therapgagement data from the pump and
supported blood glucose meters. This applicatiopamers people with diabetes, as well as their heait providers, to easily and quickly
identify meaningful insights and trends, allowihgn to refine therapy and lifestyle choices fotdratnanagement of their diabetes. We also
believe that t:connect can serve as a key compaienbbile health applications that we may decw@ddvelop in the future.

We developed t:connect to be intuitive, with themeaconsumer-focused approach utilized in the dewveémt of our insulin pumps. It
features built-in smart logic that manages duptiddbod glucose readings from a user’s pump anadbfucose meter to ensure report
accuracy. t:connect also can generate color-codguhg and interactive, multi-dimensional reportg thake it easy to identify therapy
management trends, problems and successes. Thesix different report options, including a dashidosherapy timeline, blood glucose
trends, activity summary, notes and logbook andgoeeitings. While our insulin pumps hold the dataayated over a period of up to 90 days
once a user uploads to t:connect their therapy geanant information is retained for as long as tte¢gin an account. t:connect maintains the
highest standards of patient data privacy and sseldoon secure, Health Insurance Portability antbAotability Act of 1996, or HIPAA,
compliant servers.

e [

55

t:connect Diabetes Management Application

Products in Developmer
Our products in development support our strateggdas on both consumer and clinical needs. Weanéhte leverage our consumer-

focused approach and proprietary technology platfar continue to develop products targeted at diffesegments of the insulin-dependent
diabetes market.
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t:slim G4™ |nsulin Pump with an Integrated CGM System

We have entered into a development and commeraiglizagreement with DexCom, Inc., or DexCom, whpobvides us a non-
exclusive license to integrate our product platfevith the DexCom G4 PLATINUM Continuous Glucose Nton t:slim G4 insulin pump wit
an integrated CGM System, or t:slim G4, which weehpreviously referenced as t:sensor , will incoap® the same pump technology and use
interface as t:slim. It will provide the added cenience of allowing CGM information to be display@dthe pump, eliminating the need to
carry an additional device. Based on this infororgtusers will be able to utilize the pump to tdkect action with their insulin pump therapy.
In addition, we intend to update t:connect in oredisplay the additional CGM data that is coleton the pump and for other functionality
associated with t:slim G4.

CGM is a therapy used in conjunction with bloodogise testing, and will provide users with real-tiaceess to their glucose levels as
well as trend information. Close Concerns estimttasapproximately 10% of people with type 1 diekause CGM. We believe that CGM
utilization will be increased by offering an acagr& GM sensor in combination with an innovative andsumeffocused insulin pump, such
t:slim.

We submitted a pre-market approval, or PMA, apfibeefor t:slim G4 with the FDA in July 2014 andtaipate a 12 to 18 month
review cycle. The application referenced the PMAraped DexCom G4 PLATINUM and the 510(k)-cleareddim, and provided information
regarding the safety and effectiveness of t:slim G PMA application also included t:connect, vihidgll allow users to view data retrieved
from the t:slim G4 on the user’s computer.

Odyssey Web-based Software Updates

Odyssey is the development name for our proprie®&yand Macompatible web based system that is being develtipaliow users t
update their pump’s software in their home envirenmsimilar to a smartphone. We are positioneaffier this capability with our product’s
modern and convenient micro-USB connection. Suligetiture regulatory approvals, we anticipate bdyssey will allow users to update
their pump software to continue to enhance thgieernce with our products.

We intend to submit a 510(k) submission for Odysadfe fourth quarter of 2015.
t:sport Insulin Delivery System

The t:sport Insulin Delivery System, or t:sportb&ing designed for people who seek even greaderadion and flexibility with the use
of their insulin pump by further reducing the saf@he insulin pump and controlling its operatitinaugh a mobil e device application. We are
developing a compact insulin pump capable of comoatimg wirelessly with a mobile device, such asyartphone, which will be used to
program its operations instead of a touchscreeth@udevice. By leveraging our current te chnolokatfprm, including our existing
touchscreen , software and user interface , weekve are uniquely positioned to offer customersresistent interface between our product
offerings and their mobile device, which will allawar pumps to continu e to be easy to use by cua®and easy to train by healthcare
providers , while also further reducing the sizd aisibility of the pumps.

The FDA issuedRadio Frequency Wireless Technology in Medical BeviGuidancé August 2013. At this time, there is not a
predicate device for an insulin pump wirelesslytoolied through a mobile device application.

Automated Insulin Delivery

The concept of an artificial pancreas system géigeravolves an external device, or combinatiordelices, intended to aid a person
with insulin-dependent diabetes by automaticalstitg) and controlling their blood glucose throufl &dministration of insulin by itself or in
combination with a second hormone. This may beeaeltile by combining an insulin pump and a CGM, wsitphisticated computer software
that allows the two devices to automatically comioate to determine and provide the right amournhsdlin, or insulin plus another hormone,
at the correct time.

We have supported leading researchers at faciitieh as the University of Virginia, Boston UnivigrsMassachusetts General Hospital
and Stanford University by providing pump hardwanel software to advance development of artificealgreas solutions. Within our
commercial t:slim product there is a bligsth low energy radio (BLE) that is not enabledJuly 2013, we submitted a Master File to the F
allowing researchers to use the t:slim technolodl the BLE enabled. This device provides reseascihvreless use of our device with their
selected algorithm and CGM for single hormone @l dwwrmone clinical studies.
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We anticipate our first commercial artificial paeas offering will be based on our proprietary tedbgy platform and will partially
automate insulin delivery based on CGM informatife believe partial automated insulin delivery banachieved through predictive
algorithms that aid a user in maintaining theigéded blood glucose level, thereby reducing thgueacy and severity of hyperglycemic or
hypoglycemic events and the associated short aggdtlerm complications.

We believe our first commercial artificial pancredering will require PMA approval and that thebsnission will include data from or
or more clinical studies. We anticipate filing awestigational device exemption, or IDE, with tHeArin 2015 for the clinical study involving
a first generation product with the capability affal automation of insulin delivery.

t:dual Infusion System

In January 2013, we announced a strategic reldtipngith Juvenile Diabetes Research Foundation @08 develop the t:dual
Infusion System, or t:dual, which is being desigt®fe a first-of-its-kind, dual-chamber infusionnpp for the management of diabetes. The
collaboration agreement with JDRF is designed telgcate the development of a fully automatediedif pancreas system that has the
capability of delivering other hormone therapiesdmjunction with insulin. We believe that our umégMicro-Delivery Technology is
particularly well suited for providing two-hormottgerapy in a compact and sleek design, and tha¢@syr-to-use touchscreen and software
architecture are customizable for the needs of-theabpy regimens. However, U-100 insulin is cutisetihe only hormone indicated for use in
pumps by the FDA for the management of diabetesd@/eot believe alternative hormones will be conuiadlly available for use in pumps in
the next several years.

Sales and Marketing
Our sales and marketing objectives are to:

e generate demand and acceptance for t:slim, tihekfuture products developed with our technolplggform among people with
insulin-dependent diabetes; a

e promote advocacy and support for healthcare prosi

As of December 31, 2014, we had a sales, cliniedlraarketing team of approximately 160 full-timemayees. In 2014, we expanded
our sales and, clinical organization from 36 ta&@itories. Each territory within our sales orgation consists of a territory manager and a
clinical diabetes specialist who as a team cakieaiocrinologists, primary care physicians, cedifigabetes educators and potential customer:
Based on historical sales force performance, weexpost of the new territory managers to reach fteady state level of sales performance
within nine to twelve months from their date oféehiOur sales team is augmented by individuals ircastomer sales support organization whe
follow up on leads generated through promotiontiVdies and educate people on the benefits ofpsaprietary technology and products. As
t:slim market penetration continues to build momemtand as we launch new products into the mairkatjding t:flex, we expect to further
expand our sales and marketing infrastructureerli.thited States and may evaluate international certiadization opportunities.

In addition, as of December 31, 2014, we had execagreements with more than 30 independent distrig. For the year ended
December 31, 2014, Edgepark Medical Supplies, €S Medical, Inc. and Byram Healthcare, all indefent distributors, accounted for
16.0%, 11.6% and 10.9% of our sales, respecti¥aythe year ended December 31, 2013, EdgeparkddleSupplies, Inc. and CCS Medical,
Inc., both independent distributors, accountedltad % and 13.6% of our sales, respectively . Ndreipindependent distributors has been
required to sell our products exclusively and eafcthem may freely sell the products of our contpesi. Our distributor agreements generally
have one-year initial terms with automatic one-yreaewal terms, and are terminable in connectidh wiparty’s material breach.

We expect our sales will fluctuate on a quartedgib in the future due to a variety of factors|udig seasonality and the impact of the
buying patterns of our distributors and other comgrs. We believe that our sales are subject taesahfuctuation due to the impact of annual
deductible and coinsurance requirements associdteanost medical insurance plans utilized by autividual customers and the individual
customers of our distributors. For example, ovesébr the first quarter of 2014 represented apprately 16% of our total sales for 2014 and
overall 2014 sales were weighted heavily towarésstcond half of the year. We expect seasonalltyhewe a similar impact on our sales in
2015.

Healthcare provider focused initiativesiealthcare providers are a critical resource ipingl patients understand and select their
diabetes therapy options. Each of our territosesupported by a clinical diabetes specialist vehe ¢ertified diabetes educator and holds eithe
a registered nurse or registered dietician lice@se.clinical diabetes specialists support and attubealthcare providers on our products and
proprietary technology, certify healthcare provaltr train people to use our products and supportestomers with initial training following
the purchase of our products.
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In addition to calling on healthcare providershrit offices, some of our recent marketing initiesi include:

e presentations and product demonstrations at,loegilonal, and national tradeshows, including Aogar Diabetes Association
Scientific Sessions and the American AssociatioBiabetes Educators Annual Meetil

e our Demonstration Unit Program, through whichpxevide healthcare professionals with our prodémt@ump demonstrations to
their patients; an

e partnerships with third-party diabetes manageragsiems for the display of t:slim pump data, idahg diasend® Clinic and
Tidepool.

Consumer-focused initiativedVe sell our products directly to consumers throtgfbrrals from healthcare providers and througbddea
generated through our promaotional activities. Oteal-to-consumer marketing efforts focus on positig our products as innovative,
consumer-focused insulin pumps with a unique Midadivery Technology, slim touchscreen design anéhauitive user interface that were
designed to meet different needs in the diabetesramity. Some of our recent consumer-focused meugkétitiatives include:

e participation at consumer-focused regional diebebnferences and events including the JDRF TygeNation Summits, the
American Diabetes Association Expos, Children Vilithbetes Friends for Life and Taking Control Of Y@iabetes, or TCOYD,
conferences and local diabetes can

e website enhancements and utilization of sociaimenline video modules and consumer-focused le¢i@ss to drive online
awareness and expand web prese

e corporate sponsorships of organizations focusepeople with diabetes, including JDRF, TCOYD, it#ds Hands Foundation,
Students with Diabetes, College Diabetes NetwoibBtes Scholars; a1

e community diabetes fundraising and awareness e\

In the first quarter of 2015, we launched t:simoilad free mobile application intended to illustréte t:slim user interface for customers
exploring diabetes treatment options. The touclescom our technology platform uniquely positions products for simulation on a mobile
application and will also allow users to contacbmpany representative and access additional pasgurces, such as product specifications,
glossary and safety and disclaimer information.

Branding. We developed our comprehensive branding strategpgage consumers and communicate our identitynasdarn and
progressive company that works “in tandenith the diabetes community, healthcare provideus,employees and business partners. We !
to embody this through our product offerings, ménrgefforts and interactions throughout our busméur product names are family brande
using a “t:;” to create uniformity and help consumeuickly identify our products. Our “touch simpti¢ marketing campaign highlights the
slim touchscreen design and easy-to-navigate softv@ur other product packaging, website, advedisind promotional materials are a
reflection of our consumer-focused approach andamostyle. We value having clear, friendly and hdlpommunications throughout our
business.

Training and Customer Care

Given the chronic nature of diabetes, and the piaiéhcomplicated dynamic of health insurance qage, training and customer care is
important for developing long-term relationshipgshwour customers. Our customer care infrastruatansists of individuals focused on
training, technical services and insurance vetifica We believe our consumer-focused approachlesais to develop a personal relationship
with the customer, or potential customer, beginniitly the process of evaluating our products, thavigating insurance coverage and
extending to our provision of training and ongosupport. Providing reliable and effective ongoimgtomer support reduces anxiety, imprc
our customers’ overall experiences with our proslactd helps reinforce our positive reputation endirabetes community. In order to provide
complete training and customer care solutions,everbge the expertise of our clinical diabetesigfists who provide one-oone training, an
we offer ongoing complementary technical serviesswell as ongoing support with insurance verifozat

Training. Our research has shown that it can take severalfday user to competently learn how to use attoaal pump, leading to

frustration, frequent mistakes and additional fraineach of which may ultimately discourage admmtiAs a result, we believe that healthcare
providers may be less likely to recommend pumpaieto potential candidates.
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By offering an intuitive user interface, we belidwealthcare providers will be able to train pedplese our products more efficiently
than traditional pumps, and will have a higher éegof confidence in their patients ability to operig including the more advanced feature
addition, the intuitive nature of t:slim and t:fliékely will allow healthcare providers to spenddetime teaching a person how to use their
and more time helping to improve the managemetteaif diabetes. This ease of training may also hebgs feel less intimidated and fearfu
pump therapy, leading to increased adoption an#ehaxpansion.

We tailor our training efforts for insulin pump usend healthcare providers. In some cases, aucalitraining managers may certify
clinic-based healthcare providers to train thetiquas on our products. In other cases, a membeuotlinical team will conduct one-on-one
training on our products with the customer. We halge established a network of independent, lia¢osetified diabetes educators who have
been certified to train on our products and wilhdact customer training on our behalf.

Technical ServicesWe believe that a difficult-to-use pump will resutusers making more frequent calls to the pumpufecturer or
their healthcare provider for support in using deeice. This can be frustrating for the customet ewstly for the pump manufacturer as we
for the healthcare provider. We expect the inteitiature of our products to result in fewer calterf users requesting support from our
technical services team or their healthcare provide

Our customer-focused technical services team pesvédipport seven days a week, 24 hours a day lyeeing questions, trouble-
shooting and addressing issues or concerns. Quiirinsump products are covered by a four-year wayréhat includes our 24-hour product
replacement program through which our technicalises team members can provide a customer witplagement device within 24 hours to
minimize the interruption to their therapy.

Insurance Verification.Our insurance verification team provides suppofidip customers, and potential customers, undetskeair
insurance benefits. We work with the customer &edr thealthcare provider to collect informationuiqd by the insurance provider and to
determine their insurance benefit coverage forppaducts and notify them of their benefit.

Following communication of a person’s estimate@ficial responsibility, final confirmation of thelesire to purchase the device and
method of fulfillment, the customer’s order is tyglily shipped to their home. The initial order gexig contains their insulin pump as well as a
90-day supply of infusion sets and cartridges. Anter of the team then contacts the customer prithid end of their 90-day supply to re-
verify their insurance benefits and assist in reardy supplies.

Third-Party Reimbursement

Customer orders are typically fulfilled by billingird-party payors on behalf of our customers,putilizing our network of distributors
who then bill third-party payors on our customdashalf. Our fulfillment and reimbursement systemesfally integrated such that our products
are shipped only after receipt of a valid physitgawder and verification of current health inswarinformation.

We are accredited by the Community Health AccréiditaProgram and are an approved Medicare provilfercurrently bill t:slim and
its associated supplies using existing Healthcamai@on Procedure Coding System codes for which Medireimbursement is well
established. Over the last ten years, Medicarelngisement rates for insulin pumps and disposabtedges have remained relatively
unchanged. However, Medicare has recently begueview its reimbursement practices for diabeteateel products. Medicare implemented &
competitive bidding process for blood glucose steipnbursement, which resulted in a significantuetibn in the reimbursement rate for those
products. Medicare also initiated a competitivedinid process for insulin pumps in limited geograshiAs a result, there is some uncertainty
as to the future Medicare reimbursement rate forcawent and future products.

We intend to bill t:flex and its associated supplimder the same Healthcare Common Procedure C8gistgm codes as t:slim.
However, pump eligibility criteria for people withipe 2 diabetes can be different and often requaidettional documentation and laboratory
testing to gain in-network insurance reimbursentbemefits, which may slow the adoption of t:flex.

As of December 31, 2014, we had entered into comialerontracts with more than 70 national and regidhird-party payors to
establish reimbursement for t:slim, its disposalalgridges and other related supplies. We areaisently in the process of approaching these
and other third-party payors to discuss reimburserfoe t:flex. We employ a team of managed care agens who are responsible for
negotiating and securing contracts with third-padyors throughout the United States. For the gaded December 31, 2014, approximately
20% of our sales were generated through our dihérct-party payor contracts.
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If we are not contracted with a person’s third-pg@yor and in-network status cannot be otherwitaioed, then to the extent possible
we utilize distribution channels so our customersiers can be serviced. As of December 31, 201hade=xecuted distributor agreements
with more than 30 distributors. In some casesnbtiall, this network of distributors allows usaocess people who are covered by commerci
payors with whom we are not contracted, at in-netwates that are generally more affordable foreaustomers.

Manufacturing and Quality Assurance

We currently manufacture our products at our headqts in San Diego, California. By locating ourmatacturing operations near our
other business functions, we believe we have sigmitly enhanced our ability to monitor and managemanufacturing, and to adjust
manufacturing operations quickly in response tolginess needs.

We currently utilize a semi-automated manufactupracess for our pump products and disposableidges. The pump production line
requires approximately 12 manufacturing assemlaledslimited support staff to run the line and resch maximum output of approximately
20,000 pumps per year on a single shift. Disposednléridges are manufactured on a productionthagrequires 12 to 20 manufacturing
operators and limited support staff and reachesximum output of approximately 1,000,000 cartridgesyear on a single shift. We are
actively working on improving the fficiency of our disposable cartridge manufactunprgcess. For instance, we are currently workingatals
manufacturing t:flex cartridges primarily using theeme semi-automated manufacturing equipment usthe imanufacture of t:slim cartridges.
In addition, we are in the process of further awting the manufacturing of our disposable cartridge

The cartridge automation equipment was designegéoate at capacity. As such, the line was consltluia several modular sections
that perform different aspects of the assemblys Thimportant because at any given time, maintemaservice or inspection can be performe
on any one section independent of the rest ofitlee The manufacturing process may then continugtemmupted while the assembly step is
performed manually until the automation sectiobdsk on-line.

With our existing pump and cartridge productiorenwe have the capacity to significantly increasemanufacturing output. We can
replicate these production lines within our curragility to further increase our manufacturing aeity and we currently intend to install
additional equipment for the automated manufactuohour disposable cartridges over the next sigighteen months. Due to shared product
design features, our production system is easéytable to new products. We intend to reduce ooyt cost and drive operational
efficiencies by leveraging this scalable, flexiblanufacturing infrastructure.

Outside suppliers are the source for most of tmepmments and some sub-assemblies in the produaftiour insulin pumps. Any sole
and single source supplier is managed throughuppler management program that is focused on iedwipply chain risk. Key aspects of
this program include managing component inventorfyduse and at the supplier, contractual requirésrfenlast time buy opportunities and
second sourcing approaches for specific suppligssically, our outside vendors produce the comptsiemour specifications and in many
instances to our designs. Our suppliers are augaeddically by our quality department to ensuvaformity with the specifications, policies
and procedures for our devices. Members of ourityudépartment also inspect our devices at vargteps during the manufacturing cycle to
facilitate compliance with our devices’ stringepesifications.

We have received certification from BSI Group, aified Body to the International Standards Orgatigrg or ISO, of our quality
system. This ISO 13485 certification includes designtrol requirements. Certain processes utilingtle manufacturing and testing of our
devices have been verified and validated as redjbyehe FDA and other regulatory bodies. As a emdievice manufacturer, our
manufacturing facility and the facilities of ouestization and other critical suppliers are subgecperiodic inspection by the FDA and certain
corresponding state agencies. Recently, the ingpeassociated with the t:slim G4 PMA was completed

Research and Development
Our research and development team includes emayke specialize in software engineering, mechéeitgineering, electrical
engineering, fluid dynamics and graphical userfate design, many of whom have considerable eapeeiin diabetes-related products. Our

research and development team focuses on the onsrimprovement and support of current produerofgs, as well as our products in
development.

19




We have entered into a development and commeraiaiz agreement with DexCom, which provides usm@@xclusive license to
integrate the DexCom G4 PLATINUM with t:slim G4 d¢hy the term of the agreement. The license coverdnited States, and such other
territories as may be added from time to time. \&fel DexCom $1.0 million at the commencement ofdbiéaboration, and a $1.0 million
milestone payment in July 2014, which related tosubmission of a PMA application for the t:slim Gvhich we have previously referenced
as t:sensor, to the FDA. The payments wei@corded as research and development costs. Waakie one additional $1.0

million payment upon the achievement of certairestibnes. We have agreed to pay DexCom a royalty paymertdramount of
$100 for each integrated system sold. Additionadlg,will reimburse DexCom up to $1.0 million of development costs and are responsible
for our own development costs and expenses. Oeeaggnt with DexCom runs until January 4, 2017, wittomatic one-year renewals. Prior
to the commercial launch of t:slim G4, either partsty terminate the agreement without cause prowvidgikhe party requesting the termina
must reimburse the other party for up to $1.0 willof previously incurred development expensedofihg the commercial launch of t:slim
G4, either party may terminate the agreement witbause upon 18 months prior notice. In additiarthe event of a change of control of
either party, the other party may unilaterally etecterminate the agreement at any time, subgelinited ongoing obligations.

We have also entered into a research, development@mmercialization agreement with JDRF to develamal drug infusion pump
designed to deliver both insulin and a second haarar drug. Under this agreement, JDRF will provigiearch funding of up to $3.0 million
payable upon reaching certain performance-basesstoites. Through December 31, 2014, we have reteit@al of $0.7 million from JDRF
under this agreement. Under the terms of the agreewe have agreed to pay JDRF a royalty calallasea percentage of each dual drug
infusion pump we sell until JDRF has received rigyphyments equal to three times the amount ofifgnthat we receive from JDRF under
this agreement. Thereafter, no royalty paymentsh&ildue under the agreement. Either party mayiteten the agreement without cause at an
time upon 90 days prior notice, provided that if iaminate the agreement without cause prior to/2ffen we may be required to pay JDRF
two times the amount we have received from JDRér poi such termination, and if we terminate thesagrent without cause after that date w
may be required to pay JDRF three times the amwarttave received from JDRF. Any intellectual prayeeveloped by either party in the
performance of this agreement will be owned oresigkly licensed by us.

Intellectual Property

We have made protection of our intellectual proparstrategic priority. We rely on a combinationcopyright, patent, trademark, trade
secret and other intellectual property laws, na@tldisure agreements and other measures to proteptaprietary rights.

As of December 31, 2014, our patent portfolio cstesl of approximately 32 issued U.S. patents anges8ing U.S. patent applications.
Of these, our issued U.S. patents expire betweprogimately 2021 and 2031. We are also seekinghpatetection for our proprietary
technology in other countries throughout the wovltk also have eight pending U.S. trademark appdicatand six pending foreign trademark
applications, as well as 14 trademark registratioduding four U.S. trademark registrations a@n foreign trademark registrations.

In July 2012, we entered into an agreement withtissriViedical pursuant to which we were granted,uflhocertain assignments and
certain non-exclusive and exclusive, worldwidelyfplaid-up, royalty-free licenses, certain righigpatents and patent applications related to
ambulatory infusion pumps and related softwareanwssories for the treatment of diabetes. We dgoegay $5.0 million in license fees and
to share equally any associated sublicense revemeiesay receive. As of December 31, 2014, we haditpa initial license fees in full and
have not entered into any sublicense agreements.

Our development and commercialization agreemertit BxCom provides us with a non-exclusive licemmsimtegrate the DexCom G4
PLATINUM into t:slim G4. For additional informatigrsee “Research and Development.”

Competition
The medical device industry is intensely compegitisubject to rapid change and highly sensitivihéantroduction of new products or
other market activities of industry participantse Wbmpete with a number of companies that manufaatsulin delivery devices, such as

Medtronic MiniMed, a division of Medtronic, Inc.,Mmas Corporation, a division of Johnson & John&wche Diagnostics, a division of F.
Hoffman-La Roche Ltd., and Insulet Corporation.
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Many of our competitors are either publicly tradesnpanies or divisions or subsidiaries of publichded companies with significantly
more market share and resources than we have. Mahgse companies have several competitive adgastaver us, including greater
financial resources for sales and marketing andymbdevelopment, established relationships witidtheare providers and third-party payors
and larger and more established distribution néta«dn some instances, our competitors also offedyrcts that include features that we do
currently offer. For instance, Insulet offers asulin pump with a tubeless delivery system thaisduat utilize an infusion set, and Medtronic
currently offers a traditional insulin pump thainsegrated with a CGM system and a recently apgildtireshold suspend feature.

In addition, we face competition from a number ofmpanies, medical researchers and existing phautieaecompanies that are
pursuing new delivery devices, delivery technoleggensing technologies, procedures, drugs and thix@peutics for the monitoring,
treatment and prevention of diabetes.

Government Regulation

Our products are medical devices subject to externrsigulation by the FDA, corresponding state rauy authorities and, if we
commence international sales, other regulatorydsouti other countries. The Federal Food, Drug as&h@tic Act, or FDCA, and the FDA’s
implementing regulations govern:

e product design and developme

e pre-clinical and clinical testing

e establishment registration and product listi

e product manufacturing

e labeling and storag:

e pre-market clearance or approval; advertising and ptamg
e product sales and distributic

e recalls and field safety corrective actions; .

e servicing and po-market surveillance

FDA's Pre-Market Clearance and Approval Requirementnless an exemption applies, each new or signifigamodified medical
device we seek to commercially distribute in thetébh States will require either a pre-market noéfion under Section 510(k) of the FDCA,
also referred to as a 510(k) clearance, or appifosal the FDA through the PMA process. Both the(k)L@learance and PMA processes ca
expensive, lengthy and require payment of significeser fees, unless an exemption is available.

The FDA classifies medical devices into one of ¢htkasses. Devices requiring fewer controls becteseare deemed to pose lower
are placed in Class | or Il. Class | devices atgesit to general controls such as labeling, preketanotification and adherence to the FDA's
Quality System Regulation, or QSR, which cover nfacturers’ methods and documentation of the deségting, production, control quality
assurance, labeling, packaging, sterilization,agferand shipping of products. Class Il devicesabgect to special controls such as
performance standards, post-market surveillancé, §liidelines, or particularized labeling, as wallgeneral controls. Some Class | and Clas
Il devices are exempted by regulation from the ElLBlgarance requirement, and the requirement wipliance with substantially all of the
QSR. t:slim and t:connect received FDA clearanc€lass Il devices, and we anticipate t:flex wi@be considered a Class Il device. A PMA
application is required for devices deemed by thé Fo pose the greatest risk, such as life-sustgirife-supporting or certain implantable

devices, or those that are “not substantially egjeit” either to a device previously cleared thiotige 510(k) process or to a “preamendment’
Class Il device in commercial distribution befdviay 28, 1976 when PMA applications were not regiire
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We first obtained 510(k) clearance for t:slim invémber 2011. Subsequently, in October 2014, wavedé&10(k) clearance for the
updated t:slim, which included software modificagdor feature enhancements. t:slim is one ofitiseifisulin pumps to be cleared under the
FDA's Infusion Pump Improvement Initiative. Infusipumps are one of the most commonly recalled categof medical devices, often as a
result of deficiencies in device design and enginge The Infusion Pump Improvement Initiative igended to improve the current pre-marke
and post-market regulatory processes and requitsrmassociated with infusion pumps and other horeemedical devices. As part of this
effort, the FDA is reviewing the adverse event répg and recall processes for insulin pumps.

We obtained 510(k) clearance for t:connect in Fetyr2013 and for t:flex in January 2015.

We filed a PMA application with the FDA for t:sli@4 in July 2014 and anticipate a 12 to 18 montlesg\cycle. The application
provided new information on how t:slim G4 interfaceith the DexCom PLATINUM G4 sensors and transenitand with t:connect, as well as
human factors testing completed on the CGM disptagens.

A PMA application must be supported by valid sdfemevidence that typically includes extensiveheital, pre-clinical, clinical,
manufacturing and labeling data, to demonstratead-DA’s satisfaction the safety and efficacytwd tlevice. A PMA application also must
include a complete description of the device asdd@mponents, a detailed description of the metHadsities and controls used to
manufacture the device, and proposed labelingr AffeMA application is submitted and found to b#isiently complete, the FDA begins an
in-depth review of the submitted information. Duyithis review period, the FDA may request additionformation or clarification of
information already provided. Also during the reviperiod, an advisory panel of experts from outsideFDA may be convened to review i
evaluate the application and provide recommendsatiothe FDA. In addition, the FDA generally witlreduct a pre-approval inspection of the
manufacturing facility to evaluate compliance wQBR, which requires manufacturers to implementfatiow design, testing, control,
documentation and other quality assurance procedure

FDA review of a PMA application generally takesvbeén one and three years, but may take significéomiger. The FDA can delay,
limit or deny approval of a PMA application for mareasons, including:

e systems may not be safe or effective to the 's satisfaction

e the data from pi-clinical studies and clinical trials may be insaiffint to support approve

e the manufacturing process or facilities may not nagglicable requirements; a

e changes in FDA approval policies or adoption of megulations may require additional d¢

If an FDA evaluation of a PMA application is favbte, the FDA will issue either an approval letmrapprovable letter, which usually
contains a number of conditions that must be metdier to secure final approval of the PMA. Whed #rihose conditions have been fulfilled
to the satisfaction of the FDA, the agency willissa PMA approval letter authorizing commercial keéing of a device, subject to the
conditions of approval and the limitations estdt#id in the approval letter. If the FDA's evaluatmfra PMA application or manufacturing
facilities is not favorable, the FDA will deny appal of the PMA or issue a not approvable lettdre FDA also may determine that additional
tests or clinical trials are necessary, in whickecthe PMA approval may be delayed for several hwoot years while the trials are conducted
and data is submitted in an amendment to the PNW&.AMA process can be expensive, uncertain andhigiagd a number of devices for
which FDA approval has been sought by other congzanave never been approved by the FDA for maidketin

New PMA applications or PMA supplements may be megufor modifications to the manufacturing progdabeling, device
specifications, materials or design of a device llas been approved through the PMA process. PNdalsments often require submission of
the same type of information as an initial PMA aggtion, except that the supplement is limitednf@imation needed to support any changes
from the device covered by the approved PMA appticeand may or may not require as extensive teethior clinical data or the convening
an advisory panel.
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Clinical trials are typically required to supporPMA application and are sometimes required fot@(Kk) clearance. These trials
generally require submission of an applicationaiodDE to the FDA. The IDE application must be supgd by appropriate data, such as
animal and laboratory testing results, showing ithiatsafe to test the device in humans and thateésting protocol is scientifically sound. The
IDE application must be approved in advance byRDA for a specified number of patients, unlessgtaduct is deemed a non-significant risk
device and eligible for abbreviated IDE requirensef@enerally, clinical trials for a significantkidevice may begin once the IDE applicatic
approved by the FDA and the study protocol andrinfd consent are approved by appropriate institaticeview boards at the clinical trial
sites. The FDA'’s approval of an IDE allows clinitasting to go forward, but it does not bind theARD accept the results of the trial as
sufficient to prove the product’s safety and effizaeven if the trial meets its intended successré@. All clinical trials must be conducted in
accordance with the FDA'’s IDE regulations that gov@vestigational device labeling, prohibit promeat and specify an array of
recordkeeping, reporting and monitoring responisigdl of study sponsors and study investigatori€zl trials must further comply with the
FDA's regulations for institutional review boardpapval and for informed consent and other humaiestiprotections. Required records and
reports are subject to inspection by the FDA. Tsults of clinical testing may be unfavorable eereif the intended safety and efficacy
success criteria are achieved, may not be consicgerfficient for the FDA to grant approval or cleace of a product. The commencement or
completion of any clinical trial may be delayedhatted, or be inadequate to support approval d¥la Bpplication, for numerous reasons,
including, but not limited to, the following:

e the FDA or other regulatory authorities do not awera clinical trial protocol or a clinical triady place a clinical trial on holc

patients do not enroll in clinical trials at thee&xpected

e patients do not comply with trial protoco

e patient follow-up is not at the rate expectt

e patients experience adverse side effe

e patients die during a clinical trial, even thoubhkit death may not be related to the productsatepart of our trial
e institutional review boards and th-party clinical investigators may delay or rejed thal protocol;

e third-party clinical investigators decline to fiéipate in a trial or do not perform a trial oretanticipated schedule or consistent
with the clinical trial protocol, good clinical préices or other FDA requiremen

e we or third-party organizations do not perforntadeollection, monitoring and analysis in a timelyaccurate manner or consistent
with the clinical trial protocol or investigationat statistical plans

e third-party clinical investigators have signifitdinancial interests related to us or our stutt the FDA deems to make the study
results unreliable, or the company or investigatails¢o disclose such interes

e regulatory inspections of our clinical trialsmenufacturing facilities, which may, among othéndfs, require us to undertake
corrective action or suspend or terminate our cdihirials;

e changes in governmental regulations or adminisgactions
e the interim or final results of the clinical triate inconclusive or unfavorable as to safety dcadfy; anc
e the FDA concludes that our trial design is inadeégua demonstrate safety and effice

Other Regulatory Requirement&ven after a device receives clearance or appeonis placed in commercial distribution, numerous
regulatory requirements apply. These include:

e establishment registration and device listi
e QSR, which requires manufacturers, includingddparty manufacturers, to follow stringent desigsting, production, control,

supplier/contractor selection, complaint handlisgcumentation and other quality assurance procedlueng all aspects of the
manufacturing proces
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e labeling regulations that prohibit the promotmfrproducts for uncleared, unapproved or “off-l&heles, and impose other
restrictions on labeling, advertising and promati

e MDR regulations, which require that manufactureport to the FDA if their device may have causedontributed to a death or
serious injury or malfunctioned in a way that woliketly cause or contribute to a death or seriajigry if the malfunction were to
recur;

e voluntary and mandatory device recalls to addreslems when a device is defective and could bskato health; an

e corrections and removals reporting regulatiortsictvrequire that manufacturers report to the Fizidfcorrections and product
recalls or removals if undertaken to reduce atashkealth posed by the device or to remedy a vaiaif the FDCA that may
present a risk to healt

Also, the FDA may require us to conduct post-maskeveillance studies or establish and maintaiystesn for tracking our products
through the chain of distribution to the patientdle The FDA and the Food and Drug Branch of thif@aia Department of Health Services
enforce regulatory requirements by conducting plicicunannounced inspections and market surve#laimspections may include the
manufacturing facilities of our subcontractors.

In January 2014, we implemented a voluntary remfadelect lots of cartridges used with t:slim thety be at risk of leaking. A cartridge
leak could potentially result in the delivery obtmuch or too little insulin, which could lead toaxpected high or low blood glucose levels.
Too much insulin can result in severe low bloodasugr hypoglycemia, and too little insulin candda severe high blood sugar, or
hyperglycemia, both of which can lead to seriogsrinor death. We notified the FDA of the recalbgoromptly notified our customers and
of our independent distributors that may have rekaffected cartridges. The cause of the recalidentified during our internal product
testing and related to a certain piece of equiprasetl to test cartridges after they are manufattiviee have modified our cartridge testing
process to prevent this issue from occurring inftiere and the FDA has determined that the résadirminated.

Of the lots that were recalled, an aggregate of@apmately 13,000 boxes were shipped to customedsstributors. We are replacing
any affected cartridges at no additional chargeotigh December 31, 2014, we have replaced appréeiyn® 000 boxes of affected cartridg
We are uncertain whether additional boxes of tfiecs#d lots will be returned in the future. In adh, we have removed additional material
that was in our internal inventory at the timetwd tecall, including finished goods and work inqass, that we determined was not sellable
have segregated it in a different location.

In general, failure to comply with applicable reafoiry requirements can result in enforcement astinthe FDA and other regulatory
agencies. These may include any of the followingcBans or consequences:

e warning letters or untitled letters that requirereotive action

e fines and civil penalties

e unanticipated expenditure

e delays in approving or refusal to approve futuredpicts;

e FDA refusal to issue certificates to foreign goveemts needed to export products for sale in otbentries;
e suspension or withdrawal of FDA clearance or apak

e product recall or seizur

e interruption of productior

e operating restrictions

e injunctions; anc

e criminal prosecution
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We and our contract manufacturers, specificatioreligprers and some suppliers of components or dewicessories, also are required tc
manufacture our products in compliance with cur@obd Manufacturing Practice, or GMP, requiremeetsforth in the QSR. The QSR
requires a quality system for the design, manufacpackaging, labeling, storage, installation andiserg of marketed devices, and it inclu
extensive requirements with respect to quality gangent and organization, device design, buildiegsjpment, purchase and handling of
components or services, production and processatsnpackaging and labeling controls, device eatidun, distribution, installation, complai
handling, servicing, and record keeping. The FDAleates compliance with the QSR through periodeEnmounced inspections that may
include the manufacturing facilities of our subcantors. If the FDA believes that we or any of oantract manufacturers, or regulated
suppliers, are not in compliance with these reaquoéets, it can shut down our manufacturing operatiogquire recall of our products, refuse tc
approve new marketing applications, institute lggrateedings to detain or seize products, enjduréwiolations or assess civil and criminal
penalties against us or our officers or other eygxg.

Licensure.Several states require that durable medical equipme DME, providers be licensed in order to petiducts to patients in
that state. Some of these states require that Didders maintain an in-state location or retalitensed pharmacist, and in those states we
sell our products through a third-party distributdithough we believe we are in compliance with laggble state regulations regarding
licensure requirements, if we were found to be pamgliant, we could lose our licensure in that steteich could prohibit us from selling our
current or future products to patients in thatestht addition, we are subject to certain stateslesgarding professional licensure. We believe
that our certified diabetes educators are in ccanpk with all such state laws. However, if our edois or we were to be found non-compliant
in a given state, we may need to modify our apgrdagroviding education, clinical support and oasér service.

Fraud and Abuse LawsThere are numerous U.S. federal and state lawaipierg to healthcare fraud and abuse, includingkackback
laws and physician self-referral laws. Our relasioips with healthcare providers and other thirdipaiare subject to scrutiny under these laws
Violations of these laws are punishable by crimamad civil sanctions, including, in some instand@grisonment and exclusion from
participation in federal and state healthcare @ogy, including the Medicare, Medicaid and Veterddsninistration health programs.

Federal Anti-Kickback and Self-Referral Lawd.he Federal Anti-Kickback Statute prohibits perstrom knowingly and willfully
soliciting, receiving, offering or providing remuiagion, directly or indirectly, to induce eitheetheferral of an individual, or the furnishing,
recommending, or arranging of a good or servicewuich payment may be made under a federal heakharogram such as Medicare and
Medicaid. The definition of “remuneration” has bdmoadly interpreted to include anything of valunejuding such items as gifts, discounts,
the furnishing of supplies or equipment, crediaagements, waiver of payments and providing angthirless than its fair market value. The
Department of Health and Human Services, or HHS jsgued regulations, commonly known as safe haytiwat set forth certain provisions
which, if fully met, will assure healthcare provideand other parties that they will not be prosedumnder the federal Anti-Kickback Statute.
The failure of a transaction or arrangement tpri@cisely within one or more safe harbors doesiroessarily mean that it is illegal or that
prosecution will be pursued. However, conduct amsiriess arrangements that do not fully satisfy epgicable safe harbor may result in
increased scrutiny by government enforcement aititt®such as the HHS Office of Inspector General.

The penalties for violating the federal Anti-KicldkaStatute include imprisonment for up to five y&dines of up to $25,000 per
violation and possible exclusion from federal heedire programs such as Medicare and Medicaid. Mtatgs have adopted prohibitions
similar to the federal Antiickback Statute, some of which apply to the refkeof patients for healthcare services reimbursedrty source, n
only by the Medicare and Medicaid programs. Furttie Patient Protection and Affordable Care Astamended by the Health Care and
Education Affordability Reconciliation Act, or PPACamends the intent requirement of the federatlkinkback and criminal healthcare fre
statutes. A person or entity no longer needs te laatual knowledge of this statute or specificritte violate it. The PPACA also provides t
the government may assert that a claim includieg& or services resulting from a violation of thddral anti-kickback statute constitutes a
false or fraudulent claim for purposes of the fallséms statutes.

We provide the initial training to patients neceggar appropriate use of our products either tigloour own diabetes educators or by
contracting with outside diabetes educators the¢ templeted a Tandem pump training course. Outhateetes educators are reimbursed for
their services at fair market value. Although wéedse that these arrangements do not violate thedegulatory authorities may determine
otherwise, especially as enforcement of this lastdnically has been a high priority for the fedegavernment. In addition, because we may
provide some coding and billing information to phasers of our devices, and because we cannot gearidat the government will regard any
billing errors that may be made as inadvertentféderal anti-kickback legislation may be appliedis. Noncompliance with the federal anti-
kickback legislation could result in our exclusivpom Medicare, Medicaid or other governmental pamgs, restrictions on our ability to oper
in certain jurisdictions, and civil and criminalrties.
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Federal law also includes a provision commonly kn@s the “Stark Law,” which prohibits a physiciaarfi referring Medicare or
Medicaid patients to an entity providing “desigmabealth services,” including a company that furasdurable medical equipment, in which
the physician has an ownership or investment isterewith which the physician has entered int@@gensation arrangement. Violation of the
Stark Law could result in denial of payment, digganent of reimbursements received under a noncant@rrangement, civil penalties, and
exclusion from Medicare, Medicaid or other governtaéprograms. Although we believe that we havecstired our provider arrangements to
comply with current Stark Law requirements, thesaragements may not expressly meet the requirenfienépplicable exceptions from the
law.

Additionally, as some of these laws are still ewrrdy we lack definitive guidance as to the applaabf certain key aspects of these I
as they relate to our arrangements with providétis kespect to patient training. We cannot pretlietfinal form that these regulations will t¢
or the effect that the final regulations will hawe us. As a result, our provider and training ageanents may ultimately be found to be not in
compliance with applicable federal law.

Federal False Claims AcfThe Federal False Claims Act provides, in part, the federal government may bring a lawsuit aganyg
person whom it believes has knowingly presentedaosed to be presented, a false or fraudulenestdor payment from the federal
government, or who has made a false statemenedraifalse record to get a claim approved. In adgiamendments in 1986 to the Federal
False Claims Act have made it easier for privarigmto bring “qui tam” whistleblower lawsuits agst companies under the Federal False
Claims Act. Penalties include fines ranging from5§® to $11,000 for each false claim, plus threees the amount of damages that the feder:
government sustained because of the act of thabpeQui tam actions have increased significamtiyetent years, causing greater numbers o
healthcare companies to have to defend a false @afion, pay fines or be excluded from Medicarediaid or other federal or state
healthcare programs as a result of an investigatising out of such action. We believe that weenily are in compliance with the federal
government’s laws and regulations concerning tiregfiof reimbursement claims.

Civil Monetary Penalties LawThe Federal Civil Monetary Penalties Law prohiltits offering or transferring of remuneration to a
Medicare or Medicaid beneficiary that the persoovs or should know is likely to influence the beaiafry’s selection of a particular supplier
of Medicare or Medicaid payable items or servidésncompliance can result in civil money penaltiespto $10,000 for each wrongful act,
assessment of three times the amount claimed &brigsm or service and exclusion from the fedeeallthcare programs. We believe that our
arrangements comply with the requirements of ttaeFa Civil Monetary Penalties Law.

State Fraud and Abuse Provisionslany states have also adopted some form of antbkick and anti-referral laws and a false claims
act. We believe that we are in conformance to $amwis. Nevertheless, a determination of liabilitydansuch laws could result in fines and
penalties and restrictions on our ability to opeiatthese jurisdictions.

Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Aatf 1996.The Health Insurance Portability and Accountabifist of 1996, or
HIPAA, created two new federal crimes: healthcaaeid and false statements relating to healthcateersaThe healthcare fraud statute
prohibits knowingly and willfully executing a scherto defraud any healthcare benefit program, inoty@rivate payors. A violation of this
statute is a felony and may result in fines, imgmiment or exclusion from government sponsored progr The false statements statute
prohibits knowingly and willfully falsifying, con@ing or covering up a material fact or making amgterially false, fictitious or fraudulent
statement in connection with the delivery of or @yt for healthcare benefits, items or servicegiofation of this statute is a felony and may
result in fines or imprisonment. We believe weiarsubstantial compliance with the applicable HIPfg§ulations.

U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices AcThe U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, or FCPAhjliits U.S. corporations and their
representatives from offering, promising, authorgzor making corrupt payments, gifts or transferarty foreign government official,
government staff member, political party or polificandidate in an attempt to obtain or retainess abroad. The scope of the FCPA would
include interactions with certain healthcare prsif@sals in many countries.

International Regulation
We may evaluate international expansion opportemiti the future. International sales of medicaicks are subject to local
government regulations, which vary substantialbnfrcountry to country. The time required to obt@iproval in another country may be

longer or shorter than that required for FDA appitpand the requirements may differ. There is ad®wards harmonization of quality syst
standards among the European Union, United St@tesada and various other industrialized countries.
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The primary regulatory body in Europe is that af Buropean Union, which includes most of the magumtries in Europe. Other
countries, such as Switzerland, have voluntarilypaeld laws and regulations that mirror those ofEheopean Union with respect to medical
devices. The European Union has adopted numerecertisies and standards regulating the design, raatwre, clinical trials, labeling and
adverse event reporting for medical devices. Davibhat comply with the requirements of a relevargdtive will be entitled to bear the CE
conformity marking, indicating that the device cmmhs to the essential requirements of the appkcdivectives and, accordingly, can be
commercially distributed throughout Europe. The hodtof assessing conformity varies depending orlées of the product, but normally
involves a combination of self-assessment by theufseturer and a third-party assessment by a “NdtiBody.” This third-party assessment
may consist of an audit of the manufacturer’s dqualystem and specific testing of the manufactsrproduct. An assessment by a Notified
Body of one country within the European Union iguieed in order for a manufacturer to commercidilstribute the product throughout the
European Union. Additional local requirements mpglg on a country-by-country basis. Outside of Bugopean Union, regulatory approval
would need to be sought on a country-by-countryshiasorder for us to market our products.

Employees

As of December 31, 2014, we had 437 full-time emeés. None of our employees are represented blegtbee bargaining agreement,
and we have never experienced any work stoppagéélilere we have good relations with our employees.

Available Information

Our website addressyewvw.tandemdiabetes.coriVe post links to our website to the followingrfids as soon as reasonably practicable
after they are electronically filed with or furneshto the Securities and Exchange Commission,eo88#C: annual reports on Form 10-K,
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current report$-orm 8K, proxy statements, and any amendments to thgeeteefiled or furnished pursua
to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934, as amended. All such filings are awdéahrough our website free of
charge. However, the information contained on aeased through our website does not constituteopéints Annual Report, and references to
our website address in this Annual Report are inatextual references only.

Our filings may also be read and copied at the SEGQblic Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Wagsttin DC 20549. Information «
the operation of the Public Reference Room maytitaimed by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. TRE &lso maintains an internet site at
www.sec.govthat contains reports, proxy and information staets, and other information regarding issuersfiteaelectronically with the
SEC.
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ltem 1A. Risk Factors

An investment in our common stock involves ris&a.should consider carefully the risks describeldlwetogether with all of the other
information included in this Annual Report, as walin our other filings with the SEC, in evaluatiour business. If any of the following risks
actually occur, our business, financial conditioperating results and future prospects could beemalty and adversely affected. In that case,
the trading price of our common stock may decling you might lose all or part of your investmerte Tisks described below are not the only
ones we face. Additional risks that we currentlyndd know about or that we currently believe tdrhenaterial may also impair our business,
financial condition, operating results and prosped@ertain statements below are forw-looking statements. For additional informationese
“Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statenseh

Risks Relating to Our Business and our Industry
We have incurred significant operating losses sirineeption and cannot assure you that we will achéeprofitability.

Since our inception in January 2006 we have incuarsignificant net loss. As of December 31, 20lethad an accumulated deficit of
$248.7 million. To date, we have financed our opens primarily through sales of equity securitidsbt financing with Capital Royalty
Partners and certain of its affiliates, and safemuo products. We have devoted substantially fatluw resources to the research and
development of our products, the commercial lawfabur products, the development of a sales and@tiag team and the assembly of a
management team to manage our business.

We began commercial sales of t:slim in the thirdrtgr of 2012. Beginning in the first quarter ofl30we have been able to manufac
and sell t:slim at a cost and in volumes suffictendllow us to achieve a positive gross margim.tRe year ended December 31, 2014 and
2013, our gross profit was $15.2 million and $6iftiom, respectively. However, although we haveiaghd a positive gross margin, we still
operate at a substantial net loss and expect thatillicontinue to do so for the next several yearaddition, the launch of new products that
we manufacture and sell at lower volumes may neglgtimpact our gross margin in the future.

To implement our business strategy we need to, grotirer things, grow our sales and marketing itfuasure to increase sales of our
products, fund ongoing research and developmeivitaed, expand our manufacturing capabilities, abtain regulatory clearance or approval
to commercialize our products currently under depelent. We expect our expenses to increase significas we pursue these objectives.
extent of our future operating losses and the gnaihprofitability are highly uncertain, especiafiiven that we only recently expanded the size
of our sales, clinical and marketing infrastructanel that we expect to begin sales of our next ceroial product, t:flex, in the second quarter
of 2015, which makes forecasting our sales moffecdif. Any additional operating losses will have adverse effect on our stockholders’
equity, and we cannot assure you that we will é&eeable to achieve or sustain profitability.

We currently rely on sales of t:slim to generatesignificant portion of our revenue, and any factotbat negatively impact sales of this
product may adversely affect our business, finaraandition and operating results

Our primary revenue-generating commercial prodsitisiim, which we introduced to the market in thied quarter of 2012. We expect
to continue to derive a significant portion of savenue from the sale of t:slim and pump-relatgpBes. Accordingly, our ability to generate
revenue is highly dependent on our ability to maeed sell t:slim.

Sales of t:slim may be negatively impacted by mfacyors, including:

e problems arising from the expansion of our maciufidng capabilities, or destruction, loss, or temgpy shutdown of our
manufacturing facility

e changes in reimbursement rates or policies reldgrigslim or similar products or technologies biyrd-party payors
e our inability to enter into contracts with th-party payors on a timely basis and on acceptabhest;
e claims that t:slim, or any component thereof, imfes on patent rights or other intellectual propaghts of third parties

e the harm to our reputation or any other assattikdbility or perceived risks that may arise fromr January 2014 recall of
cartridges used with t:slim; ai

e adverse regulatory or legal actions relating tint:er similar products or technologie
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Because we currently rely on a single product teegate a significant portion of our revenue, amydes that negatively impact sales of
this product, or result in sales of this productr@asing at a lower rate than expected, could adljeaffect our business, financial condition
and operating results and negatively impact oditald successfully launch future products curhgninder development.

The failure of our products to achieve and maintamarket acceptance could result in us achievingesabelow our expectations, which
would cause our business, financial condition angerating results to be materially and adverselyeafted.

Our current business strategy is highly dependenistim and t:flex achieving and maintaining mar&eceptance. We do not intend to
begin commercial sales of t:flex until the secondrter of 2015. In order for us to sell our product people with insulin-dependent diabetes,
we must convince them, their caregivers and healéhproviders that it is an attractive alternatveompetitive products for the treatment of
diabetes, including traditional insulin pump protduand MDI therapies, as well as alternative imstikatment methodologies. Market
acceptance and adoption of our products dependsducating people with diabetes, as well as theggiaers and healthcare providers, as to
the distinct features, ease-of-use, positive hesimpact, and other perceived benefits of oudpots as compared to competitive products. If
we are not successful in convincing existing anbptial customers of the benefits of our productsf we are not able to achieve the support
of caregivers and healthcare providers for t:slimtftex, our sales may decline or we may failriorease our sales in line with our forecasts.

Achieving and maintaining market acceptance ofpyaducts could be negatively impacted by many factiacluding:

e the failure of our products to achieve wide ataepe among people with insulin-dependent diab#tes, caregivers, insulin-
prescribing healthcare providers, tl-party payors and key opinion leaders in the diabgtatment communit

e lack of evidence supporting the safety, easesefar other perceived benefits of our products owerpetitive products or other
currently available insulin treatment methodolog

e perceived risks associated with the use of t:slimflex or similar products or technologies getigre

e the introduction of competitive products and thie ief acceptance of those products as compareslito &ind t:flex;
e discounts, rebates and other financial incentikias dur competitors may offer for competitive prot

e results of clinical studies relating to t:slimJex or similar competitive product

In addition, t:slim or t:flex may be perceived bygple with insulin-dependent diabetes, their cargior healthcare providers to be
more complicated, less reliable or less effecthanttraditional insulin therapies, including MDhdapeople may be unwilling to change their
current treatment regimens. These negative pemeptnay be heightened following our January 20tdlref cartridges used with t:slim.

Moreover, we believe that healthcare providers tertuk slow to change their medical treatment prestoecause of perceived liability
risks arising from the use of new products andutheertainty of third-party reimbursement. Accordyndnealthcare providers may not
recommend our products until there is sufficieritlemce to convince them to alter the treatment oushhey typically recommend, such as
receiving recommendations from prominent healthpaogiders or other key opinion leaders in the dieb treatment community that our
products are effective in providing insulin therapylditionally, payors may have more stringent iegments for reimbursement.

Further, even if we are able to convince peoplé wisulin-dependent diabetes, their caregiverseaithcare providers that our products
compare favorably to the products and treatmeatratives offered by our competitors, the rapid@i@n of technology and treatment optic
within our industry may cause consumers to delayptivchase of our products in anticipation of adeaments, or the perception that
advancements could occur, in our products or thdymts offered by our competitors. For examplis, gossible that a consumer that is
currently interested in purchasing t:slim will dethe purchase decision in anticipation of the feitielease of t:slim G4, or the release of a
product with advanced features offered by one ofcompetitors.

If t:slim or t:flex do not achieve and maintain wipread market acceptance, we may fail to acheges at or above our projected

amounts. If our sales do not meet our projectinesmay fail to meet our strategic objectives, andhusiness, financial condition and
operating results could be materially and adverafcted.
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Failure to secure or retain adequate coverage ommeursement for t:slim, t:flex and our potential ture products by thir-party payors
could adversely affect our business, financial catioh and operating results.

We have derived nearly all of our revenue fromgalke of t:slim in the United States, and we doexgtect to begin commercial sales of
t:flex in the United States until the second quanfe2015. We expect to derive nearly all of ourereue during 2015 from sales of t:slim and
t:flex insulin pumps and associated supplies, ampeet to continue to do so until we are able to m@mtialize our other products that are
currently under development. A substantial portibthe purchase price of an insulin pump is typycphid for by third-party payors, including
private insurance companies, preferred provideamimations and other managed care providers. Fasles of our current and future products
will be limited unless our customers can rely oindiparty payors to pay for all or part of the asated purchase cost. Because we have not
initiated commercial sales of t:flex, there remainasiderable uncertainty regarding the coveragettird-party payors will offer for this new
product, particularly for individuals with type 2athetes where coverage requirements may necesaitditional laboratory tests or other
information to support a determination of medicat@ssity. Access to adequate coverage and reimnmbenséor our current and future produ
by third-party payors is essential to the accepariour products by customers.

Many third-party payors use coverage decisionspayminent amounts determined by the Centers for Megliand Medicaid Services, or
CMS, which administers the U.S. Medicare prograsrguidelines in setting their coverage and reimdiment policies. Medicare has recently
begun to review its reimbursement practices fobelies-related products. Medicare implemented a etitive bidding process for blood
glucose strip reimbursement, which resulted irgaiicant reduction in the reimbursement rate farse products. More recently, Medicare ha
also initiated a competitive bidding process fauilin pumps in limited geographies. As a resulty¢his uncertainty as to the future Medicare
reimbursement rate for our products. In additibose third-party payors that do not follow the Cilsdelines may adopt different coverage
and reimbursement policies for our current andrufaroducts. It is possible that some third-paeyqgrs will not offer any coverage for our
current or future products.

We currently have contracts establishing reimbuesarfor t:slim with approximately 70 national arejional third-party payors in the
United States. We are also currently in the prooésgproaching these and other third-party paymdiscuss reimbursement for t:flex. While
we anticipate adding coverage for t:flex under@urent agreements and entering into additionairaots with third-party payors to provide
reimbursement for both t:slim and t:flex, we cangwarantee that we will succeed in doing so ortti@treimbursement contracts that we are
able to negotiate will enable us to sell our pradun a profitable basis. In addition, contracthwhird-party payors generally can be modified
or terminated by the third-party payor without acaasid with little or no notice to us. Moreover, giance with the administrative procedures
or requirements of third-party payors may resuliéfays in processing approvals by those thirdygaayors for customers to obtain coverage
for our products. Failure to secure or retain adégjgoverage or reimbursement for t:slim or t:#@xd our future products by thighrty payors
or delays in processing approvals by those pagordd result in the loss of sales, which could haveaterial adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and operating results.

Further, the healthcare industry in the Unitede&&tad increasingly focused on cost containmenbasrgment and private insurers seek
to control healthcare costs by imposing lower paytmates and negotiating reduced contract ratdsthitd-party payors. If third-party payors
deny coverage or reduce their current levels ofrgayt, or if our production costs increase fastantimcreases in reimbursement levels, we
may be unable to sell our products on a profitbblss.

We operate in a very competitive industry and if faé to compete successfully against our existiagpotential competitors, many of whom
have greater resources than us, our sales and opirgaresults may be negatively affected.

The medical device industry is intensely competitisubject to rapid change and highly sensitiihéantroduction of new products or
technologies, or other activities of industry geipants. We expect our products will compete diyewith a number of traditional insulin
pumps as well as other methods for the treatmediadiietes. In particular, w e expect that the cditipe landscape for t:flex will be similar to
that of t:slim.

Many of our existing and potential competitors x&or medical device companies that are eitheriglyliraded companies or divisions
or subsidiaries of publicly traded companies. Fstance, Medtronic MiniMed, a division of Medtroninc., has been the market leader for
many years and has the majority share of the toaditinsulin pump market in the United States.@tignificant insulin pump suppliers in 1
United States include Animas Corporation, a divisié Johnson & Johnson, Roche Diagnostics, a dwisi F. Hoffman-La Roche Ltd., and
Insulet Corporation. There are also newer companésring the field.

Many of these more established competitors enjogrst competitive advantages over us, including:

e greater financial and human resources for salesratlleting, and product developme

e established relationships with healthcare provideid thir-party payors
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e established reputation and name recognition ameagtcare providers and other key opinion leadethé diabetes industr
e in some cases, an established base oi-time customers

e products supported by lo-term clinical data

e larger and more established distribution netwc

e greater ability to cro-sell products or provide incentives to healthcamiders to use their products; a

e more experience in conducting research and dexretat, manufacturing, clinical trials, and obtagmnegulatory approval or
clearance

In some instances, our competitors also offer petedthat include features that we do not curreaotigr. For instance, Medtronic
currently offers a traditional insulin pump thairisegrated with a CGM system with a threshold suasifeature, and Insulet offers an insulin
pump with a tubeless delivery system that doesutilize an infusion set. For these and other reasae may not be able to compete
successfully against our current or potential fattwmpetitors. As a result, we may fail to meetsitategic objectives and forecasted budget,
and our business, financial condition and operatasglts could be materially and adversely affected

Competitive products or other technological breaktlighs for the monitoring, treatment or preventiasf diabetes or technological
developments may render our products obsolete ss desirable.

Our ability to achieve our strategic objectivesl wé#pend, among other things, on our ability toedlep and commercialize products for
the treatment of diabetes that offer distinct feeduare easy-to-use, receive adequate coverageiamaursement from third-party payors, and
are more appealing than available alternatives.pbiorary competitors, as well as a number of ottmenpanies, medical researchers and
pharmaceutical companies are pursuing new delidewces, delivery technologies, sensing technofygieocedures, drugs and other therapie
for the monitoring, treatment and prevention obgigs. Any technological breakthroughs in diabetesitoring, treatment or prevention could
reduce the potential market for t:slim or t:flexrender our products obsolete altogether, whichlgvsignificantly reduce our sales. In additi
even the perception that technological or treatradmincements could occur in the future could caassumers to delay the purchase of our
products.

Because the insulin-dependent diabetes marketge End growing, we anticipate that companieseuititinue to dedicate significant
resources to developing competitive products. Taguent introduction by competitors of productg #ira or claim to be superior to our
products may create market confusion that may niak#icult to differentiate the benefits of ourqructs over competitive products. In
addition, the entry of multiple new products hasdeme of our competitors to employ pricing straegincluding the use of discounts, rebate:
or other financial incentives that could adversafect sales of our products. If a competitor depsla product that competes with or is
perceived to be superior to our own products, ooifipetitors continue to utilize strategies thatpldownward pressure on pricing within our
industry, our sales may decline, our operating finargould be reduced and we may fail to meet oojeptions, which would materially and
adversely affect our business, financial conditod operating results.

Moreover, we have designed our products to resembbiern consumer electronic devices to addresaicexinbarrassment and
functionality concerns consumers have raised veipect to traditional pumps. The consumer eleatsandustry is itself highly competitive,
and characterized by continual new product intréidas, rapid developments in technology, and sulve@nd changing consumer preferen
If, in the future, consumers cease to view our pobslas contemporary or convenient as compardueetedxisting consumer electronics
technology, our products may become less desirable.
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If we are unable to expand our sales, marketing aclthical infrastructure effectively and on a timglbasis, we may fail to increase our sa
to meet our forecasts.

Because we began commercialization of t:slim intkii@ quarter of 2012, we have only limited expade marketing and selling our
products as well as training new customers on sieeafi t:slim. We currently intend to begin markgtand selling our t:flex product during the
second quarter of 2015. The vast majority of ousteng customers for t:slim are individuals withpty1 diabetes, and we have only limited
experience in marketing and selling our productsustomers with type 2 diabetes. As a result, we famee unexpected challenges as we begi
marketing and selling t:flex. We expect to deriweany all of our revenue from the sale of t:slirfiek and pump-related supplies unless and
until we receive regulatory clearance or approwalbfther products currently in development. Assule our financial condition and operating
results are and will continue to be highly depenaenthe ability of our sales representatives wgachtely promote, market and sell t:slim and
t:flex, and the ability of our diabetes educatargrain new customers on the use of our produttaurisales and marketing representatives or
diabetes educators fail to achieve their objectivas sales could decrease or may not increaswelslthat are in line with our forecasts.

A key element of our business strategy is the ooetil expansion of our sales, marketing and clinnfedstructure to drive adoption of
our products, which includes our team of diabetesators that trains new customers on the usergfroducts. We have rapidly increased the
number of sales, marketing and clinical personmglleyed by us since the initial comme rcial launti:slim. However, we have faced
considerable challenges in growing our sales, ntimdk@nd clinical force over the past 12-18 monthsluding with respect to recruiting,
training and assimilation of new territories and@amts. We expect to continue to face significdnatlenges as we manage and grow our sale
marketing and clinical infrastructure and work totimate and retain the individuals who make up ¢hostworks. In particular, newly hired
sales representatives require training and take tinachieve full productivity, and the overall argion of our sales force also disrupts the
productivity of our existing sales representativisaddition, unexpected turnover would have aatigg impact on our ability to achieve our
sale s projections. Further,afsales, marketing or clinical representative viemepart and be retained by one of our competiteesmay fail ti
prevent him or her from helping competitors solmisiness from our existing customers, which caddersel y affect our sales. Similarly , if
we are not able to recruit and retain a networtlialbetes educators, we may not be able to suctlggséin new customers on the use of t:slim
or t:flex, which could delay new sales and harmreputation. We expect t hat the management andefexpansion of our sales, marketing
and clinical personnel will continue to place sfgr@int burdens on our management team. If we aablerto retain and expand our sales,
marketing and clinical capabilities in line withratrategic plans , we may not be able to effeticemmercialize our existing or planned
products, or enhance the strength of our branideedf which could result in the failure of ouresato increase in line with our projections or
could even cause s ales to decline.

Our sales and marketing efforts are dependent odépendent distributors who are free to market pratiithat compete with our own. If we
are unable to maintain or expand our network of irgendent distributors, our sales may be negatiadfected.

For the year ended December 31, 2014, sales toxdppately 36 independent distributors represenpgataimately 75% of our sales.
While we expect that the percentage of our salésdependent distributors will decrease over timeva enter into contracts with additional
third-party payors, we believe that a meaningfutpatage of our sales will continue to be to inehefeat distributors for the foreseeable future
and it is possible that the percentage of our gale@glependent dist ributors could even increagbé near term. For example, our dependenc
upon independent distributors could increase ifitiparty payors decide to contract with independisttibutors directly in lieu of contracting
with us to supply our products to their membergdairect basis. None of our independent distritaubas been required to sell our products
exclusively and each of them may freely sell thedprcts of our competitors. Our distributor agreetagenerally have one-year initial terms
with automatic one-year renewal terms, and areitetiahe in connection with a party’s material breach

Some of our independent distributors account feigaificant portion of our sales volume. For thaiyended December 31, 2014, our 3
largest independent distributors comprised appratety 38% of our sales. If any of our key independistributors were to cease to distribute
our products, our sales could be adversely affet¢teslich a situation, we may need to seek altematdependent distributors or increase our
reliance on our other independent distributorswrdirect sales representatives, which may notgrregur sales from being adversely affected
Additionally, to the extent that we enter into d@iliial arrangements with independent distributorsdrform sales, marketing, or distribution
services, the terms of the arrangements could cawsgroduct margins to be lower than if we dingetlarketed and sold our products.
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Our ability to maintain and grow our revenue depegith part on retaining a high percentage of our dasner base

A key to maintaining and growing our revenue istttention of a high percentage of our customeestduhe potentially significant
revenue generated from ongoing purchases of dibpos®sulin cartridges. In addition, our pumps designed and tested to remain effective
for four years and a satisfied customer may congidechasing another product from us when the tiorees to replace the pump. We have
developed retention programs aimed at customess,¢hregivers and healthcare providers, whichuiteltraining specific to our products,
ongoing support by sales and clinical employeesZaid technical support and customer service.ia®d for our products fluctuates as a
result of the introduction of competitive produateanges in reimbursement policies, manufacturioglpms, perceived safety or reliability
issues with our or competitors’ products, the fa&lto secure regulatory clearance or approvatrasther reasons, our ability to attract and
retain customers could be harmed. The failuretaine high percentage of our customers would megfgtimpact our revenue growth and n
have a material adverse effect on our businesaial condition and operating results.

If important assumptions about the potential markietr our products are inaccurate, or if we have fad to understand what people wi
insulin-dependent diabetes are seeking in an insyiump, our business and operating results may lbeersely affected.

Our business strategy was developed based on aemwhimportant assumptions about the diabetessingin general, and the insulin-
dependent diabetes market in particular, any omease of which may prove to be inaccurate. For edaimwe believe that the benefits of
insulin pump therapy as compared to other commsuliim treatment alternatives will continue to driy@wth in the market for insulin pump
therapy. In addition, we believe the incidenceiabétes in the United States and worldwide is iasireg rapidly. However, each of these tre
is uncertain and limited sources exist to obtalialbée market data. The actual incidence of diahedad the actual demand for our products or
competitive products, could differ materially framar projections if our assumptions are incorrattaddition, our strategy of focusing
exclusively on the insulin-dependent diabetes ntarkay limit our ability to increase sales or acleigvrofitability.

Another key element of our business strategy Iy market research to understand what peoptle diabetes are seeking to improve
their diabetes therapy management. This stratedgnias our entire product design, marketing arstamer support approach and is the basic
on which we developed our current products angarsuing the development of new products. Howewar market research is based on
interviews, focus groups and online surveys invaveople with insulin-dependent diabetes, theegiaers and healthcare providers that
represent only a small percentage of the overslllin-dependent diabetes market. As a result,@abpanses we received may not be reflective
of the broader market and may not provide us ateumaight into the desires of people with insudigpendent diabetes. In addition,
understanding the meaning and significance oféspanses received during our market research regdgsequires that analysis be conductec
and conclusions be drawn. We may not be able paréor analysis that yields meaningful results, erabnclusions we draw from the analysis
could be misleading. Moreover, even if our marksearch has allowed us to better understand thedsaconsumers are seeking in an insulir
pump to improve management of their diabetes tlyetthpre can be no assurance that consumers withlycpurchase our products or that out
competitors will not develop products with simifaatures.

We have a limited operating history and may facéfidulties encountered by companies early in themmmercialization in competitive and
rapidly evolving markets.

We commenced operations in 2006, began commeiioiglizlim in the third quarter of 2012 and sigeoéitly expanded our operations
during 2014. We have not yet commenced any sigmifimarketing activities or commercial sales déxfAccordingly, we have a limited
operating history upon which to evaluate our bussrend forecast our future sales and operatindfsebuassessing our business prospects,
you should consider the various risks and diffieglfrequently encountered by companies earlyeir tommercialization in competitive a
rapidly evolving markets, particularly companieattdevelop and sell medical devices. These riskade our ability to:

e implement and execute our business strat
e expand and improve the productivity of our saled mxarketing infrastructure to grow sales of ousérg and proposed produc

e increase awareness of our brand and build loyaitgng people with insulin-dependent diabetesr ttagegivers and healthcare
providers;

e manage expanding operations, including complyirtfy @ibroad range of legal requirements within dlyigegulated industry
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e expand our manufacturing capabilities, includimgreasing production of current products efficigmthile maintaining quality
standards and adapting our manufacturing faciltbete production of new produc

e respond effectively to competitive pressures ancldpments
e enhance our existing products and develop proppsstlicts;
e obtain and maintain regulatory clearance or apgrimveommercialize proposed products and enhancexsting products
e perform clinical trials with respect to our exigfiproducts and proposed products;
e attract, retain and motivate qualified personnelarious areas of our busine
Due to our limited operating history, we may notdshe institutional knowledge or experience tabk to effectively address these
other risks that may face our business. In additiamay not be able to develop insights into tsathét could emerge and negatively affect
business and may fail to respond effectively taséhtwends. As a result of these or other risksag not be able to execute key components ¢
our business strategy, and our business, finaooiaition and operating results may suffer.
Manufacturing risks may adversely affect our abjfito manufacture products and could negatively ingp@ur sales and operating margin
Our business strategy depends on our ability touf@ature our current and proposed products inaefit quantities and on a timely
basis so as to meet consumer demand, while adherpr@duct quality standards, complying with regaty requirements and managing
manufacturing costs. We are subject to numerols riating to our manufacturing capabilities, irdihg:
e quality or reliability defects in product compongitiat we source from th-party suppliers
e our inability to secure product components in atimmanner, in sufficient quantities and on comnadscreasonable term:
e our failure to increase production of products &etndemanc

e the challenge of implementing and maintaining ataap quality systems while experiencing rapid gto

e our inability to modify production lines to enahls to efficiently produce future products or ielpent changes in current products
in response to regulatory requiremel

e our ability to manufacture multiple products sltaneously within the same manufacturing facilindaitilizing common
manufacturing equipmer

e difficulty identifying and qualifying alternativeuppliers for components in a timely manner;
e potential damage to or destruction of our manufaeuequipment or manufacturing facilit

These risks are likely to be exacerbated by ouitdienexperience with our current products and mactufing processes. As demand for
our products increases , and as the number ofmumercial products expands, we will have to inweektitional resources to purchase
components, hire and train employees, and enhanamanufacturing processes and quality systemst thegpast year we have implemented
several new pieces of equipment that are intenol@dprove our manufacturing capacity and efficietdgwever, it is possible that we may
derive the anticipated improvements from thesestiaents. If we fail to increase our production @dyaefficiently while also maintaining
quality requirements, our sales may not increasi@éwith our forecasts and our operating margimsld fluctuate or decline. In addition,
although we expect some of our products in devetogno share product features and components wliitnt manufacturing of these products
may require the modification of our production Bnéhe hiring of specialized employees, the idatifon of new suppliers for specific
components, or the development of new manufactdgolgnologies. It may not be possible for us to ufiacture these products at a cost or in
guantities sufficient to make these products consiably viable.
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We depend on a limited number of thi-party suppliers for certain components, and thedasf any of these suppliers, or their inability
provide us with an adequate supply of materialsultbharm our business

We rely on third-party suppliers to supply compadsesf t:slim, t:flex and of our potential futuregoiucts, including our disposable
cartridges. For example, we rely on plastic inmttnolding companies to provide plastic molded congmts, electronic manufacturing
suppliers to provide electronic assemblies, andhinatg companies to provide machined mechanicalpmrants. We also purchase all of our
infusion sets and pump accessories from thadty suppliers. For our business strategy to beessful, our suppliers must be able to provic
with components in sufficient quantities, in corapite with regulatory requirements and quality airdtandards, in accordance with agreed
upon specifications, at acceptable costs and omedyt basis. Increases in our product sales, whdtimecasted or unanticipated, could strair
ability of our suppliers to deliver an increasinédyge supply of components in a manner that nteetse various requirements.

We do not have long-term supply agreements withtmiosur suppliers and, in many cases, we makguatghases on a purchase order
basis. Under most of our supply agreements, we hawbligation to buy any given quantity of prody@&nd our suppliers have no obligation
to manufacture for us or sell to us any given gityaof products. As a result, our ability to pursleaadequate quantities of our products may b
limited. Additionally, our suppliers may encounggoblems that limit their ability to manufactureoducts for us, including financial difficulti
or damage to their manufacturing equipment or itasl If we fail to obtain sufficient quantitie$ lbigh quality components to meet demand ot
a timely basis, we could lose customer ordersyeputation may be harmed and our business couldrsuf

We generally use a small number of suppliers forppaducts. Depending on a limited number of sugplexposes us to risks, including
limited control over pricing, availability, qualignd delivery schedules. Moreover, due to the tem@mmercialization of our products and the
limited amount of our sales to date, we do not Hamg-standing relationships with our manufactugerd may not be able to convince
suppliers to continue to make components avail@bles unless there is demand for such componeststheir other customers. As a result,
there is a risk that certain components could beaditinued and no longer available to us. We havkd past been, and we may in the future
be, required to make significant “last time” purséa of component inventory that is being discomiihiby the manufacturer to ensure supply
continuity. If any one or more of our suppliers g0 provide us with sufficient quantities of campnts in a timely manner or on terms
acceptable to us, we would have to seek alternativeces of supply. Because of factors such agrif@ietary nature of our products, our
quality control standards and regulatory requireisieme cannot quickly engage additional or replaa@nsuppliers for some of our critical
components. Failure of any of our suppliers tow@elproducts at the level our business requireddvamit our ability to meet our sales
commitments, which could harm our reputation andattave a material adverse effect on our business.

We may also have difficulty obtaining similar conmgats from other suppliers that are acceptablead-DA, or other regulatory
agencies, and the failure of our suppliers to cgmpth strictly enforced regulatory requirementsiltbexpose us to regulatory action including
warning letters, product recalls, termination aftdbution, product seizures or civil penaltiescduld also require us to cease using the
components, seek alternative components or tecgesl@and modify our products to incorporate alteveacomponents or technologies, which
could result in a requirement to seek additiongllatory approvals. Any disruption of this naturarereased expenses could harm our
commercialization efforts and adversely affect operating results.

We operate primarily at a single location comprisefifour buildings, and any disruption at this lo¢®n could adversely affect our business
and operating results.

Our principal offices are presently located in fouildings in San Diego, California. Substantiali/of our operations are conducted at
this location, including our manufacturing processesearch and development activities, custongetearhnical support, and management an
administrative functions. In addition, substantialll of our inventory of component supplies amidshed goods is held at this location. We 1
precautions to safeguard our facilities, includigjuiring insurance, employing back-up generataepting health and safety protocols and
utilizing off-site storage of computer data. Howewandalism, terrorism or a natural or other disgsuch as an earthquake, fire or flood,
could damage or destroy our manufacturing equiproentir inventory of component supplies or finislgesds, cause substantial delays in ou
operations, result in the loss of key informatiand cause us to incur additional expenses. Ourdnsa may not cover our losses in any
particular case. In addition, regardless of thell®f insurance coverage, damage to our faciliiey have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and operating results
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If we do not enhance our product offerings throughur research and development efforts, we may faieffectively compete or becor
profitable.

In order to increase our sales and market shateimsulin-dependent diabetes market, we mustrexéhand broaden our product
offerings in response to the evolving demands opfewith insulin-dependent diabetes and healthpereiders, as well as competitive
pressures and technologies. We may not be suctassieveloping, obtaining regulatory approval for,marketing our proposed products
when anticipated, or at all. In addition, notwitirsting our market research efforts, our future petglmay not be accepted by consumers, the
caregivers, healthcare providers or third-partygpsiyvho reimburse consumers for our products. Tieeess of any proposed product offering:
will depend on numerous factors, including ouriabtb:

e identify the product features that people witbuiin-dependent diabetes, their caregivers andhteak providers are seeking in an
insulin pump and successfully incorporate thoseufes into our product:

e develop and introduce proposed products in sufftagiantities and in a timely mann

e offer products at a price that is competitive wather products then availab

e work with thirc-party payors to obtain reimbursement for our praésit

e adequately protect our intellectual property andidinfringing upon the intellectual property righdf third parties
e demonstrate the safety and efficacy of proposedymts; anc

e obtain the necessary regulatory approvals for pegg@roducts

If we fail to generate demand by developing proslticat incorporate features requested by consumheis caregivers or healthcare
providers, or if we do not obtain regulatory clew® or approval for proposed products in time tetmearket demand, we may fail to generate
sales sufficient to achieve or maintain profitapilWe have in the past experienced, and we méyeirfuture experience, delays in various
phases of product development and commercial lguncluding during research and development, mantufang, limited release testing,
marketing and customer education efforts. Any delayour anticipated regulatory submissions or apgls, or subsequent product launches,
may significantly impede our ability to successfudlbmpete in our markets. In particular, such delaguld cause customers to delay or foregc
purchases of our products, or to purchase our ctitof products. Even if we are able to succe$gfikvelop proposed products when
anticipated, these products may not produce salesdess of the costs of development, and theylreayuickly rendered obsolete by changing
consumer preferences or the introduction by ourpmditors of products embodying new technologiefeatures.

The safety and efficacy of our products is not sapted by long-term clinical data, which could limgales, and our products could cause
unforeseen negative effects.

t:slim, which we currently market in the United 8% received pre-market clearance under Sectio(kpf the U.S. Federal Food,
Drug, and Cosmetic Act, or FDCA. t:flex, which weend to begin marketing and selling in the UniBdtes during the second quarter of
2015, also has received 501(k) clearance. The »t¥krance process is shorter and typically reguine submission of less supporting
documentation than other FDA approval processeslaad not always require long-term clinical studfesa result, we currently lack the
breadth of published long-term clinical data supipgrthe safety and efficacy of our products areltibnefits they offer that might have been
generated in connection with other approval praezdsor these reasons, people with insulin-depériginetes and healthcare providers may
be slower to adopt or recommend our products, wemoahave comparative data that our competitove lwat are generating, third-party
payors may not be willing to provide coverage émimirsement for our products and we may be subjegteater regulatory and product
liability risks. These and other factors could sline adoption of our products and result in oueséeing lower than anticipated. In addition,
future studies or clinical experience may indidhts treatment with our products is not superidrréatment with competitive products. Such
results could slow the adoption of our products sigdificantly reduce our sales, which could préwehfrom achieving our forecasted sales
targets or achieving or sustaining profitabilityoMover, if future results and experience indith#t our products cause unexpected or seriou
complications or other unforeseen negative effawtscould be subject to mandatory product recallspension or withdrawal of FDA
clearance or approval, significant legal liabilityharm to our business reputation.
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Any alleged iliness or injury associated with afiyor products or product recall may negatively @&oipour financial results and
business prospects depending on the scope, defgpebliwity, reaction of our customers, healthcarefessionals, and collaborators,
competitive reaction, and consumer attitudes olidEgkn if such an allegation or product liabildkaim lacks merit, cannot be substantiated, i
unsuccessful or is not fully pursued, the neggbwilicity surrounding any assertion that our pradwaused illness, injury or death could
adversely affect our reputation with customersjtheare professionals, and existing and potentlidborators, and could adversely affect our
operating results and cause a decline in our giack.

We may enter into collaborations, in-licensing amgements, joint ventures, strategic alliances orfpeerships with third parties that may
not result in the development of commercially vialproducts or the generation of significant futurevenues.

In the ordinary course of our business, we mayrente collaborations, in-licensing arrangementt ventures, strategic alliances or
partnerships to develop proposed products andrsupunew markets, or we may amend or modify sinaiggeements that we already have in
place. Proposing, negotiating and implementingatatations, in-licensing arrangements, joint vesgustrategic alliances or partnerships ma
be a lengthy and complex process. Other companigading those with substantially greater finahamarketing, sales, technology or other
business resources, may compete with us for thgsertunities or arrangements. We may not idensiégure, or complete any such
transactions or arrangements in a timely manneg, cost-effective basis, on acceptable terms all.atvVe have limited institutional knowledge
and experience with respect to these businessajgwent activities, and we may also not realizeaiftecipated benefits of any such transac
or arrangement. In particular, these collaboratimay not result in the development of products #tdiieve commercial success or result in
significant revenues and could be terminated gaateveloping any products.

Additionally, we may not be in a position to exsrcsole decision making authority regarding thesaation or arrangement, which
could create the potential risk of creating impasse decisions, and our collaborators may haveaunanor business interests or goals that are
or that may become, inconsistent with our busii@ssests or goals. It is possible that confliceymarise with our collaborators, such as
conflicts concerning the achievement of performamdestones, or the interpretation of significaerints under any agreement, such as those
related to financial obligations, termination riglutr the ownership or control of intellectual prapeleveloped during the collaboration. If any
conflicts arise with our current or future collabtars, they may act in their séffterest, which may be adverse to our best inteasst they ma
breach their obligations to us. In addition, wedmited control over the amount and timing ofowses that our current collaborators or any
future collaborators devote to our collaboratorsdor future products. Disputes between our collatmrs and us may result in litigation or
arbitration which would increase our expenses angrtthe attention of our management. Furtherséhteansactions and arrangements are
contractual in nature and may be terminated owotiss under the terms of the applicable agreensmdsin such event, we may not continue
to have rights to the products relating to suchdaation or arrangement or may need to purchasergds at a premium.

For example, we have entered into a developmentamuinercialization agreement with DexCom, whichvjpdes us a non-exclusive
license to integrate the DexCom G4 PLATINUM Contine Glucose Monitor with t:slim G4, which we haveyiously referred to as t:sensor,
during the term of the agreement. This agreememéctly runs until January 4, 2017, with automatie-year renewals. The license granted
covers the United States and other territories beagidded from time to time. Under certain circumsts, the agreement may be terminated b
either party without cause or on short notice. Tiration of this agreement could require us to riggesslim G4 and attempt to integrate an
alternative CGM system into our insulin pump systewhich would require significant development aeglulatory activities that might delay
the launch and commercialization of t:slim G4 ofldwing its launch, might not be completed in titoeprevent an interruption in the
availability of the product to our customers.

If there are significant disruptions in our inform#on technology systems, our business, financiahddion and operating results could k
adversely affected.

The efficient operation of our business dependswrinformation technology systems. We rely on iaformation technology systems
to effectively manage sales and marketing datauatiing and financial functions, inventory managemproduct development tasks, researcl
and development data, customer service and tedisuipport functions. Our information technologyteyss are vulnerable to damage or
interruption from earthquakes, fires, floods anteotatural disasters, terrorist attacks, attagksonputer viruses or hackers, power losses,
and computer system or data network failures. titeah, t:connect, our cloud-based data managemggpiication, is hosted by a third-party
service provider whose security and informatiortedogy systems are subject to similar risks, amdt:glim and t:flex pumps and products
currently in development contain software whichlddue subject to computer virus or hacker attackastloer failures.

The failure of our or our service providers’ infation technology systems or our pumps’ softwaneeidorm as we anticipate or our
failure to effectively implement new informatiorctenology systems could disrupt our entire operadioadversely affect our software prodt
and could result in decreased sales, increasetieagicosts, and product shortages, all of whickdduave a material adverse effect on our
reputation, business, financial condition and ofegaresults.
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If we fail to properly manage our anticipated grokjtour business could suffe

Our rapid growth has placed, and we expect thaillicontinue to place, a significant strain on ananagement team and on our
financial resources. For example, between Dece®bhe?013 and December 31, 2014 our employee basedr@ased more than 30% and we
expect to continue to experience growth of our @yg base during 2015. Failure to manage our grefféistively could cause us to
misallocate management or financial resourcesyesult in losses or weaknesses in our infrastractuhich could materially adversely affect
our business. Additionally, our anticipated growdii increase the demands placed on our suppliesslting in an increased need for us to
manage our suppliers and monitor for quality asseeaAny failure by us to manage our growth effestii could have an adverse effect on out
ability to achieve our business objectives.

We depend on the knowledge and skills of our semmnagement and other key employees, and if weusrable to retain and motivate
them or recruit additional qualified personnel, olsusiness may suffer.

We have benefited substantially from the leaderahigh performance of our senior management, asasalértain key employees. For
example, our chief executive officer, as well asotkey members of management, have experiencesafally scaling an early stage medical
device company to achieve profitability. Our suscedl depend on our ability to retain our curreminagement and key employees, and to
attract and retain qualified personnel in the feit@ompetition for senior management and key enagleyn our industry is intense and we
cannot guarantee that we will be able to retainpgusonnel or attract new, qualified personnel. [oss of the services of certain members of
our senior management or key employees could ptevatelay the implementation and completion of stnategic objectives, or divert
management’s attention to seeking qualified reples#s. Each member of senior management as wellrdeey employees may terminate
employment without notice and without cause or gaason. The members of our senior managemenbasibject to non-competition
agreements. Accordingly, the adverse effect regpftiom the loss of certain members of senior manmsmt could be compounded by our
inability to prevent them from competing with us.

If we are found to have violated laws protectingetisonfidentiality of patient health information, weould be subject to civil or crimine
penalties, which could increase our liabilities arighrm our reputation or our busines:

There are a number of federal and state laws piotethe confidentiality of certain patient heailtifiormation, including patient records,
and restricting the use and disclosure of thatgated information. In particular, the U.S. Depamtnaf Health and Human Services, or HHS,
promulgated patient privacy rules under the HIPARAese privacy rules protect medical records andrgibrsonal health information by
limiting their use and disclosure, giving individsighe right to access, amend and seek accourtitigio own health information and limiting
most use and disclosures of health informatioméominimum amount reasonably necessary to accdmipiésintended purpose. If we, or any
of our service providers, are found to be in violatof the promulgated patient privacy rules undd#?AA, we could be subject to civil or
criminal penalties, which could increase our ligigis, harm our reputation and have a material esgveffect on our business, financial
condition and operating results.

We may seek to grow our business through acquisisi@f complementary products or technologies, ahd failure to manage acquisitions,
or the failure to integrate them with our existinigusiness, could have a material adverse effect anfwusiness, financial condition and
operating results.

From time to time, we may consider opportunitieadquire other products or technologies that mdaece our product platform or
technology, expand the breadth of our markets stotner base, or advance our business strategientiRabacquisitions involve numerous
risks, including:

e problems assimilating the acquired products orrietdyies;

e issues maintaining uniform standards, procedugrals and policies
e unanticipated costs associated with acquisiti

e diversion of manageme’'s attention from our existing busine

e risks associated with entering new markets in winiethave limited or no experience; ¢

e increased legal and accounting costs relatinga@tuisitions or compliance with regulatory matt
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We have no current commitments with respect toamisition. We do not know if we will be able tientify acquisitions we deem
suitable, whether we will be able to successfutlynplete any such acquisitions on favorable ternet ail, or whether we will be able to
successfully integrate any acquired products dmelogies. Our potential inability to integrate amgquired products or technologies
effectively may adversely affect our business, afieg results and financial condition.

Risks Related to our Financial Results and Need fdfinancing

Our future capital needs are uncertain and we maged to raise additional funds in the future, andebe funds may not be available on
acceptable terms or at all.

At December 31, 2014, we had $69.3 million in castsh equivalents and short-term investments, wihhded $2.0 million of
restricted cash. We believe that our cash on hzawh available under our term loan agreement asakpds from the exercise of warrants and
options will be sufficient to satisfy our liquiditgquirements for at least the next 12 months. Hewehe continued growth of our business,
including the expansion of our sales and markatifrgstructure, research and development activiied manufacturing capabilities, will
significantly increase our expenses. In additibe,amount of our future product sales is diffitalpredict and actual sales may not be in line
with our forecasts. As a result, we expect to saklitional funds in the future. Our future capreduirements will depend on many factors,
including:

e the revenue generated by sales of t:slim and t:8ag any other future products that we may devat@bcommercialize

e the costs associated with maintaining and expangimgales and marketing infrastructt

e the expenses we incur in maintaining our manufagjuiacility and adding additional manufacturinguggment and capacit
e the cost associated with developing and commezaigliour proposed products or technolog

e the cost of obtaining and maintaining regulatogachnce or approval for our current or future pobstt

e the cost of ongoing compliance with legal and ratprly requirements

e expenses we incur in connection with potentiagdition or governmental investigatiol

e anticipated or unanticipated capital expendituaest

e unanticipated general and administrative exper

As a result of these and other factors, we do notwkthe extent to which we may be required to ragditional capital. We may in the
future seek additional capital from public or ptevafferings of our capital stock, borrowings undexdit lines or other sources. In particular,
we have an effective shelf registration statemariile with the SEC, under which we may offer tdl equity securities. If we issue equity or
debt securities to raise additional funds, ourtegsstockholders may experience dilution, we nraur significant financing costs, and the 1
equity or debt securities may have rights, prefeesrand privileges senior to those of our exissiagkholders. In addition, if we raise
additional funds through collaborations, licensijoint ventures, strategic alliances, partnershipragements or other similar arrangements, it
may be necessary to relinquish valuable rightautopotential future products or proprietary teclogods, or grant licenses on terms that are nc
favorable to us.

If we are unable to raise additional capital, weymat be able to expand our sales and marketimgstricture, enhance our current
products or develop new products, take advantafetafe opportunities, or respond to competitivessures, changes in supplier relationships
or unanticipated changes in customer demand. Atlyasfe events could adversely affect our abilitgdhbieve our strategic objectives, which
could have a material adverse effect on our busjrigmncial condition and operating results.

Our operating results may fluctuate significantlydm quarter to quarter.

We began commercial sales of t:slim in the thirdrtgr of 2012. There has been and may continue tadmningful variability in our
operating results from quarter to quarter, as a&Nvithin each quarter. Our operating results,thadrariability of these operating results, will
be affected by numerous factors, including:

e our ability to increase sales of t:slim and tanoceercialize and sell our future products, and timlmer of our products sold in each

quarter,;
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e acceptance of our products by people with in-dependent diabetes, their caregivers, healthcargédars and thir-party payors

e the pricing of our products and competitive pratduincluding the use of discounts, rebates agrdihancial incentives by our
competitors

e the effect of thir-party coverage and reimbursement polic
e our ability to establish and grow an effective saled marketing infrastructur

e the amount of, and the timing of the paymentiftsurance deductibles required to be paid by astaeners and potential
customers under their existing insurance pl

e interruption in the manufacturing or distributiohour products

e our ability to manufacture products that meet dqualnd reliability requirement:

e seasonality and other factors affecting the tirdhgurchases of our produc

e timing of new product offerings, acquisitions, ses or other significant events by us or our cditgs;

e results of clinical research and trials on our txgsand future product:

e the ability of our suppliers to timely provide ugtlwan adequate supply of components that meetemuirements
e regulatory clearance or approvals affecting oudpods or those of our competitors; &

e the timing of revenue recognition associated withgroduct sales pursuant to applicable accourstiagdards

As a result of our limited operating history, andcedo the complexities of the industry in which egerate, it will be difficult for us to
forecast demand for our current or future produdts any degree of certainty, which means it wél diifficult for us to forecast our sales. In
addition, we will be significantly increasing ouperating expenses as we expand our business. Aeglydve may experience substantial
variability in our operating results from quarterquarter, including anticipated or unanticipatedrterly losses. If our quarterly or annual
operating results fall below the expectation ofistors or securities analysts, the price of ourrnomstock could decline substantially. Furt
any quarterly or annual fluctuations in our opemgtiesults may, in turn, cause the price of ourmom stock to fluctuate substantially. We
believe that quarterly comparisons of our finanosiults are not necessarily meaningful and shootde relied upon as an indication of our
future performance.

We may not be able to generate sufficient cashdovice our indebtedness, which currently consistoar credit facility with Capital Royalt
Partners.

As of December 31, 2014, we owed an aggregateipahamount of $30.0 million to Capital Royalty Beers and their related affiliates
pursuant to term loan agreements under which whl dmrrow up to an additional $30.0 million undertain circumstances. Our ability to
make scheduled payments or to refinance our ddigiabions depends on numerous factors, includirgattmount of our cash reserves and our
actual and projected financial and operating perforce. These amounts and our performance are stibjgertain financial and business
factors, as well as prevailing economic and contipetconditions, some of which may be beyond ourtiad. We cannot assure you that we
will maintain a level of cash reserves or cash fidi@m operating activities sufficient to permittospay the principal, premium, if any, and
interest on our existing or future indebtednessulfcash flows and capital resources are insefiicio fund our debt service obligations, we
may be forced to reduce or delay capital expeneltusell assets or operations, seek additionatatapirestructure or refinance our
indebtedness. We cannot assure you that we wouddblleeto take any of these actions, or that theBers would permit us to meet our
scheduled debt service obligations. In additiorthenevent of our breach of the term loan agreesngith Capital Royalty Partners, we may
be allowed to draw additional amounts under theeaments, and we may be required to repay any adistaamounts earlier than anticipated.
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Our term loan agreements contain restrictive anddincial covenants that may limit our operating flébility.

Our loan agreements with Capital Royalty Partnergain certain restrictive covenants that limit ability to incur additional
indebtedness and liens, merge with other compamiesnsummate certain changes of control, acqtiver@ompanies, engage in new lines of
business, make certain investments, pay divideraissfer or dispose of assets, amend certain rahtgnieements or enter into various
specified transactions. We therefore may not be tbéngage in any of the foregoing transactiomsssnve obtain the consent of the lende
terminate the applicable loan agreement. Our tean hgreements also contain certain financial cavesn including minimum revenue and
cash balance requirements, and financial reporéggirements. There is no guarantee that we willlile to generate sufficient cash flow or
sales to meet the financial covenants or pay timeipal and interest under our agreements. Furtherg is no guarantee that future working
capital, borrowings or equity financing will be @ahle to repay or refinance the amounts outstandimder a given agreement.

Risks Related to our Intellectual Property and Potatial Litigation
Our ability to protect our intellectual property ahproprietary technology is uncertain.

We rely primarily on patent, trademark and tradgetlaws, as well as confidentiality and non-disare agreements, to protect our
proprietary technologies. As of December 31, 2@14,patent portfolio consisted of approximatelyi@ed U.S. patents and 48 pending U.S.
patent applications. Of these, our issued U.Snpagxpire between approximately 2021 and 2031awelso seeking patent protection for
proprietary technology in other countries throughtie world. In addition, we also have eight pendihS. trademark applications and six
pending foreign trademark applications, as welléasrademark registrations, including four U.Sdamark registrations and ten foreign
trademark registrations.

We have applied for patent protection relatingédain existing and proposed products and proce€sgsently, eight of our issued U.S.
patents as well as various pending U.S. and foneégent applications relate to the structure aretaton of our pumping mechanism and are
therefore particularly important to the functiomaldf our products. If we fail to file a patent digption timely in any jurisdiction, we may be
precluded from doing so at a later date. Furthercannot assure you that any of our patent aplitsatill be approved in a timely manner or
at all. The rights granted to us under our patemtd,the rights we are seeking to have grantedripending patent applications, may not be
meaningful or provide us with any commercial adaget In addition, those rights could be opposentested or circumvented by our
competitors, or be declared invalid or unenforceabljudicial or administrative proceedings. Thiuf@ of our patents to adequately protect
our technology might make it easier for our contpetito offer the same or similar products or tedbgies. Even if we are successful in
receiving patent protection for certain productd processes, our competitors may be able to des@md our patents or develop products
provide outcomes which are comparable to ours witirdringing on our intellectual property righfBue to differences between foreign and
U.S. patent laws, our patented intellectual propeghts may not receive the same degree of prioteat foreign countries as they would in-
United States. Even if patents are granted outhiel®nited States, effective enforcement in thasentries may not be available.

We rely on our trademarks and trade names to digsh our products from the products of our contpesj and have registered or
applied to register many of these trademarks. Wiaaizassure you that our trademark applicationksh&ilapproved in a timely manner or at
Third parties also may oppose our trademark appies, or otherwise challenge our use of the trad&m In the event that our trademarks are
successfully challenged, we could be forced toaetbrour products, which could result in loss ohbreecognition, and could require us to
devote additional resources to marketing new braralither, we cannot assure you that competitoltsai infringe upon our trademarks, or
that we will have adequate resources to enforcerademarks.

We have entered into confidentiality agreementsiatadlectual property assignment agreements withofficers, employees, temporary
employees and consultants regarding our intelléptgerty and proprietary technology. In the evafntinauthorized use or disclosure or othe
breaches of those agreements, we may not be pobwiifle meaningful protection for our trade seckat®ther proprietary information.

If a competitor infringes upon one of our patetriademarks or other intellectual property rightsfpecing those patents, trademarks anc
other rights may be difficult and time consumingtdht law relating to the scope of claims in thaustry in which we operate is subject to
rapid change and constant evolution and, conselgugatent positions in our industry can be undertBven if successful, litigation to defend
our patents and trademarks against challengesasféoce our intellectual property rights coulddgensive and time consuming and could
divert management’s attention from managing ouirtass. Moreover, we may not have sufficient resesiar desire to defend our patents or
trademarks against challenges or to enforce oaliéatual property rights. Litigation also puts qatents at risk of being invalidated or
interpreted narrowly and our patent applicationsskt of not issuing. Additionally, we may provolt@rd parties to assert claims against us.
may not prevail in any lawsuits that we initiatelahe damages or other remedies awarded, if any notebe commercially valuable. The
occurrence of any of these events may have a rabselverse effect on our business, financial caordénd operating results.

41




The medical device industry is characterized byegstlitigation, and from time to time we may be gett to litigation that could be costl
result in the diversion of management’s time andats, or require us to pay damages.

Our success will depend in part on not infringihg patents or violating the other proprietary righft third parties. Significant litigation
regarding patent rights exists in our industry. ©@ompetitors in both the United States and abroehy of which have substantially greater
resources and have made substantial investmeatsripeting technologies, may have applied for oaioled or may in the future apply for and
obtain, patents that will prevent, limit or otheswiinterfere with our ability to make and sell puoducts. The large number of patents, the |
rate of new patent issuances, and the complexifidge technology involved increase the risk ofepatitigation.

From time to time we receive communications froimdtiparties alleging our infringement of their ilketual property rights. Any
intellectual property dispute or litigation coulakée us to do one or more of the following:

e stop selling our products or using technology ttmatitains the allegedly infringing intellectual peoty;
e incur significant legal expense

e pay substantial damages to the party whose inteiéproperty rights we are allegedly infringir

e redesign those products that contain the allegeftiynging intellectual property; ¢

e attempt to obtain a license to the relevant iettlial property from third parties, which may betavailable on reasonable terms ol
at all.

Any litigation or claim against us, even those withmerit, may cause us to incur substantial castd,could place a significant strain
our financial resources, divert the attention ohagement from our core business and harm our reput&urther, as the number of
participants in the diabetes market increasespdissibility of intellectual property infringemeriagns against us increases.

We may be subject to damages resulting from clathest we, or our employees, have wrongfully useddisclosed alleged trade secrets of
our competitors or are in breach of non-competitiam non-solicitation agreements with our competisor

Many of our employees were previously employedtla¢iomedical device companies, including those dmatbur direct competitors or
could potentially be our direct competitors. In sooases, those employees joined our company rgcévdl may be subject to claims that we,
or our employees, have inadvertently or otherwisedwor disclosed trade secrets or other propri@témymation of these former employers or
competitors. In addition, we have been and mapeérfiture be subject to allegations that we caasegimployee to breach the terms of his or
her non-competition or non-solicitation agreemeéitigation may be necessary to defend against thieéms. Even if we successfully defend
against these claims, litigation could cause umdor substantial costs, and could place a sigmifictrain on our financial resources, divert the
attention of management from our core businesshana our reputation. If our defense to those cldanis, in addition to paying monetary
damages, we may lose valuable intellectual prop@ghts or personnel. We cannot guarantee thatypis of litigation will not continue, and
any future litigation or the threat thereof may eibely affect our ability to hire additional diresetles representatives. A loss of key persont
their work product could hamper or prevent ourigbib commercialize proposed products, which cdwdgle an adverse effect on our busin
financial condition and operating results.

We may incur product liability losses, and insuramcoverage may be inadequate or unavailable to colvese losses.

Our business exposes us to potential productiligloiaims that are inherent in the design, manuifi@; testing and sale of medical
devices. We could become the subject of produbtlifia lawsuits alleging that component failuresamufacturing flaws, design defects or
inadequate disclosure of product-related risksrodpct-related information resulted in an unsafiedition, injury or death to customers. The
risk of one or more product liability claims or lswits may be even greater following our January2@luntary recall of cartridges used with
the t:slim pump. In addition, the misuse of ourdurcts or the failure of customers to adhere toatpey guidelines could cause significant h
to customers, including death, which could resufrioduct liability claims. Product liability lawgs and claims, safety alerts or product rec
with or without merit, could cause us to incur dabsal costs, and could place a significant stoairour financial resources, divert the atten
of management from our core business, harm outapn and adversely affect our ability to attrantl retain customers, any of which could
have a material adverse effect on our businesaial condition and operating results.

42




Although we maintain third-party product liabililgsurance coverage, it is possible that claimsregais may exceed the coverage limit:
of our insurance policies. Even if any productiliffploss is covered by an insurance policy, thpekcies typically have substantial deductil
for which we are responsible. Product liabilityiola in excess of applicable insurance coverageddeave a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and operating restitaddition, any product liability claim brougagainst us, with or without merit, could result
in an increase of our product liability insuraneerpiums. Insurance coverage varies in cost andbeatifficult to obtain, and we cannot
guarantee that we will be able to obtain insurarmerage in the future on terms acceptable to as alt. Our inability to obtain sufficient
insurance coverage to protect again potential piéhbility claims could prevent or limit our conarcialization of current products or
products currently under development.

Risks Related to our Legal and Regulatory Environmet

Our products and operations are subject to exteresgjovernmental regulation, and failure to complytiiapplicable requirements could
cause our business to suffer.

The medical device industry is regulated extengibgl governmental authorities, principally the FRAd corresponding state regulatory
agencies. The regulations are very complex andubject to rapid change and varying interpretati®egulatory restrictions or changes could
limit our ability to carry on or expand our opeaats or result in higher than anticipated cost®waelr than anticipated sales. The FDA and ¢
U.S. governmental agencies regulate numerous etsroépur business, including:

e product design and developme

pre-clinical and clinical testing and trial

e product safety

e establishment registration and product listi

e labeling and storag:

e marketing, manufacturing, sales and distribut
e pre-market clearance or approv

e servicing and po-market surveillance

e advertising and promotion; a1

e recalls and field safety corrective actio

Before we can market or sell a new regulated produa significant modification to an existing pumd in the United States, we must
obtain either clearance under Section 510(k) oFDEA or approval of a PMA application from the FD#nless an exemption from pre-
market review applies. In the 510(k) clearance gsscthe FDA must determine that a proposed déviseibstantially equivalent” to a device
legally on the market, known as a “predicate” deyigith respect to intended use, technology anetwaid effectiveness, in order to clear the
proposed device for marketing. Clinical data is stmes required to support substantial equivalefbe.PMA pathway requires an applicant
to demonstrate the safety and effectiveness ad¢hiece based on extensive data. The PMA procdgpitsally required for devices that are
deemed to pose the greatest risk, such as lifeisirgg, life-supporting or implantable devices. drots that are approved through a PMA
application generally need FDA approval before tbay be modified. Similarly, some modifications mad products cleared through a 510(k)
may require a new 510(k). The process of obtaindgulatory clearances or approvals to market a caédevice can be costly and time-
consuming, and we may not be able to obtain thiesgances or approvals on a timely basis, or doathur proposed products.

We initially received prenarket clearance for t:slim under Section 510(kthef FDCA in November 2011. We obtained 510(k) rcleae
for t:connect and t:flex in February 2013 and Jayp2815, respectively. From time to time, we makadifications to these products that may
require a new 510(k). We received 510(k) cleardacenodifications to t:slim and its associated dddge during 2014 and may pursue 510(k)
clearance for additional modifications in the fitulf the FDA requires us to go through a morenmigs examination for future products or
modifications to existing products than we had expe@, our product introductions or modificationsiicbbe delayed or canceled, which could
cause our sales to decline or to not increasaéwiith our forecasts. In addition, the FDA mayedetine that future products will require the
more costly, lengthy and uncertain PMA process.
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The FDA can delay, limit or deny clearance or apptof a device for many reasons, including:
e we may not be able to demonstrate that our produetsafe and effective for their intended us
e the data from our clinical trials may be insuffiti¢o support clearance or approval; i
e the manufacturing process or facilities we use nmaymeet applicable requiremer

In addition, the FDA may change its clearance gpt@val policies, adopt additional regulations@rise existing regulations, or take
other actions which may prevent or delay approval@arance of our products under development paghour ability to modify our currently
cleared or approved products on a timely basis.

Any delay in, or failure to receive or maintaineatance or approval for our products under devedmprrould prevent us from
generating revenue from these products or achigmiofitability. Additionally, the FDA and other ratatory authorities have broad
enforcement powers. Regulatory enforcement or niegjior other increased scrutiny on us, couldudids some customers from using our
products and adversely affect our reputation arctrceived safety and efficacy of our products.

Failure to comply with applicable regulations cojddpardize our ability to sell our products ansufein enforcement actions such as
fines, civil penalties, injunctions, warning legerecalls of products, delays in the introductéproducts into the market, refusal of the FDA
or other regulators to grant future clearancegpravals, and the suspension or withdrawal of egsapprovals by the FDA or other
regulators. Any of these sanctions could resuftigher than anticipated costs or lower than ardigig sales and have a material adverse effe
on our reputation, business, financial conditiod aperating results.

Further, we may evaluate international expansigrodpnities in the future. If we expand our operas outside of the United States, we
will become subject to various additional regulgitand legal requirements under the applicable Ewgsregulations of the international
markets we enter. These additional regulatory regueénts may involve significant costs and expenegand, if we are not able comply any
such requirements, our international expansiontarsihess could be significantly harmed.

Modifications to our products may require new 51Q(&earances or pr-market approvals, or may require us to cease mairkgbr recall the
modified products until clearances are obtained.

Any modification to a 510(k)-cleared device thaticbsignificantly affect its safety or effectiveisesr that would constitute a major
change in its intended use, design, or manufactegeires a new 510(k) clearance or, possibly, &P®he FDA requires every manufacturer
to make this determination in the first instanadt, the FDA may review any manufacturer’s decisibime FDA may not agree with our
decisions regarding whether new clearances or apfgare necessary for changes that we have mame froducts. If the FDA disagrees
with our determination and requires us to submit 6&0(k) notifications or PMAs for modifications twir previously cleared or approved
products for which we previously concluded that reé@arances or approvals were not necessary, webmesquired to cease marketing or to
recall the modified product until we obtain cleararr approval, and we may be subject to significagulatory fines or penalties.

Further, the FDA'’s ongoing review of the 510(k) gram may make it more difficult for us to modifyrqureviously cleared products,
either by imposing stricter requirements on whema 510(k) for a modification to a previously cleduproduct must be submitted, or by
applying more onerous review criteria to such suisions.

If we or our third-party suppliers fail to comply with the FDA’s goadanufacturing practice regulations, this could inair our ability to
market our products in a cost-effective and timehanner.

We and our third-party suppliers are required tmply with the FDA's Quality System Regulation, 08R), which covers the methods
and documentation of the design, testing, prodactontrol, quality assurance, labeling, packagsteyilization, storage and shipping of our
products. The FDA audits compliance with the QSRubh periodic announced and unannounced inspsatibmanufacturing and other
facilities. The FDA may impose inspections or asidit any time. If we or our suppliers have sigaifichon-compliance issues or if any
corrective action plan that we or our suppliergpose in response to observed deficiencies is rifitisnt, the FDA could take enforcement
action against us. Any of the foregoing actionsld¢dwave a material adverse effect on our reputabosiness, financial condition and opera
results.
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A recall of our products, or the discovery of sem®safety issues with our products, could havegn#ficant negative impact on us

The FDA has the authority to require the recat@hmercialized products in the event of materidictncies or defects in design or
manufacture or in the event that a product posasanceptable risk to health. Manufacturers magleutheir own initiative, recall a product if
any material deficiency in a device is found. A gmment-mandated or voluntary recall by us, oneuofdistributors or any of our other third-
party suppliers could occur as a result of an uegiable risk to health, component failures, martufarg errors, design or labeling defects or
other deficiencies and issues. Recalls of any prisdihat we distribute would divert managerial &indncial resources and have an adverse
effect on our reputation, financial condition ammkmting results, which could impair our abilitygmduce our products in a cost-effective and
timely manner.

Further, under the FDA's medical device reportimmgMDR, regulations, we are required to report® EDA any incident in which our
product may have caused or contributed to a deagbr@mus injury or in which our product malfunctem and, if the malfunction were to recur,
would likely cause or contribute to death or sesimjury. Repeated product malfunctions may reisudt voluntary or involuntary product
recall, which could divert managerial and financ&dources, impair our ability to manufacture ourdpicts in a cost-effective and timely
manner and have an adverse effect on our reputditi@mcial condition and operating results.

In January 2014, we implemented a voluntary rexfadelect lots of cartridges used with t:slim thetty be at risk of leaking. A cartridge
leak could potentially result in the delivery obtouch or too little insulin, which could lead toaxpected high or low blood glucose levels.
Too much insulin can result in severe low bloodasugr hypoglycemia, and too little insulin candda severe high blood sugar, or
hyperglycemia, both of which can lead to seriojsrinor death. We notified the FDA of the recalbaalso notified our customers and any of
our independent distributors that may have receafeatted cartridges. We have also filed multiplBRs with the FDA following the recall
and we may file additional MDRs in the future asaedect additional information.

Any adverse event involving any products that watritiute could result in future voluntary correetiactions, such as recalls or custo
notifications, or regulatory agency action, whiculd include inspection, mandatory recall or otkeforcement action. Any corrective action,
whether voluntary or involuntary, will require tdedication of our time and capital, distract mamaget from operating our business and may
harm our reputation and financial results.

Our failure to comply with U.S. federal and stateafid and abuse laws, including anti-kickback lawsé other U.S. federal and state anti-
referral laws, could have a material, adverse impaa our business.

There are numerous U.S. federal and state lawaipig to healthcare fraud and abuse, includinglackback laws and physician self-
referral laws. Our relationships with healthcareviers and other third parties are subject totsgywnder these laws. Violations of these i
are punishable by criminal and civil sanctions)uding, in some instances, imprisonment and exatufiiom participation in federal and state
healthcare programs, including the Medicare, Madiaad Veterans Administration health programs.

Healthcare fraud and abuse regulations are comaltekeven minor irregularities can potentially giige to claims that a statute or
prohibition has been violated. The laws that mdgaifour ability to operate include:

e the federal healthcare programs’ Anti-Kickbacku, ahich prohibits, among other things, persongifimowingly and willfully
soliciting, receiving, offering or providing remuwagion, directly or indirectly, in exchange fortorinduce either the referral of an
individual for, or the purchase, order or recomnaginsh of, any good or service for which payment rhaymade under federal
healthcare programs such as the Medicare and Mdgioagrams

e federal false claims laws which prohibit, amortigen things, individuals or entities from knowinglyesenting, or causing to be
presented, claims for payment from Medicare, Mdadicar other thir-party payors that are false or fraudule

o the federal HIPAA of 1996, which created federahinal laws that prohibit executing a schemeeaéralud any healthcare benefit
program or making false statements relating totheate matters

e the Federal Trade Commission Act and similar lagggifating advertisement and consumer protectiars
e foreign and U.S. state law equivalents of eacthefabove federal laws, such as anti-kickbackfalse claims laws which may

apply to items or services reimbursed by any -party payor, including commercial insure
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Further, the Patient Protection and Affordable Gset as amended by the Healthcare and Educatifordebility Reconciliation Act,
or, collectively, the PPACA, among other things gatis the intent requirement of the federal antididck and criminal healthcare fraud
statutes. A person or entity can now be found guiftder the PPACA without actual knowledge of ttatge or specific intent to violate it. In
addition, the PPACA provides that the governmeny assert that a claim including items or servieslting from a violation of the federal
anti-kickback statute constitutes a false or fraewliuclaim for purposes of the false claims statuRossible sanctions for violation of these ant
kickback laws include monetary fines, civil andnainal penalties, exclusion from Medicare and Medigaograms and forfeiture of amounts
collected in violation of those prohibitions. Aniplations of these laws, or any action againstons/folation of these laws, even if we
successfully defend against it, could result inadarial adverse effect on our reputation, busin@ssncial condition and operating results.

To enforce compliance with the federal laws, th8.UDepartment of Justice, or DOJ, has recentlyesmed its scrutiny of interactions
between healthcare companies and healthcare preyislkich has led to a number of investigationespcutions, convictions and settlements
in the healthcare industry. Dealing with investigas can be time- and resource-consuming and e@ntdnanagement’s attention from our
core business. Additionally, if a healthcare conypsettles an investigation with the DOJ or other émforcement agencies, we may be forcec
to agree to additional onerous compliance and tegprequirements as part of a consent decreerpocate integrity agreement. Any such
investigation or settlement could increase oursosbtherwise have an adverse effect on our bssine

The scope and enforcement of these laws is unoetal subject to rapid change in the current enwient of healthcare reform,
especially in light of the lack of applicable prdeat and regulations. Federal or state regulatotfyosities might challenge our current or fut
activities under these laws. Any of these challsngmild have a material adverse effect on our agjout, business, financial condition and
operating results. Any state or federal regulateryew of us, regardless of the outcome, woulddsdlg and time-consuming. Additionally, we
cannot predict the impact of any changes in thess,lwhether or not retroactive.

We may be liable if we engage in the off-label protion of our products.

Our promotional materials and training methods necostply with FDA and other applicable laws and tatians, including the
prohibition of the promotion of the off-label useaur products. Healthcare providers may use oodypets off-label, as the FDA does not
restrict or regulate a physician’s choice of treatinwithin the practice of medicine. However, i€ thDA determines that our promotional
materials or training constitutes promotion of &flabel use, it could request that we modify oumtirsg or promotional materials or subject
to regulatory or enforcement actions, includingigseiance of an untitled letter, a warning lefitgunction, seizure, civil fine and criminal
penalties. It is also possible that other fedestake or foreign enforcement authorities might ta&kon if they consider our promotional or
training materials to constitute promotion of ampproved use, which could result in significanefiror penalties. Although our policy is to
refrain from statements that could be consider&thbEl promotion of our products, the FDA or arerthegulatory agency could disagree and
conclude that we have engaged in off-label pronmotio addition, the off-label use of our productaynincrease the risk of product liability
claims. Product liability claims are expensive &fethd and could result in substantial damage awagdmst us and harm our reputation.

Legislative or regulatory healthcare reforms may k®it more difficult and costly for us to obtain gailatory clearance or approval of ot
products.

Recent political, economic and regulatory influenaee subjecting the healthcare industry to funddahehanges. The sales of our
products depend in part on the availability of cage and reimbursement from third-party payors sischovernment health administration
authorities, private health insurers, health maiatee organizations and other healthcare-relatgghrations. Both the Federal and state
governments in the United States continue to p@pos! pass new legislation and regulations designedntain or reduce the cost of
healthcare. This legislation and regulation mayltes decreased reimbursement for medical deviebg;h may further exacerbate industry-
wide pressure to reduce the prices charged forgakdevices. This could harm our ability to mar&et products and generate sales.

In addition, FDA regulations and guidance are oftarised or reinterpreted by the FDA in ways thayraignificantly affect our busine
and our products. Any new regulations or revisioneeinterpretations of existing regulations mayase additional costs or lengthen review
times of our products. Delays in receipt of ordedl to receive regulatory clearances or approwalsir proposed products would have a
material adverse effect on our business, finargatition and operating results.
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Federal and state governments in the United Stetes enacted legislation to overhaul the natioeathcare system. While the goal of
healthcare reform is to expand coverage to morieitghehls, it also involves increased governmentgdontrols, additional regulatory
mandates and other measures designed to constedisahcosts. The PPACA substantially changes tiyehealthcare is financed by both
governmental and private insurers, encourages wepnents in the quality of healthcare items andisesvand significantly impacts the
medical device industries. Among other things,RRACA:

e establishes a new Patient-Centered Outcomes RRbdeatitute to oversee, identify priorities indaconduct comparative clinical
effectiveness researc

e implements payment system reforms including a natipilot program on payment bundling to encouragepitals, physicians ai
other providers to improve the coordination, qyadihd efficiency of certain healthcare servicesulyh bundled payment models;
and

e creates an independent payment advisory boaravth@aubmit recommendations to reduce Medicarensting if projected
Medicare spending exceeds a specified growth

In addition, other legislative changes have beep@sed and adopted since the PPACA was enacted.rétesntly, on August 2, 2011,
the President signed into law the Budget Contrdla@011, which, among other things, creates tiet Select Committee on Deficit
Reduction to recommend to Congress proposals imdépg reductions. The Joint Select Committee didawhieve a targeted deficit reduction
of at least $1.2 trillion for the years 2013 thrb®P21, triggering the legislation’s automatic retion to several government programs. This
includes aggregate reductions to Medicare paymemisoviders of up to 2% per fiscal year which coemwed in 2013. The uncertainties
regarding the ultimate features of the PPACA aimiohealthcare reform initiatives and their enactinaad implementation may have an
adverse effect on our customers’ purchasing dewssiegarding our products. In the coming yearsitiatddl changes could be made to
governmental healthcare programs that could sicanifly impact the success of our products. Costrabimitiatives could decrease the price
that we receive for our products. At this time, ea@not predict which, if any, additional healthceeform proposals will be adopted, when t
may be adopted or what impact they, or the PPACay hrave on our business and operations, and atnesé impacts may be adverse on our
operating results and financial condition.

Our financial performance may be adversely affecteg medical device tax provisions in the healthcaedorm laws.

The PPACA imposes, among other things, an annuadexax of 2.3% on any entity that manufactureisnports medical devices
offered for sale in the United States beginningdd 3. Under these provisions, the Congressionatdtebl Service predicts that the total cost t
the medical device industry may be up to $20 billiwer the next decade. We do not believe thatouent products are currently subject to
this tax based on the retail exemption under appleTreasury Regulations. However, the availghbiftthis exemption is subject to
interpretation by the IRS, and the IRS may disagriéle our analysis. In addition, future productattive manufacture, produce or import may
be subject to this tax. The financial impact tlis inay have on our business is unclear and thereeao assurance that our business will not
be materially adversely affected by it.

Risks Related to our Common Stock

Because of their significant stock ownership, cdrtaf our executive officers, directors and prinapstockholders will be able to exe
control over us and our significant corporate deimss.

Based on an aggregate of 23,654,745 shares obounon stock outstanding as of December 31, 201dexacutive officers and
directors, and their affiliates owned, in the agate, over 50% of the voting power of our outstagdiommon stock. These persons, acting
together, will have the ability to significantlyfinence or determine the outcome of all mattersrsttbd to our stockholders for approval,
including the election and removal of directors angt merger, consolidation, or sale of all or sabally all of our assets.

The interests of the aforementioned stockholdeghtmiot coincide with the interests of the otheldbos of our capital stock. This
concentration of ownership may reduce the valusuofcommon stock by, among other things:

e delaying, deferring or preventing a change in adrdf our company
e impeding a merger, consolidation, takeover or othginess combination involving our company

e causing us to enter into transactions or agreentieatsare not in the best interests of all stocttard.
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Anti-takeover provisions in our organizational documergiad Delaware law may discourage or prevent a charg control, even if ar
acquisition would be beneficial to our stockholdemshich could reduce our stock price and preventratockholders from replacing or
removing our current management.

Our amended and restated certificate of incorpamadind bylaws contain provisions that could delagrevent a change of control of «
company or changes in our board of directors thastockholders might consider favorable. Soméne$¢ provisions:

e authorize the issuance of preferred stock witlvgrs, preferences and rights that may be seniout@ommon stock, which can be
created and issued by the board of directors withdar stockholder approve

e provide for the adoption of a staggered boardirgctors whereby the board is divided into thriesses each of which has a
different thre-year term;

e provide that the number of directors shall be fikgdhe board
e prohibit our stockholders from filling board vaces;

e provide for the removal of a director only withuse and then by the affirmative vote of the halddra majority of the outstanding
shares

e prohibit stockholders from calling special stocldei meetings
e prohibit stockholders from acting by written consetithout holding a meeting of stockholde

e require the vote of at least two-thirds of théstanding shares to approve amendments to thé@adiof incorporation or bylaws;
and

e require advance written notice of stockholder pegi® and director nominatior

We are subject to the provisions of Section 20thefDelaware General Corporation Law, which mayhjlit certain business
combinations with stockholders owning 15% or mdrew outstanding voting stock. These and othevigions in our amended and restated
certificate of incorporation, bylaws and Delawaaes Icould make it more difficult for stockholderspmtential acquirers to obtain control of «
board of directors or initiate actions that areaggad by our then-current board of directors, iniclgé merger, tender offer or proxy contest
involving our company. Any delay or prevention affeange of control transaction or changes in oardof directors could cause the market
price of our common stock to decline.

Our board of directors is authorized to issue andsijnate shares of our preferred stock in additidisaries without stockholder approval.

Our amended and restated certificate of incorpamaduthorizes our board of directors, without thpraval of our stockholders, to issue
5,000,000 shares of our preferred stock, subjelatiitations prescribed by applicable law, rulesl aegulations and the provisions of our
amended and restated certificate of incorporafsrshares of preferred stock in series, and tbledidrom time to time the number of shares
to be included in each such series, and to fixd#sgnation, powers, preferences and rights ofhiaees of each such series and the
qualifications, limitations or restrictions there@he powers, preferences and rights of theseiadédltseries of preferred stock may be senit
or on parity with our common stock, and the isseamftsuch shares in the future may reduce the \afloar common stock.

Our ability to use our net operating loss carryfoands and certain other tax attributes may be lindte

As of December 31, 2014, we have federal net ojperédass, or NOL, carryforwards of approximately7$12 million. In general, if ther
is an “ownership change” with respect to our conypas defined under Section 382 of the InternaldRee Code of 1986, as amended, which
we refer to as the Code, the utilization of our N€tryforwards may be subject to substantial litiates imposed by the Code, and similar
state provisions. In general, an ownership chawgars whenever there is a shift in ownership ofammpany by more than 50% by one or
more 5% stockholders over a specified time peNgd.updated our Section 382/383 analysis, from Jgriid2012 through December 31,
2013, regarding the limitation of the net operatiwgses and research and development credits. Baeedthe analysis, we determined that no
ownership changes occurred during that period. Weweorevious analysis determined that ownershgnghs have occurred in years prior to
2012, but will not have a material impact on theeifa utilization of such carryforwards. We may aésgperience ownership changes in the
future as a result of subsequent shifts in ourksteenership. Accordingly, if we earn net taxabledme, our ability to use net operating loss
carryforwards to offset U.S. federal taxable incamay become subject to limitations, which couldepbially result in increases in our future
tax liabilities.
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We do not intend to pay cash dividends.

We have never declared or paid cash dividends oranital stock. We currently intend to retainathilable funds and any future
earnings for use in the operation and expansia@upbusiness and do not anticipate paying any dastiends in the foreseeable future. In
addition, pursuant to the term loan agreements @itpital Royalty Partners, we are precluded frogirgpany cash dividends. Accordingly,
you may have to sell some or all of your sharesusfcommon stock in order to generate cash flomfyour investment. You may not rece
a gain on your investment when you sell sharesyandnay lose the entire amount of the investment.

The requirements of being a public company will ilease our costs and may strain our resources ancedi management’s attention.

As a public company, we are subject to the repgntaguirements of the Securities Exchange Act 841@s amended, the Dodd-Frank
Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection ActherDodd-Frank Act, the listing requirements of TM&SDAQ Stock Market and other
applicable securities rules and regulations. Coanpke with these rules and regulations has incremsel@gal and financial compliance costs,
make some activities more difficult, time-consumargcostly, and increase demand on our systemsesadirces.

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, or the SarbanesyOXtt, requires, among other things, that we nadiinéffective disclosure controls
and procedures and internal control over finamapbrting. Recent legislation permits “emergingvgiitocompanies” to implement many of
these requirements over a longer period and upé¢oykars from the end of our last fiscal year. Mtend to take advantage of this new
legislation but cannot guarantee that we will n@tréquired to implement these requirements sobia@r budgeted or planned and thereby inct
unexpected expenses.

In order to maintain and, if required, improve disclosure controls and procedures and internatcbover financial reporting to meet
this standard, significant resources and manageovensight may be required. As a result, managematiention may be diverted from other
business concerns, which could harm our busines®p@rating results. Although we have hired addé@lemployees to help us comply with
these requirements, in the future we may needreornore employees or utilize external consultamtzrder to further support our efforts, wr
will increase our expenses.

New regulations related to "conflict minerals" magause us to incur additional expenses and coulditithe supply and increase the cost
certain metals used in manufacturing our products.

On August 22, 2012, the SEC adopted a new ruleniegudisclosures by public companies of specifigiderals, known as conflict
minerals, that are necessary to the functionatitgroduction of products manufactured or contrattele manufactured. The rule requires
companies to perform due diligence, disclose amdialty report to the SEC whether or not such milseseginate from the Democratic
Republic of Congo or an adjoining country. The redelld affect sourcing at competitive prices andilability in sufficient quantities of certa
minerals used in the manufacture of our produntduding tantalum, tin, gold and tungsten. The nendf suppliers who provide conflict-free
minerals may be limited. In addition, there maynteterial costs associated with complying with thseldsure requirements, such as costs
related to determining the source of certain milsaraed in our products, as well as costs of ptessianges to products, processes, or source
of supply as a consequence of such verificatioiviies. Within our supply chain, we may not beatb sufficiently verify the origins of the
relevant minerals used in our products througtdtiee diligence procedures that we implement, whiely hlarm our reputation. We are
currently investigating the use of conflict matéjaf any, within our supply chain.

We are an “emerging growth company” and we do noiokv whether the reduced disclosure requirements aelief from certain other
significant obligations that are applicable to enw®ng growth companies will make our common stockdeattractive to investor.

We are an “emerging growth compangg defined in the Jumpstart our Business Startup®#2012, or the JOBS Act, and we inten
take advantage of certain exemptions from variepsnting requirements that apply to other publicmpanies that are not “emerging growth
companies.” These exemptions include the following:

e not being required to comply with the auditor aaéien requirements of Section 404 of the Sark-Oxley Act;

e less extensive disclosure obligations regarding@tkee compensation in our periodic reports andkpistatements; ar

e exemptions from the requirements to hold a nafibpadvisory vote on executive compensation aock$iolder approval of any
golden parachute payments not previously apprc
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We intend to take advantage of these exemptionsdiuiot guarantee that we will not be requiredrplément these requirements
sooner than budgeted or planned and thereby imexpected expenses. We cannot predict if investidirind our common stock less
attractive because we will rely on these exemptitirmome investors find our common stock lessaative as a result, there may be a less
active trading market for our common stock, whiohld result in a reduction in the price of our coamstock.

Pursuant to the JOBS Act, our independent registéngublic accounting firm will not be required to st to the effectiveness of our interr
control over financial reporting for so long as ware an “emerging growth company.”

Under existing SEC rules and regulations, we valrbquired to disclose changes made in our inteoratrol over financial reporting on
a quarterly basis and management will be requbeabsess the effectiveness of our controls annuddiwever, under the JOBS Act, our
independent registered public accounting firm wit be required to attest to the effectivenessuofiternal control over financial reporting
pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2062 until we are no longer an “emerging growtmpany.” We could be an “emerging
growth company” for up to five years from our Nousen 2013 initial public offering.

If we fail to maintain an effective system of inteal control over financial reporting, we may not kable to accurately report our financie
results or prevent fraud. As a result, stockholdesuld lose confidence in our financial and othewuplic reporting, which would harm our
business and the trading price of our common stock.

Effective internal controls over financial repogiare necessary for us to provide reliable findnejports and, together with adequate
disclosure controls and procedures, are designpcet@nt fraud. Any failure to implement requireznor improved controls, or difficulties
encountered in their implementation could cause digil to meet our reporting obligations. In addlit, any testing by us conducted in
connection with Section 404(a) of the SarbanesYDAl, or the subsequent testing by our independsgistered public accounting firm
conducted in connection with Section 404(b) of $a@banes-Oxley Act after we no longer qualify aseanerging growth company,” may
reveal deficiencies in our internal controls oviaahcial reporting that are deemed to be materggknesses or that may require prospective ¢
retroactive changes to our consolidated finan¢&kments or identify other areas for further ditenor improvement. Inferior internal contr
could also cause investors to lose confidence ineported financial information, which could hawv@egative effect on the trading price of
common stock.

We are required to disclose changes made in ogimiakt control procedures on a quarterly basis amamanagement is required to as¢
the effectiveness of these controls annually. Hexeglor as long as we are an “emerging growth campander the JOBS Act, our
independent registered public accounting firm wit be required to attest to the effectivenesauofirernal control over financial reporting
pursuant to Section 404. We could be an “emergiogvth company” for up to five years from our Novesnl2013 initial public offering. An
independent assessment of the effectiveness dftaunal controls could detect problems that ounagement’s assessment might not.
Undetected material weaknesses in our internakaisntould lead to financial statement restatemantsrequire us to incur the expense of
remediation.

The price of our common stock might fluctuate sidicantly.

Prior to our initial public offering in November 28, there was no public market for our common stdtie trading price of our comm
stock is likely to be volatile for the foreseeahlture. Our stock price could be subject to widestliations in response to a variety of factors,
including the following:

e actual or anticipated fluctuations in our quartdihancial and operating resul

e our actual or perceived need for additional capiddlind our operation:

e perceptions about the market acceptance of ourpts@nd the recognition of our bra

e overall performance of the equity marke

e introduction of proposed products, or announcemefisggnificant contracts, licenses or acquisitidngsus or our competitor
e legislative, political or regulatory developmer

e issuance of securities analy reports or recommendatior

e additions or departures of key personi
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e threatened or actual litigation and government stigations;
e sale of shares of our common stock by us or mendfersr management; ai
e general economic conditior

These and other factors might cause the market pfiour common stock to fluctuate substantiallgich may negatively affect the
liquidity of our common stock. In addition, in reteyears, the stock market has experienced signifiprice and volume fluctuations. This
volatility has had a significant impact on the mergrice of securities issued by many companiessaamany industries. The changes
frequently appear to occur without regard to therapng performance of the affected companies. Atingly, the price of our common stock
could fluctuate based upon factors that have littlaothing to do with our company, and these tlatibns could materially reduce our share
price.

Securities class action litigation has often bewstituted against companies following periods détility in the overall market and in tt
market price of a company’s securities. This litiga, if instituted against us, could result in stamtial costs, divert our managemsrattentio
and resources, and harm our business, operatinljsrasd financial condition.

Future sales, or the perception of future sales,gbfares of our common stock could materially redube market price of our common stoc

Sales of our common stock, or the perception imtaeket that the holders of a large number of bares intend to sell such shares,
could reduce the market price of our common stokicivwould impair our ability to raise future cagithrough the sale of additional equity
securities. We had outstanding 23,654,745 sharesromon stock as of December 31, 2014, of whichieymately 12,125,412 shares are
restricted securities that may be sold only in agaoce with the resale restrictions under Ruledf4ie Securities Act of 1933, as amended, ©
the Securities Act. In addition, as of December281,4, we had outstanding options to purchase $)8Blshares of common stock and
warrants to purchase 1,006,577 shares of commah #iat, if exercised, will result in these additid shares becoming available for sale. /
December 31, 2014, there are also an aggregat®é1¥,848 shares of our common stock reserved fardigrant or issuance under our 2013
Equity Incentive Plan and Employee Stock Purchdae. P

Certain holders of shares of common stock haveigie, subject to various conditions and limitasoto include their shares in
registration statements relating to our securitiesddition, these holders are entitled to piggyo@egistration rights with respect to the
registration under the Securities Act of sharesusfcommon stock. Shares of common stock sold uhése registration statements can be
freely sold in the public market. In the event stgition rights are exercised and a large numbshafes of common stock are sold in the p
market, those sales could reduce the trading pfioeir common stock.

In the future, we also may issue our securitiegeifneed to raise additional capital. The numberesd shares of our common stock
issued in connection with raising additional cagitauld constitute a material portion of the thenstanding shares of our common stock.
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Item 1B.  Unresolved Staff Comments

Not applicable.
Item 2. Properties.

As of December 31, 2014, we leased an aggregappbximately 107,000 square feet of manufactufadgpratory and office space in
San Diego, California under an operating leaseckvis scheduled to expire in June 2019. Substang#lof our operations are conducted at
this facility, including our manufacturing processeesearch and development activities, custonektesrhnical support, and management and
administrative functions.

We believe that the facilities that we presentlgugay of approximately 90,000 square feet, togettithr the additional facilities of
approximately 17,000 square feet, that we expeattoipy in 2015, are sufficient to support our eatroperations, and that suitable additional
facilities would be available to us should our @iems require it.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

From time to time we may be involved in variouspdi®es and litigation matters that arise in themady course of business. We are
currently not a party to any material legal proéegs.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.

52




PART II
Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Eity Securities
Market Information
Our common stock began trading on The NASDAQ Gldbatket on November 14, 2013 under the symbol “TNDRtior to such

time, there was no public market for our commorelstd he following table sets forth the high and Isales prices per share of our common
stock as reported on The NASDAQ Global Market Far period indicated.

Price Range
High Low

Year Ended December 31, 201

Fourth Quarter (commencing November 14, 2( $ 27.0C $ 18.61
Year Ended December 31, 2014:

First Quartel $ 3028 3% 20.6¢
Second Quarte $ 22.6¢ $ 13.5(
Third Quartel $ 176 $ 12.3¢
Fourth Quarte $ 17.9¢ $ 10.7¢

The last sale price for our common stock as reddsfeThe NASDAQ Global Market on February 20, 20d&s $13.54 per share.
Holders of Record

As of February 20, 2015, there were approximat&alders of record of our common stock. The actuahber of common
stockholders is greater than the number of recoldens, and includes stockholders who are benébeiaers, but whose shares are held in
street name by brokers and other nominees. Thivauof holders of record also does not includeldtolders whose shares may be held in
trust by other entities.
Dividend Policy

We have never declared or paid any cash dividendsiocommon stock. At the present time, we havplans to declare or pay any
dividends and intend to retain all of our futureng@ags, if any, generated by our operations fordeeelopment and growth of our business.
future decision to pay dividends will be made by board of directors in its sole discretion and wépend upon our results of operations,
financial condition, capital requirements and otfaetors that our board of directors deems releiraits informed business judgment. In
addition, the terms of our term loan agreementk ®apital Royalty Partners restricts our abilitypty cash dividends.
Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Comensation Plans

Information about our equity compensation plarisdésrporated herein by reference to Part Ill, ItEPn

Repurchases of Equity Securities

There were no repurchases of equity securitie®1 2
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Performance Measurement Comparisor

The following graph shows a comparison from Novenihke 2013 (the date our common stock commenceééihtyaon The NASDAQ
Global Market) through December 31, 2014 of the alative total return for our common stock, compaagdinst the NASDAQ Composite
Index and NASDAQ Medical Equipment Index. The gragbumes an initial investment of $100 on Novenide2013. The comparisons in
the graph are not intended to forecast or be itidieaf possible future performance of our commttk.
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The preceding graph and related information statlbe deemed “soliciting material,” shall not beeohed “filed” with the SEC, shall ni
be subject to the liabilities of Section 18 of Exchange Act, and shall not be incorporated byregiee in any of our filings under the
Securities Act or the Exchange Act whether maderieedr after the date hereof and irrespective gfgeneral incorporation language in any
such filing.

Use of Proceeds

Our initial public offering of common stock was efted through a Registration Statement on Forn(Bld. No. 333191601) which wa
declared effective by the SEC on November 13, 20tB8November 14, 2013, additional shares of ourmomstock were registered through a
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 3333P9}) filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the SdesrAct. On November 19, 2013, a
total of 8,000,000 shares of common stock were @onldur behalf at the initial public offering prioc€$15.00 per share, for aggregate gross
offering proceeds of $120.0 million, managed by Merynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated @ider Jaffray & Co. In addition, on
November 19, 2013, in connection with the exeroisthe underwriter over-allotment option, 1,200,000 additional stsapé common stock
were sold on our behalf at the initial public offey price of $15.00 per share, for aggregate goffesing proceeds of $18.0 million. We paid
the underwriters underwriting discounts totalingrgximately $9.7 million in connection with the effng. In addition, we incurred additional
costs of approximately $3.3 million in connectioithithe offering, which when added to the underwgtdiscounts paid by us, amounts to t
costs of approximately $13.0 million. As a restlit net offering proceeds to us, after deductirdeunnriting discounts and offering expenses,
were approximately $125.0 million.

The net proceeds from the offering were initialtyésted in money market funds and highly-liquidjhiy-rated securities. We also
estimate that we have since used approximatelys$@ilion to expand and support our sales and niendgénfrastructure, approximately $1¢
million to fund research and development activjtesd approximately $34.5 million to expand andpsrpour manufacturing capabilities. The
remaining $4.0 million offering proceeds were ufmdnterest payments.

54




ltem 6. Selected Financial Date

The selected financial data presented below urttkeheading “Statements of Operations Data” for ylears ended December 31, 2014,
2013 and 2012 and the selected financial data prieskbelow under the heading “Balance Sheet Dawb&December 31, 2014 and 2013
have been derived from our audited financial staets included elsewhere in this Annual Report. Setected statement of operations data fo
the years ended December 31, 2011 and the baldmest data as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 areehkbfrom our audited financial
statements not included in this Annual Report. §élected financial data presented below shoulddagl iin conjunction with the information
included under the heading “Management’s Discussind Analysis of Financial Condition and Result©gpierations” in Part Il, Item 7 and
the financial statements and the related notesart P, Item 8. Our historical results for any priperiod are not necessarily indicative of
results to be expected in any future period.

Statements of Operations Data:

Year Ended December 31

(in thousands, except per share datz 2014 2013 2012 2011
Sales $ 49,72: $ 29,007 $ 2478 $ —
Cost of sale: 34,47¢ 22,84( 3,82¢ —
Gross profit (loss 15,24¢ 6,167 (1,34 —
Operating expense

Selling,general and administratiy 75,121 44,52; 22,691 15,951
Research and developme 15,791 11,07¢ 9,00¢ 8,261
Total operating expens 90,912 55,601 31,70C 24,21z
Operating los: (75,669 $ (49,439 3 (33,045 $ (24,219
Total other income (expense), | (3,789 (13,705 33 (1,29¢)
Net loss before taxe $ (79,457 $ (63,139) $ (33,015) $ (25,510
Provision for income taxe 71
Net loss $ (79,524 $ (63,139) $ (33,015) $ (25,510
Net loss per share, basic and dilu $ (342 $ (21.46) $ (175.8¢)) $  (149.8%)
Weighted average shares used to compute basidlatetichet loss per
share; 23,27z 2,942 188 170

Balance Sheet Data:

As of December 31,
(in thousands) 2014 2013 2012 2011

Cash and cash equivalents $ 31,17¢ % 124,38t $ 17,162 $ 8,657
Shor-term investment $ 36,10¢ $ 5,09 $ — $ —
Working capital $ 72,651 $ 134,39C $ 10,76z $ (6,87€)
Property and equipment, r $ 12,581 $ 9,88t $ 8,98¢ $ 4,171
Total asset $ 106,46¢ $ 162,21 $ 39,817 $ 13,97¢
Notes payabli $ 29,44C % 29,397 $ 420 % 12,857
Convertible preferred stoc $ — $ — 8 124,63¢ $ 67,93(
Total stockholder equity (deficit) $ 5457 % 115,537 $ (106,057 $ (71,29%5)
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Item 7. Managemen’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operations

You should read the following discussion and analygether with “Selected Financial Data” in Paltt Item 6 and our financial
statements and related notes in Part Il, Item & Tdilowing discussion contains forward-lookingtetaents that involve risks and
uncertainties. Our actual results could differ méa#ly from those expressed or implied in any forddooking statements as a result of vari
factors, including those set forth under the cap“Risk Factors” in Part I, Item 1A.

Certain statements contained in this Annual ReporEorm 10-K, including statements regarding theedepment, growth and
expansion of our business, our intent, belief orent expectations, primarily with respect to outure operating performance, and the
products we expect to offer and other statememjaroéng matters that are not historical facts, forward-looking statements” within the
meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act anti@®@e21E of the Exchange Act, and are subjedh¢d‘safe harbor” created by these
sections. Future filings with the SEC, future predsases and future oral or written statements enlagl us or with our approval, which are not
statements of historical fact, may also contaimfand-looking statements. Because such statemesitalarisks and uncertainties, many of
which are beyond our control, actual results mdfedimaterially from those expressed or impliecshgh forward-looking statements. Some o
the factors that could cause actual results toediffiaterially from those expressed or implied byhsiorward-looking statements can be found
under the caption “Risk Factors” and elsewherelitstAnnual Report. Readers are cautioned not teglandue reliance on forward-looking
statements. The forward-looking statements spelgkasnof the date on which they are made, and vdenake no obligation to update such
statements to reflect events that occur or circamsts that exist after the date on which they saden

Overview

We are a medical device company with an innovatweroach to the design, development and commeraiiln of products for people
with insulin-dependent diabetes. We designed antheercialized our flagship product, the t:slim InsWelivery System, or t:slim, based on
our proprietary technology platform and unique eonsr-focused approach. The foundation of our progarfolio is our proprietary
technology platform and unique consumer-focusedagmh, which allows us to focus on both consumdraimical needs to develop and
commercialize products that address different segsnaf the insulin-dependent diabetes market. Wgaib&ommercial sales of t:slim, in
August 2012. In January 2015 we received clearfmoe the U.S. Food and Drug Administrat ion, or FR#& commercialize our next product,
the t:flex Insulin Delivery System, or t:flex , fpeople with greater insulin needs. We intend @irbeommercial sales of t:flex in the United
States during the second quarter of 2015.

Our technology platform features our patented Midadivery Technology, a miniaturized pumping meckaniwhich draws insulin fro
a flexible bag within the pump’s cartridge rathiear relying on a syringe and plunger mechanismaisti features an easy-tavigate embedd:
software architecture, a vivid color touchscreed amicro-USB connection that supports both a nefable battery and t:connect, our data
management application. Our innovative approagiraduct design and development is also consumersatand based on our extensive
market research as we believe the user is the pridexision maker when purchasing an insulin puvip.also apply the science of human
factors to our design and development process,hndgeks to optimize our devices to the intendetsuatowing users to successfully operate
our devices in their intended environment. Levarggiur technology platform and consuniecused approach, we develop products to adi
unmet needs of people in different segments ofdtge and growing insulin-dependent diabetes market

The FDA cleared t:slim in November 2011 and we cemoed commercial sales of t:slim in the Unitede&ta the third quarter of
2012. In January 2015, we received FDA clearan@®tomercialize t:flex. We intend to begin commedrsaes of t:flex in the United States
during the second quarter of 2015. We considentimber of units shipped per quarter to be an ingmbrnetric for managing our business.
Since the launch of t:slim, we have shipped appnatély 18,300 pumps as of December 31, 2014, brdkam by quarter as follows:

Units Shipped for Each of the Three Month Periods

2014 2013 2012
March 31 1,72: 852 N/A
June 3( 2,23t 1,36: 9
September 3 2,93¢ 1,851 204
December 3: 3,92¢ 2,40¢ 844
Total 10,82 6,47: 1,057

For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 ar®y] 204 sales were $49.7 million, $29.0 million &&15 million, respectively. For
the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 20d8ebloss was $79.5 million, $63.1 million andB¥Bmillion, respectively. Our
accumulated deficit as of December 31, 2014 was8 $24illion.
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We have derived nearly all of our revenue fromgake of t:slim and associated supplies in the drates and expect to continue to dc
so until we are able to commercialize t:flex and @thher products that are currently under develagmiuring the third quarter of 2014, we
submitted a PMA application to the FDA for theitrslG4 Insulin Pump System, which we have previousfgrred to as t:sensor .

A substantial portion of the purchase price ofrasulin pump is typically paid for by third-partyymas, including private insurance
companies, preferred provider organizations andratianaged care providers. Access to adequateageyand reimbursement for our current
and future products by third-party payors is esaktu the acceptance of our products by custonfersire sales of our current and future
products will be limited unless our customers agg on third-party payors to pay for all or parttbé associated purchase cost. In
circumstances that we do not have contracts eskaaliwith third-party payors, to the extent possitle utilize our network of national and
regional distributors to service our customers.

We believe we can achieve profitability becausepoprietary technology platform will allow us tcaximize efficiencies in the
development, production and sale of our producydeBeraging our technology platform, we believeaa@ develop and bring to market
products more rapidly while significantly reduciogr design and development costs. We also expecirtiinue to increase production volul
and to reduce the per-unit production cost formunp products and their associated disposabldédget over time. Further, due to shared
product design features, our production systendaptable to new products and we intend to leveoagehared manufacturing infrastructur
reduce our product costs and drive operationatieficies. By expanding our product offerings toradd people in different segments of the
large and growing insulin-dependent diabetes mavketelieve we can increase the productivity afsales force, thereby improving our
operating margin.

From inception through December 31, 2014, we hawegily financed our operations through salesafity securities, and, to a lesser
extent, debt financings. We expect to continuetwii net losses for the next several years andcexp@ursue additional capital through eq
and/or debt financings in order to fund our operatito a level of revenues adequate to supportastrstructure.

We have experienced considerable revenue growtle sire commercial launch of t:slim in the third ganof 2012, while incurring
operating losses since our inception. Our operatisglts may fluctuate on a quarterly or annuaisbiasthe future, in particular during the
initial stages of commercialization of new produatsluding t:flex, and our growth or operatingults may not be consistent with predictions
made by securities analysts. We may not be aldeh@ve profitability in the future. For additionaformation about the risks and uncertair
associated with our business, see the sectiorteehtRisk Factors” in Part I, Item 1A.

Voluntary Recall

On January 10, 2014, we announced a voluntarylrettaglect lots of cartridges used with t:slimtth@ay have been at risk of leaking.
The cause of the recall was identified during eterinal product testing. The recall was expandedaoiary 20, 2014 to include additional lots
of affected cartridges used with t:slim. We incdregpproximately $1.7 million in direct costs asated with the recall. We recorded a cost of
sales charge of approximately $1.3 million in therth quarter of 2013 and recorded the cost oksaiarge for the remainder in the first
quarter of 2014 for affected cartridges shippethanfirst quarter of 2014. The total cost of thealeconsisted of approximately $0.7 million
associated with the return and replacement of &ffecartridges in the field and approximately $tilion for the write-off of affected
cartridges within our internal inventory. We do watrently expect any further direct financial inspaf the recall beyond these costs.

Components of Results of Operations
Sales

We commenced commercial sales of t:slim in the éthBtates in the third quarter of 2012. The t:$fiBulin Delivery System is
comprised of the t:slim pump and pump-related sepphat include disposable cartridges and infusits. We also offer accessories including
protective cases, belt clips, and power adaptaies®f accessories since commercial launch hatvieesm material. We primarily sell our
products through national and regional distributorsa non-exclusive basis. These distributors areiglly providers of medical equipment
and supplies to individuals with diabetes. Our @iynend customers are people with insulin-dependiabietes. Similar to other durable
medical equipment, the primary payor is generallyia-party insurance carrier and the customesigally responsible for any medical
insurance plan copay or co-insurance requirements.
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We anticipate that our sales will increase as weaed our sales and marketing infrastructure, irs@eavareness of our products,
introduce new products into the market, includifiigx, and broaden third-party reimbursement far products. We also expect that our sales
will fluctuate on a quarterly basis in the futungedo a variety of factors, including seasonalitgd éhe impact of the buying patterns of our
distributors and other customers. We believe thasales are subject to seasonal fluctuation dtieetémpact of annual deductible and
coinsurance requirements associated with most rakidisurance plans utilized by our individual custs and the individual customers of our
distributors. Our sales may also be negatively cigrhby the summer vacation periéaccordingly, we have experienced and expec
to continue to experience sequential growth ofssameach quarter from the first quarter to thettoguarter, and we

also expect sequential sales from the fourth quéotthe first quarter to be relatively flat @swn. For example, our sales for
the first quarter of 2014 represented approximatéBs of our total sales for 2014 and overall 20dléswere weighted heavily towards the
second half of the year. We expect seasonalityhaie a similar impact on our sales in 2015.

Cost of Sales

We manufacture the t:slim pump and its disposasttridge at our manufacturing facility in San Die@alifornia. We will also
manufacture the t:flex pump and its disposableidge at the same facility. Infusion sets andmsdiccessories are manufactured by third-part
suppliers. Cost of sales includes raw materialjr@osts, manufacturing overhead expenses, prédicing costs and reserves for expected
warranty costs, scrap and inventory obsolescenge.t®our relatively low production volumes comhie our potential capacity to produce
our products, manufacturing overhead expenses signéicant portion of our per-unit costs. Thegpenses include quality assurance,
manufacturing engineering, material procuremengiory control, facilities, equipment, informatitecthnology and operations supervision
and management.

We expect our overall gross margin, which is catad as sales less cost of sales for a given péniaded by sales, to fluctuate in future
periods as a result of the changing percentageoaiygts sold to distributors versus directly toidual customers, varying levels of
reimbursement among third-party payors, changingahproducts sold with different gross marginsyn@oduct launches, warranty and
training costs, and changes in our manufacturinggsses, costs or manufacturing output. Manufaguniefficiencies will also impact our
gross margins, which we may experience as we attempanufacture our products on a larger scalengé our manufacturing processes,
change our manufacturing capacity or output, imglenadditional automated manufacturing equipmedteaqpand our manufacturing
facilities. Any new products that we sell in theuite, such as the t:flex pump, may also changemss margins.

Selling, General and Administrativ

We expect our selling, general and administrativesG&A, expenses to increase as our business dgp@ur SG&A expenses
primarily consist of salary, cash-based incentimmpensation, fringe benefits and stock-based cosgtiem for our executive, financial,
marketing, sales, business development, regulafifeirs and administrative functions. Other sigrafit expenses include those incurred for
product demonstration samples, commercializatidiviies associated new product launches, tradershoutside legal counsel fees,
independent auditor fees, outside consultant fasgrance premiums, facilities costs and infornratechnology costs.

Research and Developme

We expect our research and development, or R&Demsgs to increase as we initiate and advance eetagenent projects. Our R&D
activities primarily consist of engineering andeash programs associated with our products unelaldpment, as well as R&D activities
associated with our core technologies and proceB#3 expenses are primarily related to employeamensation, including salary, fringe
benefits, stock-based compensation and temporapjogee expenses. We also incur significant expefwesipplies, license fees,
development prototypes, outside design and tesemgices and milestone payments under our developamel commercialization agreements
with DexCom and other collaborators.

Other Income and Expense

Our other income and expense primarily consisiatefest expense and amortization of debt discandtdebt issuance costs associate
with term loan agreements. At December 31, 20%tetivas $30.0 million of outstanding principal under amended and restated term loan
agreement with Capital Royalty Partners, which aesrinterest at a rate of 11.5% per annum (seeBbedness"). In previous years, other
income and expense also included interest expembaraortization of debt discount associated withiveatible notes payable and the chang
the fair value of outstanding common and prefestedk warrants, for which the final revaluation vp@sformed in connection with our initial
public offering in the fourth quarter of 2013.
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Results of Operations

Year Ended December 31

(in thousands, except percentage 2014 2013 2012
Sales $ 49,72z  $ 29,007 $ 2,47t
Cost of sale: 34,47¢ 22,84( 3,82¢
Gross profit (loss 15,24¢ 6,167 (1,34¢)
Gross margir 31% 21% (54)%
Operating expense
Selling, general and administrati 75,121 44,52: 22,691
Research and developme 15,791 11,07¢ 9,00¢
Total operating expens 90,912 55,601 31,70C
Operating los! (75,664 (49,439 (33,04¢)
Other income (expense), n
Interest and other incon 112 7 2
Interest and other expen (3,901 (4,710 (2,525)
Change in fair value of stock warrai — (9,002) 2,55¢€
Total other income (expense), | (3,789 (13,705 33
Net loss before taxe (79,457 (63,139 (33,01%)
Provision for income taxe 71
Net loss $ (79,524 $ (63,139 $ (33,015

Comparison of Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 21

Sales. For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 28lE3, were $49.7 million and $29.0 million, respeddii. Sales from the t:slim
pump accounted for 86% and 90% of sales, respégtiiee the years ended December 31, 2014 and 200 pump-related supplies
primarily accounted for the remainder in each y8ales of accessories were not material in eitbar.y

The growth in sales was primarily driven by a 678réase in t:slim pump shipments from 6,472 in 2@180,822 in 2014ANe
expanded the number of sales territories in theddristates from 36 at the end of 2013 to 60 aétiakof the second
guarter of 2014. As a result of our sales forcea@spon, our field personnel experienced some irdtguption in their
sales productivity as their territories were read#id and responsibilities adjusted.

Sales to distributors accounted for 75% and 69%uofotal sales for the years ended December 314 a80d 2013, respectivelJhe
mix of sales to distributors versus direct cust@nedriven by whether or not we have a contraateahgement with
the underlying third-party insurance payor. Typicaéimbursement is higher for sales to direct cosrs as compared
to distributors, and we do not capture all of thenp supply sales for distributors. The increasténpercentage of our
sales to distributors was primarily attributablenw arrangements between certain insurance pawpdrdistributors
that became effective during the third quarter@f4£2 As a result of these new arrangements, agpoofi our business
has transitioned from a direct sale opportunitg tlistributor sale, as well as expanding our aceepstential
customers by providing access to our products as-aatwork benefit.

Cost of Sales and Gross PrafiDur cost of sales in 2014 was $34.5 million, hasyiin gross profit of $15.2 million, compared$22.8
million in cost of sales and gross profit of $6.2lion in 2013. The gross margin in 2014 was 31%mpared to 21% in 2013. The
improvement in the gross margin was primarily alltesf manufacturing efficiencies associated withirgcrease in production output and
improvement in our manufacturing processes. Ourufgaturing overhead spending increased by 30% 14 2@rsus 2013, while our units
produced increased 56% and 143% for pumps anddugety, respectively.

Included in cost of sales for the year ended Deezr@h, 2014 were costs of $0.4 million associatéd aur voluntary product recall of
selected lots of cartridges initiated in Januar¥20he voluntary recall resulted in a less tham parcentage point reduction in the gross
margin for the year ended December 31, 2014. Bypeoison, the 2013 gross margin included $1.3 nnilbbrecall-associated costs, or a
reduction of the gross margin of five percentagetgsoAlso included in cost of sales in 2013 wersts of $1.1 million that were previously
deferred at the end of the fourth quarter of 204  our lack of history for estimating produduras at that time. These costs, along with the
previously deferred sales of $1.9 million recogdisethe first quarter of 2013, resulted in a tvaygentage point increase in gross margin for
the year ended December 31, 2013.
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Our future gross margins will be impacted by nursrfactors including changing percentage of pragisotd to distributors versus
directly to individual customers, varying levelsrefmbursement among third-party payors, changingahproducts sold with different gross
margins, new product launches, warranty and trgiowsts, and changes in our manufacturing processsts and output. Our gross margin or
the t:slim pump was higher than our gross margipump-related supplies for the years ended DeceBhe2014 and 2013, and is expected t
remain higher in the future. We continue to incesagr manufacturing operations and costs as weeadl@ncreasing production volume
requirements. Our manufacturing overhead costs hagr, and will continue to be, a significant comgat of the cost of our products. As a
result our manufacturing overhead costs have inegaeind may continue to impact, our gross margingeaattempt to manufacture our
products on a larger scale, change our manufagtpriocesses, change our manufacturing capacitutputy implement additional automated
manufacturing equipment and expand our manufagdsailities. Any new products that we sell in flaéure, such as the t:flex pump, may
change our future gross margins.

Selling, General and Administrative ExpenssS&A expenses increased 69% to $75.1 million in2f@m $44.5 million in 2013. The
increase in SG&A expenses was primarily assocaitdthe expansion of our commercial operationsrap2014. As of December 31, 2014,
our headcount for sales, general and administrétivetions increased 43% compared to December@13.2This includes an expansion from
36 to 60 territories during 2014, as well as thengh of the administrative infrastructure to sugpaperations. Territories are maintained by
sales representatives, field clinical specialistanaged care liaisons, additional sales managesnednither customer support personnel.
Employee-related expenses for our sales, genedah@ministrative functions comprise the majoritytted SG&A expenses. Such employee-
related expenses increased $24.9 million duringt2@npared to 2013, including an increase of $8lBomin stock-based compensation
associated with equity awards. SG&A expenses alseased $5.7 million associated with marketing @nonotional activities, tradeshows,
travel expenses and facility expansion. We expecS&&A expenses will continue to increase in 2048, at a lower rate as compared to
2014.

Research and Development Expend®&D expenses increased 43% to $15.8 million ih€2fom $11.1 million in 2013. The increas!
R&D expenses in 2014 consisted primarily of anéase of $2.5 million in employee-related expende®ecember 31, 2014, our headcount
for research and development functions increasétl ddmpared to December 31, 2013. The increase D BX¥penses also consisted of a
milestone payment of $1.0 million to DexCom under development and commercialization agreemelated to our submission of a PMA -
the t:slim G4 to the FDA in July 2014. We expect B&D expenses will continue to increase in 201, dt a lower rate as compared to 2014.

Other Income (Expensether expense in 2014 was $3.8 million, comp#oekil3.7 million in 2013. Other expense in 2014 was
primarily due to $3.9 million of interest expenssaciated with the term loan agreement executdd®@apital Royalty Partners in December
2012 and subsequently amended and restated inZdrél and February 2015. We borrowed $30 milliodasrthe agreement in January 2013.

In comparison, other expense in 2013 was primaoiypprised of $9.0 million of expense associated Wit revaluation of the fair value
of common and preferred stock warrants and $4.fomibf interest expense associated with the tean lagreement.

We performed the final revaluation of the warraability in November 2013 in connection with comipda of the initial public offering.
The decrease in interest expense during 2014 cedpar2013 was due to the decrease in the intexeson our
outstanding debt from 14.0% to 11.5% in conjunctetin the amendment to our term loan agreement.

Comparison of Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 201

Sales. We began selling our products in the third quasfe2012. Sales for the years ended December@®13 and 2012 were $29.0
million and $2.5 million, respectively. Sales frahe t:slim pump accounted for 90% and 91% of satespectively, for the years ended
December 31, 2013 and 2012, while pump-relatedl@sgpprimarily accounted for the remainder in egehr. Sales of accessories were not
material in either year. The commercializationhd t:slim pump and pump-related supplies and aodessinitially involved a sales force of
limited size. During 2013, we expanded the numib@uo sales territories to 36 from 11 at commerid@ahch in 2012. Sales to distributors
accounted for 69% and 73% of our total sales feryihars ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, resglgctiv

Cost of Sales and Gross Profit (Los§)ur cost of sales in 2013 was $22.8 million riisglin gross profit of $6.2 million, compared to
$3.8 million in cost of sales recognized in 20EAulting in negative gross profit of ($1.3) milliofhe gross margin in 2013 was 21%,
compared to a negative gross margin of (54%) irR20he improvement in the gross margin was primaritesult of manufacturing
efficiencies associated with an increase in thelpection output and improvement in our manufactupnacesses. The 2013 gross margin
included $1.3 million of costs, or a reduction lo€ igross margin of five percentage points, assetiaith our voluntary product recall of
selected lots of cartridges, including the writé-affaffected inventory on hand and the return eeplacement of product in the field.
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Selling, General and Administrative ExpensS&A expenses increased 96% to $44.5 million in2Bam $22.7 million in 2012. The
increase in SG&A expenses was primarily associiddincreased costs as we began selling our ptsdache third quarter of 2012 and the
continued expansion of our commercial operationndl2013. At December 31, 2013, our headcouns#fdes, general and administrative
functions more than doubled compared to Decembge2@112. This includes an expansion to 36 territoaethe end of 2013, which are
maintained by sales representatives, field clinépacialists, managed care liaisons, additionaksalanagement and other customer support
personnel, as well as the growth of the adminiseahfrastructure to support the growing operagioBmployee-related expenses for our sales
general and administrative functions comprise tlagonity of the SG&A expenses. Such employee-relatgebnses increased $18.5 million
during 2013 compared to 2012, including an increds8.4 million in stock-based compensation asgedi with equity awards. SG&A
expenses also increased $5.1 million associatédmatrketing and promotional activities, tradeshavwesel expenses and technological
support. The overall increase was offset by a résluof $1.8 million relating to the acquisition pétent rights in 2012 for nacemmercialize:
products, for which there was no comparable SG&pemse in 2013.

Research and Development ExpendR&D expenses increased 23% to $11.1 million ib2Bom $9.0 million in 2012. The increase in
R&D expenses in 2013 consisted primarily of anéase of $2.4 million in employee-related expenagsyell as an increase of $0.7 million in
supplies and facilities expenses, offset by a #iilllon decrease in collaboration milestone payrsent

Other Income (ExpensePther expense in 2013 was $13.7 million, comp&wegB3,000 of other income in 2012. Other expems913
was primarily comprised of $9.0 million associateith the revaluation of the fair value of commordareferred stock warrants and $4.7
million interest expense associated with the texamlagreement executed with Capital Royalty PastimeDecember 2012. We borrowed $30
million under the agreement in January 2013.

In comparison, other income in 2012 was primardynprised of a $2.6 million decrease in the faiueabf the common and preferred
stock warrants, offset by $2.5 million in interegpense related to convertible notes payable tainestockholders. The convertible notes were
converted to Series D preferred stock in Augus®228d interest was paid on a $5.0 million loan fi®ificon Valley Bank. We used proceeds
from the Capital Royalty Partners term loan agredrteerepay all amounts outstanding under the @ili¢alley Bank loan in January 2013.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

At December 31, 2014, we had $69.3 million in castl cash equivalents and short-term investmentshvificluded $2.0 million of
restricted cash. We believe that our cash on hzash available under our new tranche term loaneageat with Capital Royalty Partners and
proceeds from the exercise of options and warnaititbe sufficient to satisfy our liquidity requineents for at least the next 12 months. We
expect that our sales performance and the resufirgating income or loss, as well as the statesioh of our new product development
programs, will significantly impact our cash managat decisions. We have utilized, and may conttoudilize, debt arrangements with debt
providers and financial institutions to finance operations. Factors such as interest rates, regrayterms and available cash will impact our
decision to continue to utilize debt arrangemesta aource of cash. In November 2013, we comphatdditial public offering of common
stock that resulted in net proceeds of approximai&R5 million. In the future, we may give consialéwn to additional public offerings of
equity securities as a source of financing. In Ddoer 2014, we filed a registration statement omF8¢3 with the SEC, which was declared

effective on December 19, 2014nder this shelf registration statement, we maynftome to time offer and sell any
combination of common stock, preferred stock, wag@r units in one or more offerings.

Historically, our sources of cash have includedatge placements and a public offering of equityusiies, debt arrangements, and cash
generated from operations. Our historical cashi@mutf have primarily been associated with cash fisedperating activities such as the
expansion and support of our sales and marketiingsimucture, increase in our R&D activities, tloguaisition of intellectual property,
expenditures related to equipment and improvemesed to increase our manufacturing capacity andawegpour manufacturing efficiency,
overall facility expansion and other working capiteeds.

The following table shows a summary of our castwvéldor the years ended December 31, 2014, 20132012

Year Ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2014 2013 2012

Net cash provided by (used il
Operating activitie: $ (61,379 $ 47,757 $ (33,47))
Investing activities (35,470 (11,105 (5,529
Financing activitie: 3,63¢ 166,08¢ 47,50¢

Total $ (93,209 $ 107,22: $ 8,50€

61




Operating activities Net cash used in operating activities was $61ildomfor the year ended December 31, 2014, comgpan $47.8
million and $33.5 million for the same periods B13 and 2012, respectively. The increase in ndt uasd in operating activities for the 2014
and 2013 periods presented was primarily associsitbdncreased costs related to the commerciataijons and continued expansion of our
company during 2014 and 2013. Our employee headcemployee-related expenses and working capiedisiencluding accounts receivable
and inventory, increased significantly as a restitiur initiation and ramp-up of commercial opevas.

Investing activities Net cash used in investing activities was $35l8am for the year ended December 31, 2014, whigls primarily
related to the net purchase of $67.1 million inrsterm investments and $4.6 million in purchasEl®g-term assets, offset by proceeds from
sales and maturities of short-term investments3éf $million. Net cash used in investing activitveas $11.1 million for the year ended
December 31, 2013, which was primarily relatechepgurchase of $5.1 million in short-term investtseand $4.0 million in purchases of
property and equipment. Net cash used in investitigities was $5.5 million for the year ended Daber 31, 2012, which was primarily
related to the purchase of property and equipmeshpatents.

Financing activitiesNet cash provided by financing activities was $8iBion for the year ended December 31, 2014, caexgb#o
$166.1 million and $47.5 million for the same pesgan 2013 and 2012, respectively. The net castigied in 2014 was primarily due to $3.7
million in net proceeds from the exercise of outdiag stock options and warrants, as well as paEé&®m employee contributions for the
purchase of our common stock through our Employeek3Purchase Plan. The net cash provided in 2Gs3fm net proceeds from our
initial public offering of approximately $125.0 ridn in November 2013, net proceeds from issuarigeeferred stock of $16.0 million, net
proceeds from issuance of notes payable of $28I®mand proceeds from warrant and stock optioereises of $2.6 million, offset by
principal payments on notes payable of $4.4 milkow $2.0 million used in restricted cash. Thecash provided by 2012 financing activities
included proceeds from issuance of preferred stdd30.9 million and proceeds from issuance of sigi@yable and convertible notes payable
of $17.2 million.

Our liquidity position and capital requirements aubject to fluctuation based on a number of factBor example, our cash inflow and
outflow may be impacted by the following:

e fluctuations in gross margins and operating marg¢
e our ability to generate sales; a
e fluctuations in working capita
Our primary short-term capital needs, which argextlio change, include expenditures related to:
e support of our commercialization efforts relateatw current and future produc
e improvements in our manufacturing capacity anccegfficy;
e new research and product development effi
e payment of quarterly interest due under our terit dgreements
e the acquisition of equipment and other fixed as:
e facilities expansion needs; a
e potential ui-front, milestone payments or reimbursement of costier R&D collaboration:
Although we believe the foregoing items reflect most likely uses of cash in the short-term, wencapredict with certainty all of our
particular short-term cash uses or the timing oo of cash used. If cash generated from opematoimsufficient to satisfy our working
capital and capital expenditure requirements, wg bgarequired to sell additional equity or debtusiies or obtain additional credit facilities.

There can be no assurance that equity or debtdingmvill be available on satisfactory terms, oakt Further, any additional equity financing
may be dilutive to stockholders, and debt finangcihgvailable, may include restrictive covenants.
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Indebtedness
Capital Royalty Partners Term Loans

In December 2012, we executed a term loan agreeftmentOriginal Term Loan Agreement”) with CapifRbyalty Partners Il L.P.
(“Capital Royalty Partners”) and Capital Royaltyrtears |l—Parallel Fund “A” L.P. (“CRPPF”, togetheith Capital Royalty Partners, the
“Lenders”),providing us access to $45.0 million under therageament, of which $30.0 million was available imJdary 2013, and an additior
amount up to $15.0 million became available upanamhievement of a 2013 revenue-based milestonkaroary 2013, $30.0 million was
drawn under the agreement, a portion of which vezsluo repay all amounts outstanding under our $8lidn loan from Silicon Valley Bank

In April 2014, we entered into an amended and tedtierm loan agreement (the "Amended and ResTaed Loan Agreement") with
the Lenders and Capital Royalty Partners Il (CaynhaR. (“CRPC”) under which we may borrow up to &Btillion. The Amended and
Restated Term Loan Agreement amends and restat&xrifinal Term Loan Agreement.

Aggregate borrowings outstanding under the AmeraetiRestated Term Loan Agreement were $30 milliddegember 31, 2014.
Borrowings under the Amended and Restated Term Bggaement were used to refinance amounts outstgndider the Original Term Loan
Agreement.

The Amended and Restated Term Loan Agreement phinamends the terms of the Original Term Loan Asgnent to reduce the
borrowing limit to $30.0 million, to reduce the digpble interest rate from 14.0% to 11.5%, andxieed the interest only payment period fi
December 31, 2015 to March 31, 2018. Interestysipla, at our option, (i) in cash at a rate of ¥ fser annum or (ii) in cash at a rate of 9.5%
per annum, with the remaining 2.0% per annum adalé¢ige principal of the loan and thereafter subje@ccruing interest. Interest-only
payments are due quarterly on March 31, June 3@ieBder 30 and December 31 of each year of theesttenly payment period. Thereafter,
in addition to interest accrued during the pertbd, quarterly payments shall include an amount lequhe outstanding principal at March 31,
2018 divided by the remaining number of quartersrgp the end of the term of the loan. The Amended Restated Term Loan Agreement
provides for prepayment fees of 3% of the outstagdhialance of the loan if the loan is repaid prioMarch 31, 2015. The prepayment fee is
reduced by 1% per year for each subsequent yeimattrity.

Certain affirmative and negative covenants were ataended to provide us with additional flexibilifyhe principal financial covenants
require that we attain minimum annual revenues36f@ million in 2014, $50.0 million in 2015, $651illion in 2016, $80.0 million in 2017
and $95.0 million thereafter. We expect to meemntii@mum annual revenue covenant of $50.0 millio2015.

On the same date, we entered into a new term |lgaeeanent ( the “New Tranche Term Loan Agreemetti thie Lenders, CRPC and
Parallel Investment Opportunities Partners Il luRder which we may borrow up to an additional $38illion on or before March 31, 2015,
the same interest rate and on the same key terthg #snended and Restated Term Loan Agreementigadvhat we deliver notice of our
intention to borrow by March 2, 2015. As of thealaf filing of this Annual Report, we have not delied a borrowing notice.

In the event of our breach of the agreements, wenoabe allowed to draw additional amounts unterNew Tranche Term Loan
Agreement, and we may be required to repay anyandig amounts earlier than anticipated.

In February 2015, we amended our Amended and Restatrm Loan Agreement, as well as our New Trafd@en Loan Agreement.
Pursuant to this amendment, the interest only paymeriod under both agreements was extended terblser 31, 2019 from March 31, 2018,
at the same interest rate and on the same key &g existing agreements. The principal balander both agreements will be due in ful
the end of the term of the loan, which is MarchZ120.

Silicon Valley Bank Revolving Line of Cred

In January 2013, we entered into an amended lo@eagent with Silicon Valley Bank, making availableevolving line of credit in the
amount up to the lesser of $1.5 million or 75% laikle accounts receivable. Interest-only paymetta rate of 6% per annum are payable
monthly through the maturity date 24 months fromitiitial borrowing. Loans drawn under the agreenaee secured by our eligible accounts
receivable and proceeds therefrom. Additionallg, térms of the revolving line of credit containieas affirmative and negative covenants.
There were no amounts outstanding under this lireealit as of December 31, 2014, and 2013. Theedincredit expired in January 2015.
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Contractual Obligations & Commitments

The following table summarizes our long-term coctinal obligations as of December 31, 2014

Payments Due by Perio«®)

Less than More than
(in thousands) Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years
Operating lease obligation relating t
our facility $ 12,59: $ 255 % 573¢ $ 4,29¢ $ —
Capital Royalty Partners term loans,
including interes(@) 45,09: 3,45( 6,90( 30,88t 3,85¢
Firm purchase commitmen 3,222 2,00¢ 1,214 — —
Total contractual obligatior $ 60,90¢ $ 8,01: $ 1385! $ 35,18 $ 3,85¢

(1) In connection with the DexCom development aachmercialization agreement, we are contingentligated to make a $1.0 million
payment upon achievement of FDA approval for theARPaplication for the t:slim G4, which was filed July 2014. The remaining
milestone is excluded from the table above duentertainty of timing

(2) The payments due under the Capital Royaltynees term loans do not reflect the extension efititerest-only period pursuant to the
amendment of such agreements in February

Critical Accounting Policies Involving Management Etimates and Assumptions

Our discussion and analysis of our financial caaditind results of operations are based on oundiahstatements, which have been
prepared in accordance with accounting principkasegally accepted in the United States. The préiparaf these financial statements require:
management to make estimates and judgments tleat #fe reported amounts of assets, liabilitiesgemaes and expenses and the disclosure ¢
contingent assets and liabilities in our finansiatements. We evaluate our estimates and judgrorr@e ongoing basis. We base our estin
on historical experience and on various other fadioat we believe are reasonable under the cinaunoes, the results of which form the basis
for making judgments about our financial conditaod results of operations that are not readily egpgdrom other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

While our significant accounting policies are marlly described in Note 2 to our financial statenseimcluded in this Annual Report, \
believe that the following accounting policies #re most critical to the judgments and estimatesl irs the preparation of our financial
statements.

Revenue Recognitio

Our revenue is generated from sales of the t:slimgp disposable cartridges and infusion sets ttomesrs in the United States. Our
customers are comprised of individuals, and thadypdistributors that resell our product to insudiependent diabetes customers. We are pal
directly by customers who use our products, distals and third-party payors.

Revenue is recognized when persuasive evidenae afrangement exists, delivery has occurred aledpiitssed, the price is fixed or
determinable, and collectability is reasonably es$uThese criteria are applied as follows:

e The evidence of an arrangement generally condistsraractual arrangements with distributors oedircustomers

e Transfer of title and risk and rewards of owngrstre passed upon shipment of the pump to digbibwor upon delivery to the
customer

e The selling prices are fixed and agreed upondasdhe contracts with distributors, the custoared contracted insurance payors,
if applicable. For sales to customers associatéu wsurance providers with whom we do not haveraract, we recognize
revenue upon collection of cash at which time thieeps determinable. We do not offer rebates todistributors and customel

e We consider the overall creditworthiness and paytrhistory of the distributor, customer and thetacted insurance payor in
concluding whether collectability is reasonablyaes.
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Prior to the first quarter of 2013, t:slim pumpesalvere recorded as deferred revenue until oua$Qight of return expired because we
did not have sufficient history to be able to ressdy estimate returns. At December 31, 2012, vee$#1a9 million recorded as deferred
revenue. Beginning in the first quarter of 2013,began recognizing t:slim pump revenue when alk¢ivenue recognition criteria above are
met, as we established sufficient history in otdereasonably estimate product returns. As a re$uftis change, we recorded a one-time
adjustment during 2013, to recognize previoushedefl revenue and cost of sales of $1.9 million®&hd million, respectively.

Revenue Recognition for Arrangements with Multipddiverables

We consider the deliverables in our product offgris separate units of accounting and recognibeedables as revenue upon delivery
only if (i) the deliverable has standalone valud i) if the arrangement includes a general rigihtteturn relative to the delivered item(s),
delivery or performance of the undelivered itenigg)robable and substantially controlled by us. aNecate consideration to the separate unit:
of accounting, unless the undelivered elements deeened perfunctory and inconsequential. We useethtive selling price method, in whi
allocation of consideration is based on vendor-$igeabjective evidence (VSOE) if available, thipdty evidence (TPE), or if VSOE and TPE
are not available, management’s best estimatestE#ralalone selling price (ESP) for the undeliveziednents.

In February 2013, the FDA cleared t:connect, ooudtbased data management application, which i€raaailable upon purchase by
t:slim pump customers. This service is deemed aelivered element at the time of the t:slim salec#8ise we have neither VSOE nor TPE
this deliverable, the allocation of revenue is blase our ESP. We establish our ESP based on estineast to provide such services, including
consideration for a reasonable profit margin andadmrated by comparable market data. We allocitesflue based on management’'s ESP t
this element at the time of sale and is recognitiiegrevenue over the four year hosting periodDét¢ember 31, 2014 and 2013, $0.7 million
and $0.2 million were recorded as deferred revéouthe t:connect hosting service. All other undeted elements at the time of sale are
deemed inconsequential or perfunctory.

Warranty Reserve

We provide a fougear warranty on our t:slim pump to end user custsmand may replace any pumps that do not funatiaccordanc
with the product specifications. Any pump returtedis may be refurbished and redeployed. Additignele offer a six month warranty on
t:slim cartridges and infusion sets. Estimated aaty costs are recorded at the time of shipmentralty costs are estimated based on the
current new and refurbished product costs, actyad®ence and expected failure rates from testesyserformed in conjunction with the
clearance of our product with the FDA to suppoet ldngevity and reliability of our t:slim pump. Vealuate the reserve quarterly and make
adjustments when appropriate. At December 31, 20042013, the warranty reserve was $2.0 million®hd million, respectively. Of the
total warranty reserve at December 31, 2014 an@8,2fro and $0.3 million was related to potengglacements associated with the voluntan
product recall of selected lots of cartridges. Atwarranty costs have not differed materially frestimated amounts reserved.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of December 31, 2014, we did not have any oféfige sheet arrangements.
JumpsStart Our Business Startups Act of 2012 (JOBS ét)

The JOBS Act permits an “emerging growth compamg¢hsas ours to take advantage of an extendedtitanperiod to comply with
new or revised accounting standards applicablelbbigpcompanies. We have chosen to “opt out” of giriovision and, as a result, we will
comply with new or revised accounting standardsegaired when they are adopted. This decision tamopof the extended transition period
under the JOBS Act is irrevocable.
ltem 7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Marlet Risk

We invest our excess cash primarily in commercagdgy and government-sponsored enterprise secuBiese of the financial
instruments in which we invest have market risloagsged with them in that a change in prevailingiiast rates may cause the principal ar
of the instrument to fluctuate. Other financialtingnents in which we invest potentially subjectaigredit risk in that the value of the
instrument may fluctuate based on the issuer’stald pay.

The primary objectives of our investment activitége to maintain liquidity and preserve principdlil at the same time maximizing the

income we receive from our financial instrumenttheut significantly increasing risk. We have esitti#d guidelines regarding approved
investments and maturities of investments, whiehpaimarily designed to maintain liquidity and peaee principal.
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Because of the short-term maturities of our finahicistruments, we do not believe that an increaskecrease in interest rates would
have any significant impact on the realized valueur investment portfolio. If a 10% change in st rates were to have occurred on
December 31, 2014, this change would not have hadtarial effect on the fair value of our investrigartfolio as of that date.

The interest rate under our Amended and Restated Tean Agreement is fixed and not subject to clesng market interest rates.

We do not have any foreign currency or other dérredinancial instruments.
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| tem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Dat

Our financial statements as of December 31, 20842843 and for each of the three years in the demmmled December 31, 2014, and
the Report of the Registered Independent Publiobating Firm are included in this report as listedhe index.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Tandem Diabetes Care, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying balance she@@nafem Diabetes Care, Inc. as of December 31, 20d42013, and the relat
statements of operations and comprehensive lossedible preferred stock and stockholders’ eq(digficit) and cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, Zlieke financial statements are the responsibifithieo Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesaritial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamlaUnited States).
Those standards require that we plan and perfoenadidit to obtain reasonable assurance about whb#hénancial statements are free of
material misstatement. We were not engaged to perdm audit of the Company’s internal control ofieancial reporting. Our audits included
consideration of internal control over financigbogting as a basis for designing audit procedurasdre appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion oreffectiveness of the Company’s internal contrarofinancial reporting. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includesnéxiag, on a test basis, evidence supporting theusts and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principlesarsg significant estimates made by managementgaadating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referredlbove present fairly, in all material respedts,financial position of Tandem

Diabetes Care, Inc. at December 31, 2014 and 201Bthe results of its operations and its cashdlfiw each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2014, in conformity with U.Segelly accepted accounting principles.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

San Diego, California
February 24, 2015
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TANDEM DIABETES CARE, INC.
BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands except par values)

December 31,

2014 2013
Assets
Current assett
Cash and cash equivalel $ 31,17¢  $ 124,38¢
Restricted cas 2,00C 2,05C
Shor-term investment 36,10¢ 5,09t
Accounts receivable, n 7,652 5,29¢
Inventory, ne 11,91¢ 10,33(
Prepaid and other current ass 1,904 1,83C
Total current asse 90,751 148,98¢
Property and equipment, r 12,581 9,88¢€
Patents, ne 2,441 2,697
Other lon¢-term asset 691 643
Total asset $ 106,46¢ $ 162,21¢
Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl $ 1,94¢ $ 2,352
Accrued expens 2,92C 1,874
Employe«related liabilities 9,722 5,87¢
Deferred revenu 840 411
Other current liabilitie: 2,665 4,08€
Total current liabilities 18,094 14,59¢
Notes payab—Iong-term 29,44( 29,3917
Deferred rer—long-term 2,70C 1,887
Other lon¢-term liabilities 1,65¢ 795
Total liabilities 51,892 46,67¢
Commitments and contingencies (Note
Stockholder' equity:
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value, 5,000 sharéoeréd at December 31, 2014, and 2013, no
shares issued and outstanding at December 31, a0d4013 respectivel — —
Common stock, $0.001 par value; 100,000 share®andid as of December 31, 2014 and 201
respectively, 23,655 and 22,926 shares issued atsthading at December 31, 2014 and 2013
respectively 24 23
Additional paic-in capital 303,25¢ 284,70¢
Accumulated other comprehensive inca 8
Accumulated defici (248,71%) (169,19)
Total stockholder equity 54,572 115,53
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $ 106,46¢ $ 162,21¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part offifi@ncial statements.
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TANDEM DIABETES CARE, INC.

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

(In thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

Sales $ 49,72z  $ 29,007 $ 2,47¢
Cost of sale: 34,47 22,84( 3,82¢
Gross profit (loss 15,24¢ 6,167 (1,34¢)
Operating expense

Selling, general and administrati 75,121 44,52: 22,691

Research and developmt 15,791 11,07¢ 9,00¢
Total operating expens 90,912 55,601 31,70C
Operating los! (75,664 (49,439 (33,04¢)
Other income (expense), r

Interest and other incon 112 7 2

Interest and other expen (3,907) (4,710 (2,525)

Change in fair value of stock warra — (9,002 2,55€
Total other income (expense), | (3,789 (13,705 33
Loss before taxe (79,457 (63,139 (33,019
Provision for income tax expen 71 — —
Net loss $ (79,529 $ (63,139 $ (33,015
Other comprehensive los

Unrealized gain on sh-term investment $ 8 $ —  $ —
Comprehensive los $ (79,516 $ (63,139 $ (33,015)
Net loss per share, basic and dilu $ (342 $ (21.46) $ (175.8¢)
Weighted average shares used to compute basiclatetichet loss per sha 23,272 2,942 188

The accompanying notes are an integral part offilm@ncial statements.
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TANDEM DIABETES CARE, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK AND STOCK HOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)
(In thousands, except per share data)

Accumulated

Convertible Additional Other Total
Preferred Stock Common Stock Paid-in Comprehensive Accumulated  Stockholder¢
Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Income Deficit Equity (Deficit)
Balance at December 31, 2C 1,68t $ 67,93( 212 % — $ 143 $ — $ (72,730 $ (71,295.0)
Issuance of Series D convertible preferred stodidatO
per
share, net of issuance costs of 7,03t 30,86 — — — — — —
Conversion of convertible notes payable and acc
interest
into Series D convertible preferred stock at®er
share 5,997 26,39: — — — — — —
Vesting of restricted common stock and changeim fa
value of
unvested restricted stock subject to repurc — — — — 24¢ — — 24¢
Exercise of stock optior — — 3 — 35 — — 35
Conversion of Series A, Series B, and Series Gemed
stock
into common stoc (23) (550) 14 — 55( — — 55(
Stocl-based compensatic — — — — 24¢ — — 24¢
Repurchase and retirement of common s — — 2 — Q) — (49) (50)
Loss on extinguishment of convertible notes pay — — — — (2,519 — (25¢) (2,77))
Net loss — — — — — — (33,019 (33,019
Balance at December 31, 2C 14,697 $ 124,63t 227 % — 3 — $ — $ (106,05) $ (106,05)
Issuance of Series D convertible preferred stodidatO
per
share, net of issuance costs of 3,65¢ 15,99: — — — — — —
Issuance of common stock warrants in connectioh
term loan — — — — 437 — — 437
Exercise of preferred stock warra 42¢ 3,62¢ — — — — — —
Issuance of common stock in initial public offerimgt o
underwrite’s discount and offering cos — — 9,20( 9 125,03( — — 125,03¢
Conversion of preferred stock in connection wititiah
public offering (18,78} (144,25Y 13,40¢ 13 144,24¢ — — 144,25¢
Vesting of restricted common stock and changeiir
value of
unvested restricted stock subject to repurc — — — — 33 — — 33
Conversion of preferred stock warrants into common
stock warrant: — — — — 9,55( — — 9,55(
Exercise of common stock warrai — — 8t 1 627 — — 62¢
Exercise of stock optior — — 1C — 66 — — 66
Stocl-based compensatic — — — — 4,715 — — 4,715
Net loss — — — — — — (63,139 (63,139
Balance at December 31, 2C — 3 — 22,92t $ 23 $ 284,70¢ $ — $ (169,19) $ 115,53
Exercise of common stock warrau — — 334 1 137 — — 13¢
Exercise of stock optior — — 144 — 32t — — 32t
:flzl;]ance of common stock for Employee Stock Pue . . 251 . 3.16¢ . . 3.16¢
Stocl-based compensatic — — — — 14,92( — — 14,92(
Unrealized gain on sheterm investment — — — — — 8 — 8
Net loss — — — — — — (79,52¢) (79,52¢)
Balance at December 31, 2C — $ — 23,65¢ $ 24 $ 303,25! $ 8 $ (248,71) $ 54,57

The accompanying notes are an integral part offifi@ncial statements.
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TANDEM DIABETES CARE, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Operating activities
Net loss $ (79,529 % (63,139 $ (33,015
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash usegerating activities
Depreciation and amortization expel 4,38¢ 3,167 2,032
Accretion of discount on notes payable and convertiotes — — 1,20¢
Interest expense related to amortization of dedatalint and debt issuance cc 219 595 836
Provision for allowance for doubtful accou 188 275 46
Provision for inventory resen 163 815 335
Change in fair value of common and preferred steakants — 9,002 (2,55€)
Amortization of premium/discount on sh-term investment (53) — —
Stocl-based compensation expel 14,99% 4,45€ 246
Other 41 62 57
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivabl (2,541) (3,161) (2,45¢)
Inventory (1,820) (4,625) (6,59€)
Prepaid and other current ass (82) 106 (1,054)
Other lon-term asset (150) (85) —
Accounts payabl (1,225) 859 1,382
Accrued expens 973 342 918
Employecrelated liabilities 3,84¢€ 3,88t 979
Deferred revenu 429 (2,472) 1,884
Other current liabilitie: (1,57%) 895 2,34z
Deferred ren (461) (522) (234)
Other lon¢-term liabilities 810 763 —
Payments received on note receivable from emplc — 25 175
Net cash used in operating activit (61,37¢) (47,757) (33,47))
Investing activities
Purchase of shc-term investment (67,107 (5,095) —
Proceeds from sales and maturities of <term investment 36,21C — —
Purchase of property and equipm (4,40¢) (4,010 (4,529)
Purchase of paten (173) (2,000) (1,000)
Net cash used in investing activiti (35,470) (11,10%) (5,529)
Financing activities
Issuance of convertible notes pays — — 12,20¢
Issuance of notes payable, net of issuance 29,92t 28,87¢ 5,00C
Restricted cash in connection with notes payabtecanporate credit cai 50 (2,000) —
Principal payments on notes paya (30,000 (4,39¢) (604)
Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock for eeethpf offering cost — 15,991 30,867
Proceeds from initial public offering, net of offfey costs — 125,04( —
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 3,664 2,57¢ 35
Net cash provided by financing activiti 3,63¢ 166,084 47,50¢
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis (93,209) 107,22: 8,50€
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pt 124,38t 17,162 8,657
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe $ 31,17¢ $ 124,38: $ 17,16:
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow informatiol
Interest paic $ 3,36 $ 4,115 $ 297
Income taxes pai $ 71 3 19 $ 3
Supplemental schedule of noncash investing and finaeing activities
Conversion of notes payable and accrued intereSddes D convertible preferred stc $ — 3 — 3 26,391
Lease incentiv—Ilesso-paid tenant improvemen $ 1,604 $ — 3 2,01¢
Loss on extinguishment of de $ — 3 — 3 2,77C
Common and preferred stock warrants issued, inatuglicremental value of modification of warra $ — 3 437 3 3,81F
Property and equipment included in accounts pay $ 789 $ — 3 200
Patent included in accrued expe $ 74 $ — 3 —
Conversion of preferred stock warrants into comrstoick warrant: $ — % 955C $ =
Conversion of convertible preferred stock into comnnstock $ — 3 144,25¢  $ —

The accompanying notes are an integral part offifi@ncial statements.
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TANDEM DIABETES CARE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization and Basis of Presentation
The Company

Tandem Diabetes Care, Inc. is a medical device emmfocused on the design, development and comatization of products for
people with insulin-dependent diabetes. Unlesstmtext requires otherwise, the terms the “CompamyTandem” refer to Tandem Diabetes
Care, Inc.

The Company designed and commercialized its flagstoduct, the t:slim Insulin Delivery System, i, based on its proprietary
technology platform and unique consumer-focusedagmh. The U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FIzRared t:slim in November 2011
and the Company commenced commercial sales aftislthe United States in August 2012. In Janu@d/52the Company received clearance
from the FDA, to commercialize its next producg ttflex Insulin Delivery System, or t:flex, for pele with greater insulin needs. The
Company intends to begin commercial sales of tiftethe United States during the second quart@0ab.

Tandem was originally incorporated in the stat€oforado on January 27, 2006 under the name PhiaidOn January 7, 2008, the
Company was re-incorporated in the state of Delavi@rthe purposes of changing its legal name fRituid Inc. to Tandem Diabetes Care,
Inc. and changing its state of incorporation fronidtado to Delaware.

The Company has incurred operating losses singeciéption and had an accumulated deficit of $248llion at December 31, 2014.
The Company'’s ability to achieve profitable operas primarily depends upon achieving a level oereies adequate to support its cost
structure. The Company has relied on its abilitfuired its operations through private and publiciggand debt financing. Management expt
operating losses and negative cash flows to coatiouthe foreseeable future. The Company may &befimance future operations using its
existing term loan agreements or may pursue equitiebt financing through other sources. If neagsfiaancing is not obtained or achieved,
the Company will likely be required to reduce itsrent planned increases in expenditures, whicliddoave an adverse impact on its ability to
achieve its intended business objectives. Thardeano assurance that equity or debt financingpii what is available under its existing
term loan agreements, will be available on accéptabms, or at all. Any equity financing may reisaldilution to existing shareholders
holders and any additional debt financing may idelvestrictive covenants.

Initial Public Offering

In November 2013, the Company completed its infiigblic offering of 8,000,000 shares of its comnstock at a public offering price
$15.00 per share. Net cash proceeds from thelipiiialic offering were approximately $108.3 millicafter deducting underwriting discounts,
commissions and estimated offering related trarmacbsts payable by the Company. In November 28E3underwriters also exercised their
overallotment option and purchased an additior200,000 shares of the Company’s common stock, fitich the Company received cash
proceeds, net of underwriting discounts and comioniss of approximately $16.7 million. In connectiaith the closing of the initial public
offering, all of the Company’s shares of convedipteferred stock outstanding at the time of tlierofg were automatically converted into
13,403,747 shares of common stock. In additiomw@itanding preferred stock warrants were autaaliticonverted into warrants to purch
an aggregate 1,171,352 shares of our common steekNote 4, “Fair Value Measurements”).

Basis of Presentatiol

The accompanying financial statements have begrapzd in accordance with accounting principles gadlyeaccepted in the United
States of America, or GAAP.

Reverse Stock Spli
In October 2013, the Board of Directors approvddfar-1.6756 reverse stock split of the Compangmsmon stock. All share and per

share information included in the accompanyingrfgial statements and notes to the financial statésrgive retroactive effect to this reverse
stock split for the Company’s common stock.
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Voluntary Recall

On January 10, 2014, the Company announced a aojurgcall of select lots of cartridges used wiglirn that may have been at risk of
leaking. The cause of the recall was identifiedrduthe Company’s internal product testing. Theallegas expanded on January 20, 2014 to
include additional lots of affected cartridges usaith t:slim. The Company incurred approximatelyZnillion in direct costs associated with
the recall. The Company recorded a cost of salasggehof approximately $1.3 million in the fourthagter of 2013 and recorded a cost of sales
charge for the remainder in the first quarter cf2@or affected cartridges shipped in 2014. Thaltodst of the recall consisted of
approximately $0.7 million associated with the retand replacement of affected cartridges in telel fand approximately $1.0 million for the
write-off of affected cartridges within the Compé&internal inventory. As of December 31, 2014, Hi2A has determined that the recall is
terminated and the Company does not currently exgrgcfurther direct financial impact of the redadlyond these costs.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in confty with GAAP requires management to make egmiand assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, reesrand expenses, and the disclosure of contingsatsaand liabilities in our financial
statements and accompanying notes as of the d#te &hancial statements. Actual results couledifrom those estimates and assumptions.

Segment Reportin

Operating segments are identified as componerds ehterprise about which segment discrete finhimd@mation is available for
evaluation by the chief operating decisimaker in making decisions regarding resource dilocand assessing performance. To date, we
viewed our operations and managed our businesseasemment operating in the United States.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investmenith a maturity of three months or less from tla¢edof purchase to be cash
equivalents.

Shorit-Term Investments

Based on the nature of the assets, the Company'stehm investment are classified as either algldor-sale or trading securities.
Such securities are carried at fair value as deteuinby prices for identical or similar securitegghe balance sheet date. The Company’s sho
term investments consist of Level 1 and Level 2fficial instruments in the fair value hierarchy. Tie¢ unrealized gains or losses on available
for-sale securities, net of tax, are reported esmponent of other comprehensive gain (loss) witihénstatements of operations and
comprehensive gain (loss) as a separate compohstatoitholders’ equity (deficit). Unrealized gaimslosses on trading securities are reporte
in interest income. At December 31, 2014 and 268 Company had no investments that were classadukld-to-maturity. The Company
determines the realized gains or losses of availaiitsale securities using the specific identificatioethod and includes net realized gains
losses in interest income. The Company periodicgelyews available-for-sale securities for othemtiemporary declines in fair value below
the cost basis whenever events or changes in catamtes indicate that the carrying amount of aetasay not be recoverable.

Restricted Casl

Restricted cash as of December 31, 2014 and 20&3rmarily composed of a $2.0 million minimum cdmtlance requirement in
connection with the Capital Royalty Term Loan (Bkxe 6, “Loan and Warrant Agreements).

Accounts Receivabl
We grant credit to various customers in the nortoalse of business. We maintain an allowance fabtlol accounts for potential

credit losses. Generally, receivables greater #fz@ndays past due are deemed uncollectible. Uratille accounts are written off against the
allowance after appropriate collection efforts hbeen exhausted and when it is deemed that a leaisocollectible.
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Concentration of Credit Risl

Financial instruments that potentially subject@mmpany to concentrations of credit risk consighprily of cash, cash equivalents,
short-term investments and accounts receivable Cdmpany maintains deposit accounts in federafiyiied financial institutions in excess of
federally insured limits. The Company also maindaimvestments in money market funds that are r#régly insured. Additionally, the
Company has established guidelines regarding imesgtinstruments and their maturities, which agieed to maintain preservation of
principal and liquidity.

The following table summarizes customers who actaifor 10% or more of net accounts receivable:

December 31

2014 2013
Byram Healthcar 19.2% N/A
Edgepark Medical Supplies, Ir 12.2% 13.1%
CCS Medical, Inc N/A 21.4%

The following table summarizes customers who actalifor 10% or more of sales for the periods preskn

December 31

2014 2013 2012
Edgepark Medical Supplies, Ir 16.0% 16.1% 19.3%
CCS Medical, Inc 11.6% 13.6% N/A
Byram Healthcar 10.9% N/A N/A
Solara Medical Supplies, In N/A N/A 15.7%

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalaatsunts receivable, accounts payable, accruechsgpand employee-related
liabilities are reasonable estimates of their Vaiues because of the short-term nature of thessdsaand liabilities. Short-term investments are
carried at fair value. Based on the borrowing ratesently available for loans with similar ternise Company believes that the fair value o
long-term debt approximates its carrying value.

Inventory

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or raa(ket realizable value), determined under thst-fir, first-out method. Inventory is
recorded using standard cost, including matea&iot and overhead costs, at December 31, 2014481 Zhe Company periodically reviews
inventories for potential impairment based on qti@ston hand, expectations of future use, judgsibased on quality control testing data anc
assessments of the likelihood of scrapping or @i certain inventories.

Long Lived Asset:

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment, which primarily consisbfice furniture and equipment, manufacturing equémt, scientific equipment,
computer equipment, and leasehold improvementstated at cost. Property and equipment are depegicover the estimated useful lives of
the assets, generally three to seven years, usingtaight-line method. Leasehold improvementsarertized over the lesser of the estimatec
useful lives of the assets or the remaining leasa.t

Patents

Costs associated with the purchase or licensintents associated with our commercialized produret€apitalized. The Company
reviews its capitalized patent costs periodicallylétermine that they have future value and amraltive future use. Costs related to patents

the Company is not actively pursuing for commerpiaiposes are expensed. The Company amortized patta over the lesser of the dura
of the patent term or an estimated useful life@f&ars, beginning with the date the patents areets or acquired.

75




The Company periodically re-evaluates the origasggumptions and rationale utilized in the estabiisht of the carrying value and
estimated lives of all of its long-lived assetgliding property and equipment and acquired patdims determinants used for this evaluation
include management’s estimate of the asset’s abdigenerate positive income from operations avgitive cash flow in future periods as well
as the strategic significance of the asset to tiragziny’s business objective. The Company has sogrézed any impairment losses through
December 31, 2014.

Deferred Ren

Rent expense on noncancelable leases containingrkfuture scheduled rent increases is recordedstragght-line basis over the term
of the respective leases beginning when the Comtzk@gs possession of the leased property. Theeliffe between rent expense and rent
is accounted for as deferred rent, current porioteferred rent was included in other currentilitdes on the Company’s balance sheet.
Landlord improvement allowances and other suctel@asentives are recorded as property and equiparehas deferred rent and are
amortized on a straight-line basis as a reductaent expense.

Research and Development Co

All research and development costs are chargedpense as incurred. Such costs include personlaédecosts, including stock-based
compensation, supplies, services, depreciatioocaikd facilities and information services, collaiion payments and other indirect costs.

Income Taxes

The Company uses the asset and liability meth@todunting for income taxes. Deferred income t&e@sor liabilities are recognized
based on the temporary differences between finbsizitement and income tax bases of assets arlitiéshusing enacted tax rates in effect for
the years in which the differences are expectedverse. A valuation allowance is recorded whésmore likely than not that some of the
deferred tax assets will not be realized.

The Company is required to file federal and stat®@ine tax returns in the United States and vambler state jurisdictions. The
preparation of these income tax returns require<iimpany to interpret the applicable tax lawsragailations in effect in such jurisdictions,
which could affect the amount of tax paid by us.afnount is accrued for the estimate of additioarlliability, including interest and penalti
for any uncertain tax positions taken or expecteldet taken in an income tax return. The Companigwessand updates the accrual for unce
tax positions as more definitive information becsragailable. For further information, see Notel8cbme Taxes.”

Revenue Recognitio

Revenue is generated from sales, in the UnitecStaf the t:slim pump, disposable cartridges afusion sets to individual customers
and third-party distributors that re-sell the prodio insulin-dependent diabetes customers. Thepgaomis paid directly by customers who use
the products, distributors and third-party insueapayors.

Revenue is recognized when persuasive evidenae afrangement exists, delivery has occurred aledpitssed, the price is fixed or
determinable, and collectability is reasonably es$uThese criteria are applied as follows:

e The evidence of an arrangement generally condistsraractual arrangements with distributors oedircustomers

e Transfer of title and risk and rewards of owngrstre passed upon shipment of the pump to digbibwor upon delivery to the
customer

e The selling prices are fixed and agreed upondasdhe contracts with distributors, the custoared contracted insurance payors,
if applicable. For sales to customers associatéu iwsurance providers with whom there is no caninevenue is recognized ug
collection of cash at which time the price is detiexable. The Company does not generally offer e=bai its distributors and
customers

e The Company considers the overall creditworthsraesd payment history of the distributor, custoarat the contracted insurance
payor in concluding whether collectability is reaably assurec
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Prior to the first quarter of 2013, t:slim pumpesalvere recorded as deferred revenue until the @oy'p 30-day right of return expired
because it did not have sufficient history to bkeab reasonably estimate returns. At Decembe812, $1.9 million was recorded as deferrec
revenue. In the first quarter of 2013, the Complagéyan recognizing t:slim pump revenue when alf¢lvenue recognition criteria above were
met, as it had established sufficient history idesrto reasonably estimate product returns. Asaltref this change, a one-time adjustment wa
recorded during 2013, to recognize previously detkrevenue and cost of sales of $1.9 million ahd #illion, respectively.

Revenue Recognition for Arrangements with Multipddiverables

The Company considers the deliverables in its prodfiering as separate units of accounting andgeizes deliverables as revenue
upon delivery only if (i) the deliverable has staluhe value and (ii) if the arrangement includggaeral right of return relative to the delive
item(s), delivery or performance of the undeliveiteth(s) is probable and substantially controllgdib. The Company allocates consideration
to the separate units of accounting, unless thelivaded elements were deemed perfunctory and semurential. The Company uses the
relative selling price method, in which allocatioiconsideration is based on vendor-specific objeavidence (VSOE) if available, third-
party evidence (TPE), or if VSOE and TPE are nailable, management’s best estimate of a standalellig price (ESP) for the undelivered
elements.

In February 2013, the FDA cleared t:connect, then@any’s cloud-based data management applicatioicjvib made available upon
purchase by t:slim pump customers. This servicee&ned an undelivered element at the time of #timtsale. Because the Company has
neither VSOE nor TPE for this deliverable, the ediiton of revenue is based on the Company’s ES® Cldmpany establishes its ESP based
on estimated cost to provide such services, inolydonsideration for a reasonable profit margin esrdoborated by comparable market data.
The Company allocates fair value based on manag&e®P to this element at the time of sale andésgnizing the revenue over the four-
year hosting period. At December 31, 2014 and 283, million and $0.2 million were recorded asaledd revenue for the t:connect hosl
service, respectively. All other undelivered eletsat the time of sale are deemed inconsequemtgrdunctory.

Product Returns

The Company offers a 30-day right of return fortisim pump customers from the date of shipmemyided a physicias confirmatior
of the medical reason for the return is receiveddinkated return allowances for sales returns asedan historical returned quantities as
compared to t:slim pump shipments in those sameg®rThe return rate is then applied to the saflélse current period to establish a reserve
at the end of the period. The return rates uséldeimeserve are adjusted for known or expectedgesain the marketplace when appropriate.
The allowance for product returns included in otherent liabilities on the Company’s balance skdecember 31, 2014 and 2013 was $0..
million and $0.2 million, respectively. Actual pnact returns have not differed materially from estied amounts reserved.

Warranty Reserve

The Company generally provides a four-year warrantyts t:slim pump to end user customers and rapkace any pumps that do not
function in accordance with the product specifimasi. Any pump returned to the Company may be refheldl and redeployed. Additionally,
the Company offers a six-month warranty on t:slamtrgdges and infusion sets. Estimated warrantyscare recorded at the time of shipment.
Warranty costs are estimated based on the cuxpetted replacement product cost, actual experiandeexpected failure rates from test
studies performed in conjunction with the clearaoicthe Company’s product with the FDA to suppbg tongevity and reliability of its t:slim
pump. The Company evaluates the reserve quartedyrekes adjustments when appropriate. During 20&3Company recorded $0.5 milli
decrease in warranty estimates due to thetfire-availability of refurbished pumps to be usedreplacements. In addition, of the $1.1 mill
warranty reserve at December 31, 2013, $0.3 millkan related to potential replacement relatedeéovtiuntary product recall of selected lots
of cartridges. No reserve existed for the recalbetember 31, 2014. Actual warranty costs havaliffgtred materially from estimated amounts
reserved.
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December 31,

(in thousands) 2014 2013

Balance at beginning of the year $ 1,12¢ $ 300
Provision for warranties issued during the period 3,70¢ 3,51¢
Settlements made during the period (2,85¢) (2,182)
Decreases in warranty estimates — (510)
Balance at September 30, 2014 $ 1,974 $ 1,125
Current portion 535 549
Non-current portion 1,43¢ 574
Total $ 1,974 $ 1,12¢

Stock-Based Compensation

Stock-based compensation cost is measured atdiné dpite, based on the estimated fair value cwaad, and is recognized as expens:
over the employee’s requisite service period omaght-line basisThe Company estimates the fair value of stock ogtend

shares issued to employees under the ESPP usilagla 8choles option-pricing model on the date aingiThe Black-
Scholes option-pricing model requires the use bfestive assumptions including volatility, expectedn, risk-free rate, and the fair value of
the underlying common stock. For awards that vasell on service conditions, the Company recogeizgsnse using the straight-line methoc
less estimated forfeitures. Prior to the Compaimjtgal public offering the estimated fair value thiese awards was determined at the date of
grant based upon the estimated fair value of thegamy’s common stock. Subsequent to the Comanitial public offering, the fair value
the common stock is based on observable marketgris of December 31, 2014, there were no outistgredjuity awards with market or
performance conditions.

The Company records the expense for stock optiantgito non-employees based on the estimateddhie wf the stock options using
the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The failueaof nonemployee awards is remeasured at each reportingdpes the underlying awar
vest unless the instruments are fully vested, imately exercisable and nonforfeitable on the déigrant.

Warrant Liabilities

The Company issued freestanding warrants to puecttaares of common stock and convertible prefesteck in connection with the
issuance of convertible notes payable in 2011 &i@2The Company accounted for these warrantdiability in the financial statements
because either the Company did not have enougloagl shares to satisfy potential exercise ottiramon stock warrants and the numbe
shares to be issued upon their exercise was outsdeontrol of the Company or because the undegliyistrument into which the warrants are
exercisable, Series C or Series D convertible prefiestock, contained deemed liquidation provisithrag are outside of the control of the
Company.

The warrants were recorded at fair value usingeeithe Black-Scholes option pricing model, or eobiial lattice model, depending on
the characteristics of the warrants at the timéhefvaluation. The fair value of these warrants reaseasured at each financial reporting perio
with any changes in fair value being recognized asmponent of other income (expense) in the acaagipg statements of operations and
comprehensive loss. In connection with completibthe initial public offering in November 2013, t@®mpany performed the final
remeasurement of the warrant liability. For thenygaded December 31, 2013 and 2012, $9.0 milliberotxpense and $2.6 million other
income were recorded as other income (expense)tiierrevaluations, respectively. There was no ireomexpense recorded for warrant
revaluations in 2014.

Upon the closing of the initial public offering, wants to purchase shares of Series D Preferrexk &tttomatically converted into
warrants to purchase shares of common stock. Thep@oy reclassified the warrant liability to stoclders’ equity as the warrants met the
definition of an equity instrument.

Advertising Cost:

The Company expenses advertising costs as theganeed. For the years ended December 31, 20148 2Ad 2012, advertising costs
were $1.5 million, $0.7 million, and $68,000, resipeely.

Shipping and Handling Expense

Shipping and handling expenses associated withugtatklivery are included within cost of saleshe Company’s statements of
operations.
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Comprehensive Loss

All components of comprehensive loss, includinglass, are reported in the financial statementhénperiod in which they are
recognized. Comprehensive loss is defined as thegghin equity during a period from transactions atiher events and circumstances from
non-owner sources, including unrealized gains asgds on marketable securities.

Net Loss Per Shar

Basic net loss per share is calculated by dividiregnet loss by the weighted average number of camshares that were outstanding
the period, without consideration for common stegkiivalents. Diluted net loss per share is caledlay dividing the net loss by the sum of
the weighted-average number of dilutive commonesleguivalents outstanding for the period determursdg the treasury stock method.
Dilutive common share equivalents are comprisecbofvertible preferred stock, preferred stock wagarommon stock warrants, potential
Employee Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP) awards, testiitommon stock subject to repurchase and optiotstanding under our stock plans.
The calculation of diluted loss per share requines, to the extent the average fair value of theéeulying shares for the reporting period
exceeds the exercise price of the warrants angrésmed exercise of such securities are dilutiveds per share for the period, adjustmer
net loss used in the calculation are requiredoree the change in fair value of the warrants lferperiod. Likewise, adjustments to the
denominator are required to reflect the relatedtidié shares. For all periods presented, there idifference in the number of shares used to
calculate basic and diluted shares outstandingaloar net loss position and preferred stock wasrbring anti-dilutive.

Potentially dilutive securities not included in ttelculation of diluted net loss per share attdblg to common stockholders because to
do so would be anti-dilutive are as follows (in goon stock equivalent shares):

(in thousands) Year Ended December 31
2014 2013 2012

Convertible preferred stock outstand — — 10,64¢
Warrants for convertible preferred stc — — 1,42
Warrants for common stoc 1,007 1,35¢ —
Common stock option 2,23 4,53¢ —
Employee Stock Purchase P 12¢ 13¢ —
Restricted common stock subject to repurct — — 2C

3,36¢ 6,03t 12,09¢

Recent Accounting Pronouncemen

In August 2014, the Financial Accounting Standd@&dard (“FASB”)issued an accounting standards update, which ejmanageme
of public and private companies to evaluate whetthere are conditions and events that raise suftdoubt about the entity’s ability to
continue as a going concern within one year afteffinancial statements are issued (or availabbetssued, when applicable) and, if so,
disclose that fact. Management will be requirethtike this evaluation for both annual and interiporéng periods, if applicable. Managem
is also required to evaluate and disclose whethgalans alleviate that doubt. The standard iscéffe for annual periods ending after
December 15, 2016 and interim periods within anpealods beginning after December 15, 2016. The fizmy does not believe the adoption
of this standard will have a material impact orfiiteincial statement disclosures.

In May 2014, the FASB and the International AccinmStandards Board (“IASB”) issued a comprehenae@ revenue recognition
standard that will supersede existing revenue guiglainder U.S. GAAP and International Financialdtpg Standards (“IFRS"). The
standard’s core principle is that a company witlagnize revenue when it transfers promised goodeimwices to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the companyeeigto be entitled in exchange for those good®nsices. In doing so, companies will need
to use more judgment and make more estimates tidar current guidance. These may include identifyiarformance obligations in the
contract, estimating the amount of variable corsitilen to include in the transaction price and@dking the transaction price to each separate
performance obligation. The guidance is effectmeannual periods beginning after December 15, 2it8uding interim periods within that
period. The Company is in the process of assessefuture impact of the adoption of the standardt®financial statements.
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In April 2014, the FASB issued an accounting stagdslaipdate, which includes amendments that chdregeetjuirements for reporting
discontinued operations and require additionalldsszes about discontinued operations. Under theguedance, only disposals representing
strategic shift in operations - that is, a majdeetf on the organization’s operations and finanallts - should be presented as discontinued
operations. Examples include a disposal of a nggographic area, a major line of business, or @neajuity method investment. Additional
the update requires expanded disclosures aboutrdisaed operations that will provide financialtstaent users with more information about
the assets, liabilities, income, and expensesszioditinued operations. The guidance is effectiosgectively for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2014 and interim periods within anpealods beginning on or after December 15, 20h&. Company does not believe the
adoption of this standard will have a material istgan its financial position, results of operatimrgelated financial statement disclosures.

3. Financial Statements Information
Short-term investments
The Company invests excess cash in investmentiesuprincipally debt instruments of financiabtitutions and corporations with

strong credit ratings. The following representsimmary of the estimated fair value of short-terrestments at December 31, 2014 and 2017
(in thousands):

Maturity Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
At December 31, 201 (in years) Cost Gain Loss Fair Value
Available-for-sale investment securitie
Commercial pape Lessthan: $ 32,53t $ 9 $ — $ 32,54t
Governmer-sponsored enterprise securit 1to2 3,504 — (2) 3,503
$ 36,04 $ 9 $ (1) $ 36,04¢
Trading securities
Mutual funds held for nonqualified deferred comgait plan
participants $ 56 $ 2 3 —  $ 58
Total $ 36,09¢ 3 11 % (1) $ 36,10¢
Maturity Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
At December 31, 2013 (in years) Cost Gain Loss Fair Value
Available-for-sale investment securitie
Commercial pape Lessthan: $ 509t $ — 3 — 3 5,09t
Total $ 509 $ — 3 —  $ 5,09t

Accounts Receivabl
Accounts receivable consisted of the followingiattfiousands):

December 31,

2014 2013

Accounts receivabl $ 7,90 $ 5,51€
Less allowance for doubtful accoul (253) (217)
Total $ 7,652 $ 5,29¢

Inventory
Inventory consisted of the following at (in thoudaj

December 31

2014 2013

Raw materials $ 7,088 $ 6,36<
Work in proces: 2,28¢ 2,16¢
Finished good 2,85¢€ 3,63E
12,22¢ 12,067

Less: reserv (316) (1,737)
Total $ 11,91 $ 10,33(

The inventory reserve at December 31, 2013 incldfel million associated with the Company’s voluptaroduct recall.
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Property and Equipmen
Property and equipment consist of the followindimthousands):

December 31

2014 2013

Leasehold improvemen $ 6,00z $ 4,12
Computer equipment and softwe 5,171 4,15k
Office furniture and equipmel 3,563¢ 2,681
Manufacturing and scientific equipme 9,11C 6,51C
23,821 17,46¢

Less accumulated depreciation and amortize (11,240 (7,580
Total $ 12,581 $ 9,88¢

Depreciation and amortization expense relateddpgaty and equipment amounted to $4.1 million, $2ilion and $1.9 million for the
years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 ctasge.

Intangible Assets Subject to Amortizatic

In July 2012, the Company entered into an agreemansuant to which certain rights were grantedatepts and patent applications.
Included in these rights are patents related t€Citrapany’s commercialized products as well as patinat related to the products in
development or future products. As consideratiartHese rights, the Company agreed to pay $5.0omiih license fees and a percentage of
any associated sublicense revenues that may beedc&o determine the fair value of the licensed purchased intellectual property, the
Company utilized a combination of royalty-reliefdacost valuation approaches depending on the tiyfee@atents. For the group of patents
related to the commercialized products, the rétmh royalty approach was utilized. Significant g in the valuation model included our
projected revenues, estimated weighted averagetoapital, risk premium associated with the gsmed current market comparable royalty
rates. For the patents associated with produalswrelopment, the cost approach was applied whithad the costs associated with the filing
and issuance of the patent to estimate the patiamt'galue. The Company used the relative faiuealto allocate the purchase price between
the two groups of patents. The fair value assodiafiéh the patents related to the commercializedipcts of $3.2 million was capitalized an
amortized over the weighted average patent renmlifanof 10 years. The fair value associated wlith rest of the patents of $1.8 million was
expensed at the time of the contract executionianetorded in the selling, general and adminiseagxpenses line item in the statement of
operations as the associated patents did not teléte commercialized product.

Intangible assets subject to amortization consipatents purchased or licensed that are relatdtet€ompany’s commercialized
products. The following represents the capitaligaténts at December 31, 2014 and 2013 (in thousands

December 31

2014 2013
Gross amour $ 3247 $ 3,178
Accumulated amortizatio (806) (476)
Total $ 2441 % 2,697
Weighted average remaining amortization periodr{onths) 90 102

Amortization expense related to intangible assagest to amortization amounted to $0.3 million,3Million and $0.2 million for the
years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 ctasghe. The amortization expense is recorded endbst of sales line item in the staten
of operations. The estimated annual amortizatic®i8 million for 2015 and periods thereafter.
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4. Fair Value Measurements

Authoritative guidance on fair value measuremeefiés fair value, establishes a consistent franmefoy measuring fair value, and
expands disclosures for each major asset andityatétegory measured at fair value on either anmgag or nonrecurring basis. Fair value is ar
exit price, representing the amount that woulddmeived to sell an asset or paid to transfer ditiabn an orderly transaction between market
participants. As such, fair value is a market-basedsurement that should be determined based ompssns that market participants would

use in pricing an asset or liability. As a basisdonsidering such assumptions, the authoritatiudamce establishes a three-tier fair value

hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in sging fair value as follows:

Level 1: Observable inputs such as quoted prices in actas&eis.

Level 2: Inputs, other than the quoted prices in active eta;kthat are observable either directly or indiye!

Level 3: Unobservable inputs in which there is little ormarket data, which require the reporting entitdéoelop its own assumptior

The following table presents information about @@mpany’s financial assets measured at fair vafue eecurring basis as of December 31,
2014 and 2013, and indicates the fair value hiésaod the valuation techniques utilized by the Camypto determine such fair value (in

thousands):
Fair Value Measurements at
December 31, 2014 Usin
Quoted Pricein Significant
Active Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observable Unobservable
December 31, Assets Inputs Inputs
2014 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Assets
Cash equivalents (. $ 30,05C $ 30,05C $ — 3 —
Commercial pape 32,54t — 32,54t —
Mutual funds held for nonqualified deferred comaitg plan
participants (2 58 58 — —
Governmer-sponsored enterprise securit 3,503 — 3,503 —
Total asset $ 66,15¢ $ 33,611 $ 32,545 $ —
Liabilities
Deferred compensation ( $ 58 $ 58 $ —  $ —
Total liabilities $ 58 $ 58 $ — 3 —

(1) Cash equivalents included money market funds andreercial paper with a maturity of three monthsesslfrom the date of purche
(2) Deferred compensation plans are compensat#ors glirected by the Company and structured aséiRaust for certain executives
and non-employee directors. The investment as$é¢itie dkabbi Trust are valued using quoted markieepr The related deferred

compensation liability represents the fair valu¢hef investment asse

Fair Value Measurements ai
December 31, 201

Quoted Price in Significant
Active Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observable Unobservable
December 31, Assets Inputs Inputs
2013 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Assets
Money market fund $ 115,11: $ 115,11: $ — 3 —
Commercial pape 5,098 5,09 —
Total asset $ 120,207 $ 115,11: $ 5,098 $ —

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Legekrities during the years ended December 34 20d 2013.
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5. Convertible Notes Payable and Stock Warrant
2011 Convertible Notes Payable

In August 2011, the Company entered into a Note\dadrant Purchase Agreement (2011 Bridge Finanainid) existing stockholders
for an aggregate principal amount of approxima$dlg.0 million under unsecured convertible promigsmtes. The convertible promissory
notes bore interest at an annual rate of 8%, drdiatipal and interest were due and payable onckl&1, 2012, unless earlier converted into
preferred stock of the Company.

In connection with the 2011 Bridge Financing anddash proceeds of $1,000 (0.01% of the principgant of the convertible
promissory notes), the Company issued warrantsitchpse shares of common stock up to the numbshrasés calculated by dividing 25% of
the principal amount of the convertible promissoeoges by the lesser of the next qualified equitaricing per-share price, or $44.00. The
warrants’ exercise price per share was $0.17. Tdreants were immediately exercisable with an exjpinain August 2021. The warrants’ fair
value of approximately $0.3 million was recordedhatebt discount and amortized to interest expeneethe term of the convertible
promissory notes using the effective interest meitfidie estimated number of common shares issuabier the warrants was 43,955, althoug!
the actual number was not fixed.

In March 2012, the Company extended the 2011 Briigancing maturity date to May 2012. No other temrere modified. The
effective interest rate post-modification was s the effective interest rate before modifiaatmd the Company concluded that this
modification represented a troubled debt restrirmguThe Company accounted for the modificatiorag@rospective basis.

In May 2012, the 2011 Bridge Financing maturityedaf the associated convertible promissory notesexéended to August 31, 2012.
Additionally, the warrant coverage provided in asation with the notes was increased from 25% 40 the principal amount of the
convertible promissory notes, and the shares paatii@ under the warrants were changed from commook 0 preferred stock. The preferred
stock warrants’ exercise price was amended to $4f ékercised prior to the close of the next diedi equity financing, or by the per-share
price of the next qualified equity financing if egised after the close of the next qualified eqfiitgncing.

The present value of the future cash flows undemtbdified terms described above did not exceegtbsent value of the future cash
flows under the original terms by more than 10%e Tompany treated this amendment as a modificatidrithe incremental increase in the
fair value of the warrants resulting from the magiifion of approximately $1.2 million was recordegla discount to the convertible promiss
notes and amortized over the remaining term ottmertible promissory notes using the effectiveriest method. The estimated number of
preferred stock shares issuable under the waraatie time of modification was 117,842.

2012 Convertible Notes Payable

In May and July 2012, the Company entered into Mo Warrant Purchase Agreements (2012 Bridge Einghwith existing
stockholders for an aggregate principal amounppfaeximately $12.2 million. The convertible pronasg notes bore interest at an annual rate
of 8%, and all principal and interest were due pagable on August 31, 2012, unless earlier congént® preferred stock of the Company.

In connection with the 2012 Bridge Financing, tren{pany issued warrants to purchase shares of prdfstock up to the number of
shares calculated by dividing 40% of the princgralount of the convertible promissory notes by $a4f.@xercised prior to the close of the
next qualified equity financing, or by the per-gharice of the next qualified equity financing ¥egcised after the close of the next qualified
equity financing. The warrants’ exercise price $44.00 if exercised prior to the close of the rgpdlified equity financing, or by the per-
share price of the next qualified equity financihgxercised after the close of the next qualiféeplity financing. The warrants were
immediately exercisable and with an expiration iayMind July 2022.

The 2012 Bridge Financing was completed substintiath the same parties as the 2011 Bridge Firancht the time of each 2012
convertible promissory note issuance, the Companfppned a comparison of the present value ofuh&é cash flows under the original 2!
Bridge Financing terms and amended 2011 Bridgeri€ing terms as impacted by the 2012 Bridge Finanaird determined that the change
was more than 10%. The Company accounted for saise of the 2012 Bridge Financing as a debtguishment, and accordingly recorded
the 2011 and 2012 Bridge Financing convertible pssory notes at fair value. The loss on extinguishihof $2.8 million was recorded in the
statement of convertible preferred stock and stoltldrs’ equity (deficit) as a charge to additiopaild-in capital in the period in which the
extinguishment occurred as all these transactia@re wiade with related parties. The amount in exakadditional paidn capital was record:
into accumulated deficit. The loss on extinguishtweas determined by calculating the difference leetathe net carrying amount of the
extinguished debt (which includes principal, acdrirgerest, and unamortized discount, if any) defair value of the old and additional debt
(which includes fair value of modified debt, faalue of additional warrants and any amendmentaélfdes).
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Conversion to Series D Preferred Stock

In August 2012, the Company completed the closirey 8eries D financing, and all indebtedness uttte011 Bridge Financing and
2012 Bridge Financing, aggregating approximatel§.42nillion, including accrued interest, was auttivaly converted into shares of
convertible Series D Preferred Stock at a per-space equal to the per-share price of $4.40. sdlaxiated preferred stock warrants became
warrants to purchase 2,288,316 shares of conwei$ibties D Preferred Stock at an exercise pri¢d @0 per share.

In November 2013, in connection with the closingled initial public offering, all associated wartato purchase shares of Series D
Preferred Stock automatically converted into wasda purchase 1,171,352 shares of our Common Stozkveighted average exercise price
of $7.37 per share. As of December 31, 2014, tivere 1,006,577 common stock warrants outstanding.

6. Loan and Warrant Agreements
Silicon Valley Bank Loan

In March 2012, the Company entered into a Loan@exlrity Agreement with Silicon Valley Bank, dragia bridge loan in the amount
of $5.0 million (“SVB Bridge Loan”). Subsequentttte closing of the Series D financing, the SVB Bad.oan was converted into a 24-montt
term loan (“SVB Term Loan”) in September 2012. Tévan loan accrued interest at an annual rate ofwi#h,principal and accrued interest
payments due monthly throughout the 24 month td@ime. SVB Term Loan also required a final paymer@B million and a fee of $0.2
million if the loan was prepaid in its entirety grito the end of the term of the loan.

In connection with the SVB Bridge Loan and SVB Tdroan, the Company issued an aggregate of 102[24i@s of Series D
convertible preferred stock at an exercise pric4o80 per share. In November 2013, in connectiiti tire closing of the initial public
offering, all SVB Series D Preferred Stock warraatomatically converted into warrants to purchés@®33 shares of our Common Stock at a
weighted average exercise price of $7.37 per sii&ewarrants were exercised in the first quart@0d 4.

In conjunction with the Capital Royalty Term Lodnsing in January 2013, all principal, interest dunel pre-payment fee amounts due
under the SVB Term Loan were paid by the Company.

SVB Revolving Line of Credi

In January 2013, the Company entered into an andeiode agreement with Silicon Valley Bank, makinvgitable a revolving line of
credit in the amount up to the lesser of $1.5 millor 75% of eligible accounts receivable. Intemdy payments at a rate of 6% per annum ar
payable monthly through the maturity date 24 mofitum the initial borrowing. Loans drawn under tigreement would be secured by the
Company’s eligible accounts receivable and procésetefrom. Additionally, the terms of the revolgitine of credit contain various
affirmative and negative covenants. There weremouats outstanding under this loan as of Decembge2@L4 and 2013. The SVB revolving
line of credit expired unused in January 2015.

Capital Royalty Term Loan

In December 2012, the Company executed a termdgeegement with Capital Royalty Partners Il L.P. &aghital Royalty Partners II—
Parallel Fund “A” L.P., together, Capital RoyaltgrBhers, providing the Company access to up tor¥dllbn under the arrangement, of which
$30 million was available in January 2013, and dditeonal amount up to $15 million was availableomchievement of a 2013 reverhgsec
milestone. In January 2013, $30 million was drawder the Agreement. The loan accrued interest ahanal rate of 14%.

The loan is collateralized by all assets of the Gany. Additionally, the terms of the Term Loan Agmeent contain various affirmative

and negative covenants agreed to by the CompanyoBimgs under the term loan are subject to noodrrence of a material adverse chan
our business or operations (financial or otherwise material impairment of the prospect of repagt of obligations.
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In connection with the Term Loan Agreement, in Jagi2013, the Company issued warrants to purchas@24 shares of the
Company’s Common Stock at an exercise price of2ped share. The warrants were immediately exdrigsaith an expiration in January
2023. Because the exercise price of these wanvagsiominal, the Company used the fair value ottmamon stock of $1.61 at December
2012 to value these warrants. The Company also%taitimillion financing fee to Capital Royalty Raets. The warrants’ fair value of
approximately $0.4 million and financing fee of &@nillion were recorded as a debt discount. Addgity, the Company paid $0.7 million to a
third party for sourcing the Capital Royalty Termdn, which was recorded as debt issuance cosfeddland warrants value are amortized to
interest expense over the remaining term using®&fe interest method. The warrants were exerdiséde second quarter of 2014.

In April 2014, the Company entered into an Amended Restated Term Loan Agreement (the “AmendedRastiated Term Loan
Agreement”) with the Lenders and other partiediaféd with Capital Royalty Partners. The Amendad Restated Term Loan Agreement
primarily amended the terms of the Original Ternah@greement to reduce the borrowing limit to $30ibion, to reduce the applicable
interest rate from 14.0% to 11.5%, and to extemrdrkerest only payment period from December 31520 March 31, 2018. Interest is
payable, at the Company’s option, (i) in cash rtea of 11.5% per annum or (ii) 9.5% of the 11.586@annum in cash and 2.0% of the
11.5% per annum added to the principal of the kradhis subject to accruing interest. Interest-gualyments are due quarterly on
March 31, June 30, September 30 and December &4cbfyear of the interest-only payment period. &hger, in addition to interest accrued
during the period, the quarterly payments shallite an amount equal to the outstanding principMarch 31, 2018 divided by the remaining
number of quarters prior to the end of the terrthefloan which is March 31, 2020. The Amended aest&ed Term Loan Agreement provi
for prepayment fees of 3% of the outstanding baariche loan if the loan is repaid prior to Magh 2015. The prepayment fee is reduced b
1% per year for each subsequent year until maturity

Certain affirmative and negative covenants were ataended. The principal financial covenants regthiat the Company attain
minimum annual revenues of $30.0 million in 20180.% million in 2015, $65.0 million in 2016, $8Mllion in 2017 and $95.0 million
thereafter. At December 31, 2014, the Company wasmnpliance with all of the covenants and imet the minimum annual revenue threst
for 2014.

At December 31, 2014, the principal balance outitapunder the Capital Royalty Term Loan was $36illon. Borrowings under
the Amended and Restated Term Loan Agreement veee to refinance amounts outstanding under thar@tigerm
Loan Agreement. The present value of the futuré dasvs under the modified terms described abodendit exceed
the present value of the future cash flows undeotiiginal terms by more than 10%. The Companytécethis
amendment as a modification and the facility feapgroximately $0.1 million recorded as a discdorthe Amended
and Restated Term Loan. The facility fee and theareing balance of debt issuance costs and detxutis of the
Original Term Loan are amortized to interest expemger the remaining term of the Amended and Redtaéérm Loan
using the effective interest method.

Concurrently, the Company also entered into a nemmTLoan Agreement (the “New Tranche Term Loan Agrent”) with the Lenders
and other parties affiliated with Capital Royalgrthers, under which the Company may borrow upitadditional $30.0 million on or before
March 31, 2015 at the same interest rate and osaime key terms as the Amended and Restated TexmAgreement.

Future minimum principal payments under the Terrardgreement, are as follows (in thousands):

Year ended December 31

2015 $ =
2016 —
2017 —
2018 11,25(
2019 15,00(¢
Thereafte! 3,75C
Total $ 30,00(¢
Less current portion of notes paya —
Notes payable, net of current porti $ 30,00(

In February 2015, the Company amended its Amendddr@stated Term Loan Agreement, as well as its Nawche Term Loan
Agreement. Pursuant to this amendment, the interdgtpayment period was extended to December @19 om March 31, 2018 at the same
interest rate and on the same key terms as theénexaégreements. The principal balance will be iui@ll at the end of the term of the loan
which is March 31, 2020 ( see Note 13 “Subsequerhis”) .
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7. Stockholder¢ Equity (Deficit)
Convertible Preferred Stock

Prior to the conversion in the initial public offeg in November 2013, the Company’s convertibl€fgred stock was classified as
temporary equity on the accompanying balance sliestsad of in stockholders’ equity (deficit) incacdance with authoritative guidance for
the classification and measurement of redeemablgisies. Upon certain change in control events wexe outside of our control, including
liquidation, sale or transfer of control of the Quamny, holders of the convertible preferred stoakld¢@ause its redemption.

As of December 31, 2013, all outstanding convestjireferred stock had converted to common stockmjunction with the initial
public offering. Following its initial public offémng, the Company filed an amended and restatedicate of incorporation to authorize
5,000,000 shares of undesignated preferred stock.

Common Stock

In November 2013, the Company completed its infiigblic offering of 8,000,000 shares of its comnstock at a public offering price
$15.00 per share. Net cash proceeds from thelipiiialic offering were approximately $108.3 milliafter deducting underwriting discounts,
commissions and estimated offering related trarmacbsts payable by the Company. In November 283underwriters also exercised their
overallotment option and purchased an additior200,000 shares of the Company’s common stock, fitich the Company received cash
proceeds, net of underwriting discounts and comioniss of approximately $16.7 million. In connectiaith the closing of the initial public
offering, all of the Company’s shares of convedipteferred stock outstanding at the time of tlierwfg were automatically converted into
13,403,747 shares of common stock. In additiomwistanding preferred stock warrants were autaaliticonverted into warrants to purch
an aggregate 1,171,352 shares of our common steekNote 4, “Fair Value Measurements”).

As of December 31, 2014, there were 23,654, 74%shafrcommon stock outstanding. Each share of canstuzk is entitled to one
vote. The holders of the common stock are alsdledtio receive dividends whenever funds are lggalhilable and when declared by our
Board of Directors. Following our initial public fefing, we filed an amended and restated certdicdtincorporation to authorize 100,000,000
shares of common stock.

Stock Plans

In September 2006, the Company adopted the 20@& Stoentive Plan (the “2006 Planinpder which, as amended, 2,685,605 shar
common stock were reserved for issuance to empdoyem-employee directors and consultants of thag2my.

The 2006 Plan provided for the grant of incentitoek options, non-statutory stock options, riglattirchase restricted common stock,
stock appreciation rights, dividend equivalentsgktpayments, and restricted stock units to eligibkipients. Recipients of incentive stock
options and restricted common stock shall be dégib purchase shares of the Company’s common stioak exercise price equal to no less
than the estimated fair market value of such stutkhe date of grant. The 2006 Plan was close®113 2vith the approval of the 2013 Stock
Incentive Plan (the “2013 Plan”) and no furtheriops will be granted under the 2006 Plan.

In October 2013, the Company’s board of directgraved the 2013 Plan. The 2013 Plan became eféeictimediately prior to the
completion of the initial public offering. An inél 4,809,000 shares of common stock were resepredsuance under the 2013 Plan. Unde
2013 Plan, the Company may grant stock optionsksippreciation rights, restricted stock and retd stock units to individuals who are tt
employees, officers, directors or consultants ef@mpany. Effective January 1, 2015, the sharaiadle for issuance under the 2013 Plan
were increased by 946,189 shares in accordanceawitbvergreen” provision under the 2013 Plan.

As of December 31, 2014, 1,985,982 shares areadbaifor future issuance under the 2013 Plan, @tidres to purchase 5,011,063
shares have been granted and are outstanding tined2006 Plan and 2013 Plan.

Restricted Common Stock

The Company issued shares of restricted commoR siteling 23,872 shares in 2011. Proceeds fronisthéance of the shares of restrictec
common stock totaled $0.2 million in 2011. The slsanf restricted common stock were issued unde2@é Plan to certain employees and
nonemployee directors. Shares of restricted comstack granted under the 2006 Plan vested and wéject to repurchase according to the
terms of the respective restricted stock agreentfpun the closing of the initial public offering Movember 2013, 11,935 shares of the
Company’s unvested restricted common stock werenaatically vested.
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Common Stock Options

The maximum term of stock options granted unde20®@6 Plan and 2013 Plan is ten years. The optjensrally vest 25% on the first
anniversary of the original vesting date, with ladance vesting monthly over the remaining thresrse

The following table summarizes stock option tratisas for the 2006 Plan and 2013 Plan:

Weighted-
Weighted- Average Aggregate
Average Remaining Intrinsic
Total Exercise Contractual Value (in
Options Price Life (in years) thousands)
Outstanding at December 31, 2012 135,90: $ 12.3¢ 7.02 $ —
Grantec 4,430,21: $ 7.92
Exercisec (9,919 $ 6.65 $ 118
Canceled/forfeited/expire (16,587 $ 4.71
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 4,539,61t $ 8.07 949 $ 80,36¢
Grantec 760,63¢ $ 21.2¢
Exercisec (143,779 $ 2.26 $ 1,95¢
Canceled/forfeited/expire (145,419 $ 12.1C
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 5,011,06: $ 10.2C 862 $ 23,53¢
Vested and expected to vest at December 31, 494385t $ 10.1t 8.62 $ 23,38¢
Exercisable at December 31, 2( 2,322,66f $ 5.86 832 $ 17,59(

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In October 2013, the Company adopted the 2013 Byapl&tock Purchase Plan (the “ESPP”), which enagbigible employee to
purchase shares of the Company’s common stock tisémgafter tax payroll deductions, subject tataier conditions.

The ESPP initially authorized the issuance of 586 $hares of common stock pursuant to purchasesrighnted to employees. The
number of shares of common stock reserved for iesumcreases on January 1 of each calendar year January 1, 2014 through January 1,
2023, by the least of (a) one percent (1%) of tmalmer of Shares issued and outstanding on the inateddpreceding December 31, or
(b) such lesser number of Shares as determinedebfkdministrator. On January 1, 2014, the numbeshafes of common stock reserved for
issuance under our ESPP was automatically incrdas@@9,256 shares. On January 1, 2015, the nuailsrares of common stock reserved
for issuance under our ESPP was automatically &sere by an additional 236,547 shares. The ESPReisded to qualify as an “employee
stock purchase plan” within the meaning of Sectig of the Code. As December 31, 2014, 251,39@stafrour common stock have been
purchased under the ESPP and 533,866 shares rauwagi@ble for issuance under the ESPP as of Dece®ih@014 .

Eligible employees may contribute, normally throymgtyroll deductions, up to 15% of their earningstfee purchase of common stock
under the ESPP. The purchase price of common siodé&r the ESPP will be the lesser of: (a) 85% efftiir market value of a share of the
Company’s common stock on the first date of anroftgor (b) 85% of the fair market value of a shaf¢he Company’s common stock on the
date of purchase. Generally, the ESPP consist$ved-gear offering period with four six-month puese periods.

Stock-Based Compensation.

The compensation cost that has been included istétement of operations for all stock-based corsgion arrangements was as
follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Cost of sale: $ 1,317 $ 204 % 36
Selling, general & administrati\ 11,88¢ 3,582 148
Research and developmt 1,792 669 62
Total $ 1499 % 4,45€ $ 246

The total stock-based compensation capitalizedaetsop the cost of our inventory was $0.2 milliamde$0.3 million at December 31,
2014 and 2013, respectively.
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At December 31, 2014, the total unamortized stcecseld compensation expense of approximately $24lidmmvill be recognized over
the remaining vesting term of approximately 2.7rgea

Option grants to non-employees are valued usingdatheralue-based method and are then quartertpeasured and expensed over the
period services are provided. For the years endmgibber 31, 2014 and 2013, the expense was $0i@maihd $0.1 million, respectively, ai
are included in the table above as component bhgebeneral and administrative expenses. Optiantg to consultants resulted in an
immaterial expense for the year ended Decembe2(BIL2.

The Company estimates the fair value of stock ogtand shares issued to employees under the E&RPaBlack-Scholes option-
pricing model on the date of grant. The fair vabdfiequity instruments that are expected to vesteregnized and amortized on a straight-line
basis over the requisite service period. The Blackeles option-pricing model incorporates varioighly sensitive assumptions including
expected volatility, expected term and risk-freeiiast rates.

The assumptions used in the Black-Scholes optianAgrmodel are as follows:

Stock Option
Year Ended
December 31,
2014 2013 2012
Weighted average grant date fair value (per st $ 14.2¢  $ 752 $ 15.6C
Risk-free interest rat 1.8% 1.4% 1.1%
Expected dividend yiel 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Expected volatility 76.3% 79.0% 70.2%
Expected term (in year 5.9 5.8 6.0
ESPP
Year Ended
December 31,
2014 2013
Weighted average grant date fair value (per share) $ 6.86 $ 6.5C
Risk-free interest rat 0.3% 0.2%
Expected dividend yiel 0.0% 0.0%
Expected volatility 50.C% 66.3%
Expected term (in year 1.3 1.3

Risk-free Interest RateThe risk-free interest rate assumption was basetie United States Treasury’s rates for U.S. Jugazero-
coupon bonds with maturities similar to those & ¢éixpected term of the award being valued.

Expected Dividend YieldThe expected dividend yield is zero because we haver declared or paid any cash dividends ambtio
presently plan to pay cash dividends in the foraiskeefuture.

Expected Volatility Due to limited historical data, the expected tilitg is estimated based on volatilities of a pgesup of similar
companies whose share prices are publicly availdthle peer group consisted of other publicly-tradeehpanies in the same industry and in a
similar stage of development. The Company will awre to apply this process until a sufficient amoofrhistorical information regarding the
volatility of its own stock price becomes available

Expected TermThe Company utilized the simplified method fotirating the expected term of stock option gradtsder this
approach, the weighted-average expected term ssipred to be the average of the vesting term andatkeactual term of the option. The
Company estimate the expected term of ESPP usjpecéed life for each tranche during the two yeéeraig period.

The Company is also required to estimate forfetatethe time of grant, and revise those estinmatesbsequent periods if actual
forfeitures differ from its estimates. Historicaltd was used to estimate pre-vesting option fafest and record stock-based compensation
expense only for those awards that are expecteelsto
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Common Stock Reserved for Future Issuance

The following shares of common stock are resereeduture issuance at December 31, 2014:

Common stock warrants outstand 1,006,57
Stock options issued and outstanc 5,011,06:
Authorized for future option gran 1,985,98:
Employee stock purchase pl 533,86¢

8,537,48!

8. Income Taxes

The provision (benefit) for income taxes reconcitethe amount computed by applying the federailisiay rate to income before taxes
as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

Tax at federal statutory rate $ (27,065 $ (21,467 $ (11,22%)
State income tax, net of federal ben (3,912 (2,784) (1,793
Nondeductible convertible notes paya — 3 617
Warrants revaluatio — 3,061 (869)
Research and development cre (646) (649) 209
Stoclk-based compensatic 1,972 831 82
Other 355 (39) 73
Change in valuation allowan 29,36¢ 21,044 12,90¢
$ 71 % — 3 =

Significant components of the Compasiyiet deferred income tax assets at December 24, &td 2013 are shown below (in thousar
A valuation allowance has been recorded to offsetnet deferred tax asset as of December 31, 201 2@ 3, as the realization of such assets
does not meet the more-likely-than-not threshold.

December 31

2014 2013
Deferred tax asset
Net operating loss (NOL $ 69,60 $ 47,99¢
Research and development tax cre 2,934 2,34¢
Capitalized R&D 10,75( 7,68¢€
Deferred ren 154 119
Stoclk-based and Accrued Compensai 6,481 2,49C
Other 3,272 3,18¢
Total gross deferred tax ass 93,191 63,82¢
Less valuation allowanc (93,197) (63,82¢)
Net deferred tax asse $ — $ —
The California NOL carry forwards will expire adlfaws (in thousands):
Year ended December 31
2016 $ 624
2017 $ 2,052
Thereafter $ 106,75¢

As of December 31, 2014, the Company has accunaulatieral and state net operating loss carryforsvafgpproximately
$177.2 million and $190.6 million, respectively.€lfederal and state tax loss carryforwards begexpire in 2026 and 2016, respectively,
unless previously utilized. The Company also hdsff@ and California research credit carryforwartlapproximately $2.8 million and $3.2
million, respectively. The federal research creditryforwards will begin expiring in 2028 unlesyiously utilized. The California research
credit will carry forward indefinitely.
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Utilization of the net operating losses and R&Ddirearryforwards are subject to annual limitatiah® to ownership change limitations
that have occurred or that could occur in the fitas required by Section 382 of the Internal Regebode of 1986, as amended (the Code),
well as similar state and foreign provisions. Thesg@ership changes may limit the amount of net afjgg losses and R&D credit
carryforwards that can be utilized annually to effeiture taxable income and tax, respectivehgdneral, an “ownership changas defined b
Section 382 of the Code results from a transaaiicseries of transactions over a three-year pegsdlting in an ownership change of more
than 50 percentage points of the outstanding stbekcompany by certain stockholders.

The Company updated their Section 382/383 analiysis) January 1, 2012 through December 31, 204&rdéng the limitation of the
net operating losses and research and developmestitsc Based upon the analysis, the Company datedithat no ownership changes
occurred during that period. The Company does ali¢ve an ownership change has occurred througlkerleer 31, 2014. However, previous
analysis determined that ownership changes hawgmcktin years prior to 2012, but will not have atemial impact on the future utilization of
such carryforwards.

The evaluation of uncertainty in a tax positiom isvo-step process. The first step involves redagmiThe Company determines
whether it is more likely than not that a tax piesitwill be sustained upon tax examination, inchgdiesolution of any related appeals or
litigation, based on only the technical meritsha# position. The technical merits of a tax positi@nive from both statutory and judicial
authority (legislation and statutes, legislativieirt, regulations, rulings, and case law) and teplicability to the facts and circumstances of
the tax position. If a tax position does not méetiore-likely-than-not recognition threshold, Hemefit of that position is not recognized in
the financial statements. The second step is meamant. A tax position that meets the more-likelgrimot recognition threshold is measured
to determine the amount of benefit to recognizth@nfinancial statements. The tax position is meabas the largest amount of benefit that is
greater than 50% likely of being realized uponnudtie resolution with a taxing authority.

The following table summarizes the activity relatedhe Company’s gross unrecognized tax bendfitseabeginning and end of the
years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 (in thossi

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Gross unrecognized tax benefits at the beginninefear $ 191z $ 1,42z $ 779
Increases related to current year positi 476 349 176
Increases related to prior year positi 1,151 141 467
Expiration of unrecognized tax benel — — —
Gross unrecognized tax benefits at the end of dae $ 3,53¢ $ 191z $ 1,422

As of December 31, 2014, the Company has $3.0amihf unrecognized tax benefits that, if recogniard realized would impact the
effective tax rate.

The Company’s practice is to recognize interestpamhlties related to income tax matters in inctemeexpense. The Company had no
accrual for interest and penalties on the Compadpgfance sheets and has not recognized interegtearadties in the statements of operations
for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013Cdhgany does not expect any significant increaséegcreases to its unrecognized tax
benefits within the next 12 months.

The Company is subject to taxation in the Unitemté3t and state jurisdictions. The Company’s taxsyam 2006 (inception) are
subject to examination by the United States are stathorities due to the carry forward of unuéitiznet operating losses and research and
development credits.

The American Taxpayer Relief Act of 2012 was endatéo law during the first quarter of 2013 anchetated the United States federal

research and development tax credit retroactiveinfJanuary 1, 2012 through December 31, 2013 effretive tax rate for 2013 reflects a
benefit of $0.4 million related to 2012 resultimgrh the retroactive extension of the United Steésearch and development tax credit.
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9. Collaborations
DexCom Development and Commercialization Agreem

In February 2012, the Company entered into a Dgvatmt and Commercialization Agreement with DexCbra, (DexCom
Agreement) for the purpose of collaborating ondbeelopment and commercialization of an integratesiem which incorporates the t:slim
Insulin Delivery System with DexCom'’s proprietamyntinuous glucose monitoring system. Under the @em@greement, the Company paid
DexCom $1.0 million at the commencement of theatmkation in 2012, and an additional $1.0 millinr2D14, upon the achievement of a
PMA submission to the FDA. Both payments were réedras research and development costs in theiectdgp years. The Company will
make one additional $1.0 million payment upon ttieievement of certain milestones. Additionally, @empany will reimburse DexCom ug

$1.0 million of its development costs and is solelgponsible for its own development cofts. of December 31, 2014, the Company

had reimbursed DexCom $0.2 million of its developtredsts. For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, &i®| #te
Company recognized research and development co$82@®00, $95,000, and $39,000, respectively.

Upon commercialization and as compensation fontheexclusive license rights, the Company will giay DexCom a royalty
calculated at $100 per integrated system sold.

JDRF Collaboration

In January 2013, the Company entered into a relsedewvelopment and commercialization agreementRBBgreement”) with the
Juvenile Diabetes Research Foundation (“JDRF"eteetbp the t:dual Infusion System, a first-of-iigek dual-chamber infusion pump for the
management of diabetes. According to the termeoIDRF Agreement, JDRF will provide research fogdif up to $3.0 million based on the
achievement of research and development milestonésp exceed research costs incurred by the Coyn@Payments the Company receive
fund the collaboration efforts under the termshaf iIDRF Agreement were recorded as restrictedarasicurrent and long-term liabilities. The
liabilities are recognized as an offset of reseanth development expenses straight-line over timairéng months until anticipated completion
of the final milestone, only to the extent that thstricted cash is utilized to fund such developiagtivities. The estimated completion date is
re-evaluated each reporting period based on dewednpprogress through that date. As of Decembe?@14, we estimated the completion
date to be September 2016.

As of December 31, 2014, milestone payment achiemsrtotaled $0.7 million, and research and deveéoyt costs were offset
cumulatively by $0.4 million. The research and depment costs were offset by $0.2 million and $@ition for the years ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The Coyngia not have any restricted cash balances cetatthe JDRF Agreement at
December 31, 2014 or 2013.

10. Employee Benefits
Employee 401(k) Plai

The Company has a defined contribution 401(k) paeiremployees who are at least 18 years of ageldymes are eligible to participate
in the plan beginning on the first day of the cdmquarter following their date of hire. Under teems of the plan, employees may make
voluntary contributions as a percent of compensafithe Company does not provide a matching corttabyprogram.

Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Ple

On June 16, 2014, the Company’s Board of Direcdigpted and approved the Tandem Diabetes CardDéierred Compensation Plan
(the “Plan”). The Deferred Compensation Plan i®aqualified deferred compensation program sponsioyatie Company to provide its non-
employee directors and certain of its managemepi®@mes designated by the Board (or a committeeiatgal by the Board to administer the
Plan) the opportunity to defer compensation underRlan. The effective date for the Plan for th&t frear was July 1, 2014, and thereafter the
plan year will be from January 1 to December 31.

There is no limit to the amount that a participavaty defer under the Plan whether in a particulan gkear or in aggregate. In the
discretion of the Board (or a committee appointedhe Board to administer the Plan), the Company make additional contributions to be
credited to the account of any or all participantthe Plan. All contributions by the participaahd any contributions that may be made by the
Company, will be immediately fully vested. As of @&@enber 31, 2014, the Company has not made anyiloations.
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Under the terms of the Plan, the Company has ésiialol a rabbi trust for the purpose of reservinglamefits that may become payable
under the Plan. Distributions from the Plan willdmverned by the Internal Revenue Code and thestefrthe Plan. Company assets desigr
to pay benefits under the plan are held by a rabbt and are subject to the general creditore@fdompany. The amounts deferred are
invested in assets at the direction of the employee

The assets and liabilities of the rabbi trust amrded at fair value and are accounted for agsasrd liabilities of the Company. As of
December 31, 2014, the Company held $58,000 imr@efeompensation plan assets in short-term inves$ron its balance sheet that were
invested in mutual funds. The fair market valu¢hef assets held in the Deferred Compensation Pdanbased on unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets. The Company carries a corresporaifgrred compensation liability of $58,000 as etBmber 31, 2014 in other long-term
liabilities on its balance sheet.

11. Commitments and Contingencies

From time to time, the Company may be subjectgallproceedings or regulatory encounters or ottedtars arising in the ordinary
course of business, including actions with respeaitellectual property, employment, product liahj and contractual matters. In connection
with these matters, the Company assesses, on laréasis, the probability and range of possibés lbased on the developments in these
matters. A liability is recorded in the financigh®ements if it is believed to be probable thaisslhas been incurred and the amount of the los
can be reasonably estimated. Because of the umtersarelated to the occurrence, amount, and rafgess on any pending actions, the
Company is currently unable to predict their ultiemautcome, and, with respect to any pending litigeor claim where no liability has been
accrued, to make a meaningful estimate of the redsp possible loss or range of loss that couldltésom an unfavorable outcome. At
December 31, 2014 and 2013, there were no mateateérs for which the negative outcome was consitlprobable or estimable.

Operating leases

In 2008, the Company entered into a noncancelgi#eating lease agreement to lease the Companyerate headquarters in San
Diego, California, through August 2013.

In September 2009, the Company entered into a meetzble operating lease agreement to expand thg&uy’'s corporate
headquarters to an adjacent building, as well atend the term of the aforementioned operatiagdd¢o co-terminate both leases in 2015.

In March 2012, the Company entered into a honcabtebperating lease agreement to increase theestpatage of the Company’s
corporate headquarters, as well as to consolidladé the existing operating leases into a singleske agreement. The new agreement extends
the term of the lease of all buildings to May 20Wnder the new lease, the monthly rent paymends amproximately $0.1 million, excluding
common area maintenance and related charges, emeége by a fixed percentage each year. Additipradl a lease incentive from the
landlord, the Company received a tenant improverakbmivance of approximately $2 million for non-sttural improvements to the building.
The Company recorded this incentive as an incrembeth property and equipment and deferred redititais amortized on a straight-line basis
over the life of the lease.

In connection with the lease, the Company enterda $0.4 million unsecured standby letter of itredangement with a bank under
which the landlord of the building is the benefigialhe standby letter of credit expired on Mardh 3013, but automatically extends for
additional one-year periods unless notice of nagresibn is provided. The final expiration of thenstiay letter of credit is August 31, 2017. The
standby letters of credit previously entered imt@dnnection with the pre-existing leases were el@dcin March 2012.

On November 5, 2013, the Company entered into aaraelable operating lease agreement to furthendxhe Company’s corporate
headquarters to adjacent buildings (the “New Leass’well as to extend the term of the existing degdease to terminate concurrently w
the New Lease in 2019. There were no changes torih@al lease payment schedule with the exceptfoextending the term for which the
monthly rent would be increased by a fixed peragmtzach year on the anniversary of the rent comemeect date of the New Lease.

Among the provisions of the New Lease, the montéht payments commenced in June 2014 and will aserdy a fixed percentage
each year on the anniversary of the rent commentedate. As a lease incentive from the landlord,Glompany received a tenant
improvement allowance of approximately $1.6 millfon nonstructural improvements to the buildingeeTompany recorded the incentive
increase to both property and equipment and defeent and it is amortized on a straight-line basisr the life of the lease.

In connection with the New Lease, the Company amétlde existing standby letters of credit by inshe@ the value of the letter of
credit to $0.5 million. The expiration of the staydetter of credit is July 14, 2019.
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Deferred rent arising from rent escalation provisiand lease incentives totaled $3.4 million an@ ##llion at December 31, 2014 and
2013, respectively. Rent expense for the threesyeaded December 31, 2014 and 2013, was $2.1 miffib.1 million, and $0.9 million

respectively.

Future minimum payments under the aforementioned¢anacelable operating leases for each of the ficeeeding years following

December 31, 2014 are as follows (in thousands):

2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
Thereaftel

12. Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

2,558
2,81t
2,924
3,024
1,27¢

RN|A B BB BB

12,59

Quarterly financial information for fiscal 2014 aB@13 are presented in the following table, in #ands, except per share data:

2014:

Revenue

Gross profit

Operating expenst

Operating los!

Net loss

Basic and diluted net loss per share

2013:

Revenue

Gross profit

Operating expens¢

Operating los!

Net loss

Basic and diluted net loss per share

For the Quarter Ending

March 31 June 30 September 3C December 31
$ 8,066 $ 10,25¢ $ 13,51 $ 17,88¢
$ 867 $ 3,44¢ $ 439 $ 6,537
$ 21,70¢ % 21,766 $ 23,40 % 24,03¢
$ (20837) $ (18319 $  (19,00) $ (17,509
$ (21961 $ (19,199 $ (19901 $ (18,46
$ (0.96) $ (0.83 $ (0.85 $ (0.78)
$ 5,45¢ $ 5,62t $ 7,77¢ 3 10,24¢
$ 2,04C $ 406 $ 253 $ 1,18¢
$ 9,207 $ 14,08: $ 14,66C $ 17,651
$ (7,167 $ (13,677) $ (12,127 $ (16,467)
$ (11,169 $  (15300) $  (13,06) $ (23,619
$ (53.779) $ (7250 $ (60.96) $ (2.14)

(1) Net loss per share is computed independentlgdoh of the quarters presented. Therefore, timeafuhe quarterly per-share calculations

will not necessarily equal the annual per shareutation.

13. Subsequent Event

In February 2015, the Company amended its AmendddRastated Term Loan Agreement, as well as its Nenche Term Loan
Agreement. Pursuant to this amendment, the interdgtpayment period was extended to December @9 om March 31, 2018 at the same
interest rate and on the same key terms as theénexaégreements. The principal balance will be iui@ll at the end of the term of the loan

which is March 31, 2020.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Acunting and Financial Disclosure
Not applicable.

Item 9A.  Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and proceduresdtetlesigned to ensure that information requindsketdisclosed in our periodic and
current reports that we file with the SEC is reeatdprocessed, summarized and reported withirinieefgeriods specified in the SEC’s rules
and forms, and that such information is accumulatedicommunicated to our management, includingpdacipal executive officer and
principal financial officer, as appropriate, tooall timely decisions regarding required disclostmadesigning and evaluating the disclosure
controls and procedures, management recognizeailyatontrols and procedures, no matter how weligtheed and operated, can provide only
reasonable and not absolute assurance of achitheéndesired control objectives. In reaching a reable level of assurance, management
necessarily was required to apply its judgmenwilating the cost-benefit relationship of possitiatrols and procedures. In addition, the
design of any system of controls also is base@ihypon certain assumptions about the likelihdofditre events, and there can be no
assurance that any design will succeed in achigtsrgjated goals under all potential future cdodg. Over time, controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, atafeee of compliance with policies or procedurey aeteriorate. Because of the inherent
limitations in a cost-effective control system, sti&gements due to error or fraud may occur andaatetected.

As of December 31, 2014, we carried out an evalnatinder the supervision and with the participatibour management, including
our principal executive officer and principal fireal officer, of the effectiveness of the desigi @peration of our disclosure controls and
procedures, as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) andlb%e]} under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934nasnded, or the Exchange Act. Base
this evaluation, our principal executive officeidgrincipal financial officer concluded that ousdiosure controls and procedures were
effective at a reasonable assurance level as cérbieer 31, 2014.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Finangdal Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@aorting as such term is defined
in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act. Integmaitrol over financial reporting is a process desiyunder the supervision and with the
participation of our management, including our pipal executive officer and principle financial ic#r, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reportingdthe preparation of financial statements for exaepurposes in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United StafeSmerica.

As of December 31, 2014, our management assessedf¢ictiveness of our internal control over finahceporting using the criteria set
forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatiohthe Treadway Commission in Internal Control-greted Framework (2013
Framework). Based on this assessment, our manageomsiuded that, as of December 31, 2014, ournateontrol over financial reporting
was effective based on those criteria.
Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

There were no changes in our internal control dwancial reporting identified in management’s exaion pursuant to Rules 13a-15(d)
or 15d415(d) of the Exchange Act during the year endededdier 31, 2014 that materially affected, or arsorably likely to materially affec
our internal control over financial reporting.
Item 9B.  Other Information

Not applicable.
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PART Il
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporée Governance

The information required by this item and not settf below will be set forth in the sections emtitl‘Election of Directors” and
“Executive Officers” in our Proxy Statement for @015 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, or Proxy &tagnt, to be filed with the SEC within
120 days after the end of the fiscal year endecebeer 31, 2014, and is incorporated herein by eefss.

We have adopted a code of business conduct arub ¢fiait applies to our Chief Executive Officer atlger senior financial ofters (oul
Chief Financial Officer, Vice President of FinanG@sntroller and other senior financial officersfpeming similar functions), which we refer
as the Code dtthics (Senior Financial Officers). Our Code ofiE$h(Senior Financial Officers) is designed to ntbetrequirements of Secti

406 of Regulation S-K and the rules promulgatedeteder We will promptly disclose on our website (i) thetuna of any
amendment to this Code of Ethics (Senior Finar@féicers) that applies to any cov ered person,(@hthe nature of
any waiver, including an implicit waiver, from agwision of this Code of Ethics that is granted e of the covered
persons We have also adopted a code of business conddatthics that applies to all of our direc tors antployees, which we refer to as
the Code of Ethics (Directors and Employees). Thdelof Ethics (Senior Financial Officers) and thel€ of Ethics (Directors and Employe
are available on our website at www.tandemdiabstes under the Corporate Governance section ofrthestor Center portion of the website.
However, the information contained on or accesBamligh our website does not constitute part of Amsual Report, and references to our
website address in this Annual Report are inadgxéual references only.

ltem 11.  Executive Compensatior

The information required by this item will be setth in the section entitled “Executive Compengdtio our Proxy Statement and is
incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners andvlanagement and Related Stockholder Matter:

The information required by this item will be setth in the sections entitled “Security OwnershifCertain Beneficial Owners and
Management” and “Executive Compensation” in oundgr8tatement and is incorporated herein by refarenc

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transdons, and Director Independence

The information required by this item will be setth in the sections entitled “Corporate Governameel “Certain Relationships and
Related Transactions” in our Proxy Statement amacigrporated herein by reference.

Item 14.  Principal Accounting Fees and Service

The information required by this item will be setth in the section entitled “Ratification of Sdiea of Independent Registered Public
Accounting Firm” in our Proxy Statement and is ingmrated herein by reference.
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PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules
(a) The following documents are filed as part @ thnnual Report:

1. Financial StatementsThe following documents are included in Parttin 8 of this Annual Report and are incorporateddfgrence
herein:

Page
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfing 68
Balance Sheet 69
Statements of Operations and Comprehensive 70
Statements of Convertible Preferred Stock and $Simldier! Equity (Deficit) 71
Statements of Cash Floy 72
Notes to Financial Statemer 73

2. Financial Statement ScheduleSinancial statement schedules are omitted bedhagere not applicable or the required informatgon
shown in the financial statements or notes thereto.

3. Exhibits.
Exhibit Exhibit
Footnote Number Description of Document

Q) 3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporat®owarently in effect

(1) 3.2  Amended and Restated Bylaws as currently in ef

(1) 4.1 Form of Common Stock Certificat

Q) 4.2 Third Amended and Restated Investor Rights Agre¢naated August 30, 201

Q) 4.3 Form of Preferred Stock Warrant issued to Silicailéy Bank.

(1) 4.4 Form of Preferred Stock Warral

(1) 4.5  Warrant to Purchase Stock, dated January 14, 2§di#d to Capital Royalty Partners Il L

Q) 4.6  Warrant to Purchase Stock, dated January 14, 28di8d to Capital Royalty Partner—Parallel Func¢‘A” L.P.

Q) 10.1 Lease Agreement, dated March 7, 2012, as amendmattih November 7, 2013, by and between Tandem Biabe
Care, Inc. and AR-11025/11075 Roselle Street, LL

(1) 10.2 Term Loan Agreement, dated December 24, 2012, dybatween Tandem Diabetes Care, Inc., Capital Royal
Partners 1l L.P. and Capital Royalty Parthe—Parallel Func*A” L.P.

) 10.3 Amended and Restated Term Loan Agreement, dateitl A[@014, by and between Tandem Diabetes Cace, In
Capital Royalty Partners Il L.P. and Capital Roy&artners —Parallel FuncA” L.P.

3) 10.4 Term Loan Agreement, dated April 4, 2014, by antivben Tandem Diabetes Care, Inc., Capital Royatyners,
Capital Royalty Partners Il—Parallel Fund “A” L. apital Royalty Partners Il (Cayman) L.P., CapRalalty
Partners I~ Parallel Func*B” (Cayman) L.P. and Parallel Investment Opportuniagners Il L.P

(4) 10.5 Consent and Amendment Agreement, dated June 2@, B9Jand between Tandem Diabetes Care, Inc., &apit

Royalty Partners Il L.P., Capital Royalty PartnkrsParallel Fund “A” L.P. , Capital Royalty Partrsei
(Cayman) L.P. and Parallel Investment Opportunfiegners Il L.P
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Exhibit Exhibit

Footnote Number Description of Document
(1) #10.6 Tandem Diabetes Care, Inc. 2006 Stock Incentiva.|
(1) #10.7 Form of Stock Option Agreement under 2006 Stocleiive Plan
Q) #10.8 Form of Restricted Stock Agreement under 2006 Shocé&ntive Plan
Q) #10.9 Tandem Diabetes Care, Inc. 2013 Stock Incentiva.|
(1) #10.10 Form of Stock Option Agreement under 2013 Stocleitize Plan
(1) #10.11  Form of Stock Option Agreement under 2013 Stocleitive Plan (No-Employee Directors
Q) #10.12 Tandem Diabetes Care, Inc. 2013 Employee Stockh@secPlan
(2 #10.13 Tandem Diabetes Care, Inc. 2014 Cash Bonus
(1) 10.14  Form of Indemnification Agreemer
1) #10.15 Employee Offer Letter, dated July 8, 2013, by aetileen Tandem Diabetes Care, Inc. and David B.d¢
Q) #10.16  Employee Offer Letter, dated February 1, 2013,y between Tandem Diabetes Care, Inc. and JohhdFidan.
Q) #10.17 Amended and Restated Employment Severance Agregedatatl November 4, 2013, by and between Tandem

Diabetes Care, Inc. and Kim D. Blickenst:

1) #10.18 Amended and Restated Employment Severance Agreedetatd November 4, 2013, by and between Tandem
Diabetes Care, Inc. and John Cajic

Q) #10.19 Amended and Restated Employment Severance Agreedatatl November 4, 2013, by and between Tandem
Diabetes Care, Inc. and Robert B. Anacc

1) #10.20 Amended and Restated Employment Severance Agreedetatd November 4, 2013, by and between Tandem
Diabetes Care, Inc. and John F. Sheri

1) #10.21 Amended and Restated Employment Severance Agreedetatd November 4, 2013, by and between Tandem
Diabetes Care, Inc. and David B. Berg

Q) #10.22 Amended and Restated Employment Severance Agregedatatl November 4, 2013, by and between Tandem
Diabetes Care, Inc. and Susan M. Morris

(1) 1t10.23  Confidential Intellectual Property Agreement, dalety 10, 2012, by and between Tandem Diabetes, Gareanc
Smiths Medical ASD, Inc

Q) 10.24 Lease Agreement, dated November 5, 2013, by aneelbetTandem Diabetes Care, Inc. and ARE-11025/11075
Roselle Street, LLC

#10.25 Tandem Diabetes Care, Inc. 2015 Cash Bonus
(1) 14.1 Code of Business Conduct and Eth
23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourfing.
24.1 Power of Attorney (included on the signature p:

31.1 Certification of Kim D. Blickenstaff, Chief Execut Officer, pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbdesy Act
of 2002.
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Exhibit Exhibit

Footnote Number Description of Document

—+ 3

1)
(2)
3
@

31.2 Certification of John Cajigas, Chief Financial @#f, pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarb-Oxley Act of 2002

*32.1 Certification of Kim D. Blickenstaff, Chief Execut Officer, pursuant to U.S.C. Section 1350, apsstbpursual
to Section 906 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

*32.2 Certification of John Cajigas, Chief Financial @&, pursuant to U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopteshipnt to
Section 906 of the Sarbal-Oxley Act of 2002

101.INS XBRL Instance Documen

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docume

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docuntn
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurhe
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Documt
101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doenn

Indicates management contract or compensatory

Confidential treatment has been granted witheetsto certain portions of this exhibit pursuanah application for confidential treatment
sent to the Securities and Exchange Commissiorh Sotions are omitted from this filing and havebdiled separately with the
Securities and Exchange Commissi

Filed as an exhibit to the registr’'s Registration Statement on Fori-1 (File No. 33-191601) and incorporated herein by refere

Filed as an exhibit to the registr's Annual Report on Form -K filed with the SEC on March 6, 201

Filed as an exhibit to the registr's Quarterly Report on Form -Q filed with the SEC on May 6, 201

Filed as an exhibit to the registr's Quarterly Report on Form -Q filed with the SEC on July 31, 201

This certification is not deemed “filed” for guwses of Section 18 of the Securities Exchangeokaitherwise subject to the liability of that
section. Such certification will not be deemedeédrcorporated by reference into any filing undher ecurities Act of 1933 or the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, exceto the extent that the registrant specifically ipawates it by referenc
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyisthas duly caused this Annual Repo
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theoeduly authorized.

Tandem Diabetes Care, Ir
By: /S/ Kim D. Blickenstaf

Kim D. Blickenstaff
President, Chief Executive Officer and Direc

Dated: February 24, 2015
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POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each persbose signature appears below constitutes anuirggpKim D.
Blickenstaff and John Cajigas, and each of themphher true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and &gjenith full power of substitution and
resubstitution, for him or her and in his or hemea place, and stead, in any and all capacitiesgtoany and all amendments to this Annual
Report on Form 10-K, and to file the same, witheatibits thereto, and other documents in connedtierewith, with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneyfadt and agents, and each of them, full poweraaritority to do and perform each and
every act and thing requisite and necessary twhe th connection therewith, as fully to all inteand purposes as he or she might or could ¢
in person, hereby ratifying and confirming all tlsatd attorneys-in-fact and agents, or any of th@mhjs, her or their substitute or substitutes,
may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue héreo

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this Annual Report has been sidreow by the following persons
on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacitiesan the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/S/ KIM D. BLICKENSTAFF President, Chief Executive Officer and DirectorifBipal Executive  February 24, 2015
Kim D. Blickenstaff Officer)
/S/ JOHN CAJIGAS Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer (Principat&icial and February 24, 2015
John Cajiga: Accounting Officer)
/S/ LONNIE M. SMITH Director and Chairman of the Board February 19, 2015

Lonnie M. Smith

/S/ DICK P. ALLEN Director February 24, 2015
Dick P. Allen
/S/ EDWARD L. CAHILL Director February 24, 2015

Edward L. Cahill

/S/ FRED E. COHEN Director February 24, 2015
Fred E. Cohen, M.D., D.Pt

/SI HOWARD E. GREENE, JR. Director February 24, 2015
Howard E. Greene, J

/S/ DOUGLAS A. ROEDER Director February 21, 2015
Douglas A. Roede

/S/ JESSE |. TREU Director February 24, 2015
Jesse |. Treu, Ph.l

/S/ CHRISTOPHER J. TWOMEY Director February 24, 2015
Christopher J. Twome
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Exhibit 10.25
Tandem Diabetes Care, Inc.

2015 Cash Bonus Plan

The Tandem Diabetes Care, Inc. 2015 Cash Bonus(flarfiBonus Plan”) has been designed to align plan participants wghbusiness gos
and strategies of Tandem Diabetes Care, Intatidem” or the “Company”) and to further the objectives of the Companyeautive
compensation program. This Bonus Plan is an impbgart of the Compang’commitment to recognizing key employees who douie to the
achievement of important Company performance g&yscifically, the objectives of the Bonus Planasdollows:

» Attract, retain and reward highly skilled individsaincluding executive officers, with the backgnouand experience required
for the Company’s future growth and success byiding meaningful cash incentive payments to plarigipants who are in a
position to contribute significantly to Company sess.

« Align the interests of plan participants with thadehe Company’s stockholders by tying a meanihgéution of their total
compensation opportunity to the achievement ofifipg€ompany performance objectives, such as amalmevenue targe

« Together with base salary, long-term equity inaergtiand other components of compensation, creap@opriate balance of
cash versus n-cash, and guaranteed versus at risk compensatfmrtopities.

Performance Period

The Bonus Plan is primarily intended to reward pdarticipants for their individual contributions tftlee Companys achievement with respect
Company performance objectives for the 2015 figear. However, the Company’s Board of DirectortherCompensation Committee of the
Board of Directors (the Compensation Committe’§ also has the discretion to consider individuaCompany performance after December
31, 2015 and until the date of any actual bonusrdehation under the Bonus Plan in measuring perdmce and determining the amount of ar
award, if any, under the Bonus Plan.

Eligibility

Employees of the Company eligible for an award uritis Bonus Plan will be limited to individualsrgimg as a Vice President or more senior
management role within the Company, as determigatidoBoard of Directors or the Compensation Conaitlf, following January 1, 2015,
an individual is promoted or hired and becomesligiibée participant under the Bonus Plan at anyetiduring the 2015 calendar year, then the
individual will be eligible to participate underetBonus Plan on a pro-rata basis, calculated ingthgonable discretion of the Compensation
Committee, unless otherwise specifically providgdhe Board of Directors or the Compensation Cornaait

Bonus Opportunity

A target cash incentive amount (ddrget Bonus Amount) for each eligible plan participant will be set a percentage of the participant’s
base salary. Cash incentives may be earned umel®&uanus Plan based on the achievement of bothdialperformance objectives and
product development objectives. The financial perfance objectives will collectively represent 86%the overall Target Bonus Amount and
the product development objectives will collectivedpresent 20% of the overall Target Bonus Amount.




Exhibit 10.25
Company Product Development Milestones

The portion of the cash bonuses that relate toCivapany product development milestones generatiyire the Company
submit regulatory filings or obtain regulatory dl@ace or approval for certain products under demaknt, within specified tin
periods. Subject to the Committedinal discretion, an individual product developmhenilestone must be achieved within a requirece
period for the applicable portion of the 2015 CBsimus Plan to be achieved. Overall goal achievemktite Companys product developme
milestones will be based on the portion of the pmdlevelopment milestones that the Company agtaahieves during fiscal year 2015.

Financial Performance Objectives

The portion of the cash bonuses that relate taCthmpany financial objectives may be earned baseth@Companys actue
revenue for fiscal year 2015 as compared to a gaEbished 2015 revenue target (th&évenue Target), provided the Company al
achieves at least a minimum operating margin péagen(the “Minimum Operating Percentage Targéef). Subject to the foregoing, t
Company financial objective portion of the cash uses may be earned under the 2015 Cash Bonusd$laloavs:

« A minimum percentage growth rate over the Compaagtsal 2014 revenue, which places the Companyenige for 2015 at5%
of the Revenue Target (tH®inimum Revenue Target”), must be achieved for any bonus to be earned umdefinancis
performance objectives portion of the 2015 CashuBdplan.

« If the Companys actual revenues are between this Minimum Revé&auget and the Revenue Target, the goal achievefoetite
financial performance objectives will be calculatebportionately in a straighitne from 0% to 100%, respectively. If
Companys actual revenues exceed the Revenue Target, tileagbievement for the financial performance oljest will be
calculated proportionately as a percentage of #neRue Targe

Potential Incremental Bont

If the Companys actual revenues are above 105% of the RevengeiTand provided that the Company also achievesaat i
secondary minimum operating margin percentage, then2015 Cash Bonus Plan has two levels of peieicremental overall gc
achievement:

« If the Companys actual revenues are above 105% of the Revengefland up to 115% of the Revenue Target, the ptge o
overall goal achievement under the 2015 Cash B&taus will first be calculated as described abowa, then for each percent
revenue achievement above 105% of the Revenue fTandeup to 115% of the Revenue Target, an additid®o will be added
the overall goal achievement under the 2015 Castu8®lan, and the cash bonus will be calculateddan this modified level
goal achievement; ¢

- If the Companys actual revenues are above 115% of the RevenwgeflTaf the Revenue Target, the percentage of dvgoal
achievement under the 2015 Cash Bonus Plan wéll fie calculated as described above, and thenafdr percent of reven
achievement above 105% of the Revenue Target, diticathl 2% will be added to the overall goal acement under the 20
Cash Bonus Plan, and the cash bonus will be caézltzased on this modified level of goal achievetr




Exhibit 10.25
Award Determination

Bonus payments under the Bonus Plan, if any, wilitade at the discretion of the Board of Directorthe Compensation Committee. The
financial performance component and product devetagg component of the Bonus Plan may be earnegémdkent of one another. If the
Company does not achieve either the financial perdmce component or the product development conmpariehe Bonus Plan, no payouts
will be made unless the Board of Directors or tlien@ensation Committee, in their sole discretionedeine that there are other factors that
merit consideration in the determination of bonwsials, which may be determined on an individualshadl determinations and decisions
made by the Compensation Committee and the Boabdre€tors pursuant to the provisions of the BoRla shall be final, conclusive and
binding on all persons, and shall be given the marn deference permitted by law.

Payout and Administration

Payment of bonuses will be made as soon as priatteathe end of the plan year, but not latentharch 15, 2015. Participants must be
actively employed at the time of payout to be éligifor any bonus payment. Only the Board of Divesimay approve a payment under this
Bonus Plan to the Company’s Chief Executive Offiddre Board of Directors or the Compensation Corngmitmay approve payments to any
other eligible plan participant. The Board of Diars or the Compensation Committee can modify theuB Plan, including timing and form
payments, at any time in their sole discretion. Amts payable under the Bonus Plan are intendedrply with the “short-term deferral” rule
set forth in Section 1.409A-1(b)(4) of the TreasRBgulations and thus be exempt from the provistdr&ection 409A of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended. The Board of Directodglze Compensation Committee intend to admintseBonus Plan in a manner
consistent with this rule. Any amounts paid hedmirshall be subject to recoupment in accordantie Thie Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform
and Consumer Protection Act and any implementigglegions thereunder, any clawback policy adoptethe Company or as is otherwise
required by applicable law.



Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by reference inRbgistration Statements (Form S-3 No. 333-200686Ferm S-8 No. 333-192406) of
Tandem Diabetes Care, Inc. and in the related Bobgges of our report dated February 24, 2015, wipect to the financial statements of
Tandem Diabetes Care, Inc. included in this AnfiReggort (Form 10-K) for the year ended Decembe2B14.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

San Diego, California
February 24, 2015



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Kim D. Blickenstaff, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 16fKlandem Diabetes Care, Inc.

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or dn#ttate a material fact necessary to mak
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoger which such statements were made, not misigadith respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegoks presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintainiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))5¢r the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedoites designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the metiin which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finah@gaorting
to be designed under our supervision, to providsaorable assurance regarding the reliability @frfaral reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for extiepuaposes in accordance with generally accepteduatting
principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragisslosure controls and procedures and presentaisineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegid’s internal control over financial reportifttgat occurred during the registrant’'s mos
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourthdisguarter in the case of an annual report) thathaterially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal comeer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cordvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaweanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Tandem Diabetes Care, Ir

By: /S/Kim D. Blickenstaff
Kim D. Blickenstaff
President, Chief Executive Officer and Direc

Dated: February 24, 2015



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, John Cajigas, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 16fKlandem Diabetes Care, Inc.

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or dmn#ttate a material fact necessary to mak
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoger which such statements were made, not misigadith respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegoks presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintainiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))5¢r the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedoites designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatheg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the metiin which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr; or caused such internal control over finah@gaorting
to be designed under our supervision, to providsaorable assurance regarding the reliability @frfaral reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for extiepuaposes in accordance with generally accepteduatting
principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragisslosure controls and procedures and presentaisineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegid’s internal control over financial reportifttgat occurred during the registrant’'s mos
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourthdisguarter in the case of an annual report) thathaterially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal comeer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cordvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaweanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Tandem Diabetes Care, Ir
By: /S/John Cajiga:

John Cajiga:
Chief Financial Officer and Treasut

Dated: February 24, 2015



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION
Pursuant to U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursutaio Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10fKrandem Diabetes Care, Inc. (the “Company”) fa year ended December 31,
2014, as filed with the Securities and Exchange @@sion on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, KimBlickenstaff, Chief Executive Officer
of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 8act350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 ob#ibanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to my
knowledge:

1. the Report fully complies with the requiremesit$Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExcleaAgt of 1934, as amended; and

2. the information contained in the Report fairhggents, in all material respects, the financiadition and results of operations of the
Company as of the dates and for the periods predent

Date: February 24, 201 /S/ Kim D. Blickenstafi
Kim D. Blickenstaff
President, Chief Executive Officer and Direc

The foregoing certification is being furnished $plk® accompany the Report pursuant to 18 U.S.C35D, and is not being filed for
purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Excharggef1934, as amended, and is not to be incorpdray reference into any filing of the
Company, whether made before or after the dateohergardless of any general incorporation languaguch filing. A signed original of th
written statement required by Section 906 has Ipeevided to the Company and will be retained by@eenpany and furnished to the
Securities and Exchange Commission or its stafhupquest.



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION
Pursuant to U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursutaio Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10fKrandem Diabetes Care, Inc. (the “Company”) fa year ended December 31,
2014, as filed with the Securities and Exchange @@sion on the date hereof (the “Report”), |, J&@ajigas, Chief Financial Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section01 3% adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sasb@nley Act of 2002, that to my
knowledge:

1. the Report fully complies with the requiremesit$Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExcleaAgt of 1934, as amended; and

2. the information contained in the Report fairhggents, in all material respects, the financiadition and results of operations of the
Company as of the dates and for the periods predent

Date: February 24, 201 /S/ John Cajiga
John Cajiga:
Chief Financial Officer and Treasut

The foregoing certification is being furnished $plk® accompany the Report pursuant to 18 U.S.C35D, and is not being filed for
purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Excharggef1934, as amended, and is not to be incorpdray reference into any filing of the
Company, whether made before or after the dateohergardless of any general incorporation languaguch filing. A signed original of th
written statement required by Section 906 has Ipeevided to the Company and will be retained by@eenpany and furnished to the
Securities and Exchange Commission or its stafhupquest.



